State of Illinois) SS
Belvidere, Illinois)
BELVIDERE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA

August 20, 2018

Convened in the Council Chambers, 401 Whitney Blvd, Belvidere IL at 7:00 p.m.
Mayor Chamberlain presiding.

(1) Roll Call:

(2) Pledge of Allegiance:
Invocation:

(3) Public Comment: (Please register with the City Clerk):

(4)Approval of minutes of the regular meeting of the Belvidere City Council of
August 6, 2018; as presented.

(5) Public Hearing: None.
(6) Special Messages and Proclamations:

(7) Approval of Expenditures: General & Special Fund Expenditures: $1,677,314.46
Water & Sewer Fund Expenditures: $§ 567,001.87

(8) Committee Reports and Minutes of City Officers:

(A) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of July 31, 2018 through
August 13, 2018.

(B) Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of July 26, 2018 and
August 1, 2018 through August 14, 2018.

(C) Monthly Treasurer’s Report for July 2018.

(D)Monthly General Fund Report for July 2018.

(E) Monthly Water/Sewer Fund Report for July 2018.

(F) Minutes of Planning and Zoning Commission of August 14, 2018.

(G)Minutes of Committee of the Whole — Building, Planning and Zoning and
Public Works of August 13, 2018.

(9) Unfinished Business:
(A)Ord. #412H —2"¥ Reading: An Ordinance Creating a Home Rule Municipal

Retailers Occupation Tax and Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax
for the City of Belvidere, Illinois.



(B)Ord. #413H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Amending Article VII of
Chapter 74, of the City of Belvidere Municipal Code to Add a New Section
74-259, Sale of Tobacco or Alternative Nicotine Products to Minors
Prohibited.

(C)Ord. #414H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 98, of the City
of Belvidere Municipal Code to Add a New Article IX Small Wireless
Facilities Deployment.

(10) New Business:

(A)Ord. #415H — 1" Reading: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 150, Zoning
Ordinance of the Municipal Code (Nonconforming Use Regulations).

(B) Ord. #416H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Permit a
Solar Farm within the RH, Rural Holding District (825 N. Appleton Road).

(C) Ord. #417H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Allow
Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Bar/Tavern with Video Gaming) within
the GB, General Business District (1776 Logan Avenue).

(D)Ord. #418H — 1™ Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Allow
Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Bar/Tavern with Video Gaming) within
the CB, Central Business District (522 South State Street).

(E) Ord. #419H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Permit
In-Vehicle Sales or Service within the GB, General Business District (925
Logan Avenue).

(F) Ord. #420H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Amend a
Planned Development within the SR-4, Single Family Residential-4 District
(Shaw Mills and Glenmoor of River Run Subdivisions).

(G)Ord. #421H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 150, Zoning
Ordinance of the Municipal Code (Nonconforming Use Regulations).

(H) Ord. #422H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Permit a
Single-Family Residence within the CB, Central Business District (519 South
Main Street).

Motions forwarded from Committee of the Whole — Building, Planning and Zoning and
Public Works of August 13, 2018. Public Works Motions — Chairman Brooks:

(A) Motion to provide barricades on Whitney Blvd between Buchanan Street and
Locust Street and State Street and Pleasant Street on August 21, 2018 for the
Boone County Historical Museum Ice Cream Social.



(B) Motion to approve the proposal from Northern Contracting, in the amount of
$9,620 for the installation of a 30” cantilever gate. This work will be paid for
from Street Department line item #01-5-310-6002.

(11) Other:

(A)Executive Session to discuss Collective Bargaining Matters pursuant to
2 (c) 2 — Fire Officers.

(12) Adjournment:



State of Illinois SS
Belvidere, Illinois

Belvidere City Council
Regular Session
Minutes

Date: August 6, 2018

Convened in the Belvidere City Council Chambers, 401 Whitney Blvd, Belvidere
Ilinois at 7 p.m.

Call to order by Mayor Chamberlain.

(1) Roll Call: Present: R. Brooks, G. Crawford, M. Freeman,
T. Porter, T. Ratcliffe, D. Snow and C. Stevens.
Absent: M. Borowicz, W. Frank (arrived at 7:11 p.m.) and M. Sanderson.

Other staff members in attendance:

Budget and Finance Director Becky Tobin, Building Director Lesa Morelock,

Public Works Director Brent Anderson, Treasurer Thornton, Community Development
Planner Gina DelRose, Fire Chief Hyser, Deputy Chief Wallace, City Attorney Drella
and City Clerk Arco.

(2) Pledge of Allegiance:
Invocation:

(3) Public Comment:
(4) Approval of Minutes:

(A) Approval of minutes of the regular meeting of the Belvidere City Council of
July 16, 2018; as presented.

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Brooks to approve the minutes of the regular
meeting of the Belvidere City Council of July 16, 2018. Roll Call Vote: 7/0 in favor.
Ayes: Brooks, Crawford, Freeman, Porter, Ratcliffe, Snow and Stevens. Nays: None.
Motion carried.

(5) Public Hearing:  Annexation Agreement — 1313 North State Street.

Mayor Chamberlain opened the public hearing at 7:03 p.m. and read the Notice of Public
hearing that appeared in the Boone County Journal on July 13, 2018.

Mayor Chamberlain asked if anyone wished to address the public hearing, there being
none the public hearing closed at 7:07 p.m.



Belvidere City Council
August 6, 2018 2

(6) Special Messages: None.
(7) Approval of Expenditures: None.
(8) Committee Reports & Minutes of City Officers:

(A) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of July 3, 2018 through
July 16, 2018.

(B) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of July 17, 2018 through
July 30, 2018.

(C) Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of July 4, 2018 through
July 17, 2018.

(D) Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of July 18, 2018 through
July 31, 2018.

(E) Monthly Report of Community Development Department - Planning
Department for July 2018.

(F) Monthly Building Department Revenue Report for July 2018.

Let the record show these reports were placed on file.

(G) Minutes of Committee of the Whole — Public Safety and Finance and
Personnel of July 23, 2018.

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Freeman to approve the minutes of Committee of
the Whole — Public Safety and Finance and Personnel of July 23, 2018. Roll Call Vote:
6/0/1 in favor. Ayes: Crawford, Freeman, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens and Brooks. Nays:
None. Abstain: Porter. Motion carried.

(9) Unfinished Business:

(A)Ord. #406H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Allow
Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Bar/Tavern with Video Gaming) within the
GB, General Business District (1119 North State Street).

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2" by Ald. Crawford to pass Ord. #406H. Roll Call Vote: 6/1 in
favor. Ayes: Freeman, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Brooks, Crawford. Nays: Porter.
Motion carried.

(B) Ord. #407H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use to Allow
Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Bar/Tavern with Video Gaming) within the
GB, General Business District (1105 North State Street).

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2" by Ald. Crawford to pass Ord. #407H. Roll Call Vote: 6/1 in
favor. Ayes: Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Brooks, Crawford and Freeman. Nays: Porter.
Motion carried.



Belvidere City Council
August 6,2018 3

(C)Ord. #408H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 150, Zoning
Ordinance of the Municipal Code (Establishment of Zoning Districts).

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2™ by Ald. Porter to pass Ord. #408H. Roll Call Vote: 8/0 in
favor. Ayes: Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Brooks, Crawford, Frank, Freeman and Porter.
Nays: None. Motion carried

(D)Ord. #409H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an
Annexation Agreement between the City of Belvidere and McDonald’s USA,
LLC and Robert Dixon and Richard Daniels TR.

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Ratcliffe to pass Ord. #409H. Roll Call Vote: 8/0
in favor. Ayes: Snow, Stevens, Brooks, Crawford, Frank, Freeman, Porter and Ratcliffe.
Nays: None. Motion carried.

(E) Ord. #410H — 2" Reading: An Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory located on
and Immediately North of 1313 North State Street to the City of Belvidere, Boone
County, Illinois.

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2™ by Ald. Ratcliffe to pass Ord. #410H. Roll Call Vote: 8/0 in
favor. Ayes: Stevens, Brooks, Crawford, Frank, Freeman, Porter, Ratcliffe and Snow.
Nays: None. Motion carried.

(F) Ord. #411H - 2" Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Zoning District Change
from RH, Rural Holding District to GB, General Business District (near 1313
North State Street).

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Ratcliffe to pass Ord. #411H. Roll Call Vote: 8/0
in favor. Ayes: Brooks, Crawford, Frank, Freeman, Porter, Ratcliffe, Snow and Stevens.
Motion carried.

(10) New Business:

(A)Ord. #412H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Creating a Home Rule Municipal
Retailers Occupation Tax and Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax
for the City of Belvidere, Illinois.

(B) Ord. #413H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Amending Article VII of Chapter
74, of the City of Belvidere Municipal Code to add a New Section 74-259,
Sale of Tobacco or Alternative Nicotine Products to Minors Prohibited.

(C) Ord. #414H — 1* Reading: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 98, of the City
of Belvidere Municipal Code to add a New Article IX Small Wireless
Facilities Deployment.



Belvidere City Council
August 6, 2018 4

Let the record show Ordinances #412H, #413H and #414H were placed on file for first
reading.

Motions forwarded from Committee of the Whole — Public Safety and Finance and
Personnel of July 23, 2018.

(A)Motion to approve the low bid from Williams Charles Construction, in the
amount of $576,540.07 for the Tripp Road Reconstruction Project. This work
will be paid for in accordance with the terms of the EDP Grant Agreement
with IDOT. The city’s share of the cost ($350,000 budgeted) will be paid
from Capital Funds. Roll Call Vote: 8/0 in favor. Ayes: Crawford, Frank,
Freeman, Porter, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens and Brooks. Nays: None. Motion
carried.

(11) Adjournment:

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Porter to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 p.m.
Aye voice vote carried. Motion carried.

Mayor

Attest: City Clerk




Bills Payable Summary
August 20, 2018

General Fund:
Envision Healthcare (JE)

Special Funds:
MEFT
Farmington Ponds SSA#2
Farmington Ponds SSA#3

Capital
Escrow

Total General & Special Funds:

Water & Sewer:

Total of all Funds:

$1,385,762.71
$ 29,887.42

$ 123,422.11
$§ 2,355.61
$§ 2,556.03
§ 58,492.58
$ 74,838.00

$1,677,314.46
$ 567,001.87

$2,244,316.33



Belvidere Police Department Payroll Report
Dept: 1790 8/14/2018
For Overtime Incurred between 7/31/18 and 8/13/18

Last Name: Employee ID: Total Hours: Total Overtime Pay:
Ball 00739 9 $501.26
Bell 00813 20.5 $1,141.75
Berillo 00941 21.5 $978.14
Bird 00793 10 $556.95
Blankenship 00729 4 $222.78
Danielak 00996 7 $286.65
Derry 00816 18 $1,002.51
Garcia 00988 8 $336.60
Jones 00772 14.5 $807.58
Kaplan 00858 4 $206.40
King 00868 13 $670.80
Korn 00989 19.5 $798.53
Parker,B 00686 23 $1,280.99
Polnow 00886 6 $374.31
Smaha 00659 1 $62.39
Washburn 00784 13 $811.01
Wilgus 00783 13.5 $751.88
Worley 00992 9 $368.55
Zapf 00934 15 $682.43
Totals: - - 2295 $11,841.48

V' ' s
/ ) Shane Woody
/ Chief of Police



Belvidere Fire Department
Overtime Report

Date Between {07/26/2018} And {07/26/2018} and
Staff ID = "00759"

Activity Type Hours Wkd
Date Time Incident Pay Type Hrs Paid Pay
00759 Rotolo, Charles A
07/26/2018 07:00 OT SCF Shift Coverage for 24.00 24.00 916.80
Staff Member Totals: 24.00 24.00 916.80
All Staff Member Totals: 24.00 24.00 916.80

Types: F=Fire, M=EMS/Medical, R=Rescue, O=Other

08/06/2018 10:10 Page

1



Date Between {08/01/2018} And {08/14/2018}

Belvidere Fire Department

Overtime Report

Date Time Incident Pay Type Activity Type Hours Wkd Hrs Paid Pay
00866 Beck, Mark E
08/09/2018 07:00 0T  INR Reimbursable Plan 6.00 6.00 232.62
08/13/2018 18:00 0T CPRI C.P.R. Instruction 2.00 2.00 771.54
Staff Member Totals: 8.00 8s 90 310.16
00809 Drall, Dan C
08/11/2038 07:00 0T TRD Dive/Water Rescue 4.00 4.00 153.56
Staff Member Totals: 4.00 4.00 153.56
00966 Ellwanger, Adamn A
08/01/2018 07:30 Qf TREB Initial EMT Basic 3.50 9.50 305.99
08/02/2018 08:00 o7 TREP Initial Paramedic 4.00 4.00 128.84
0D8/13/2018 ©7:30 07 TREP Tnitial Paramedic 10,50 10.50 338.20
Staff Member Totals: 24.00 24.00 773.04
00971 Heiser, Bradley Donald
08/11/2018 07:00 e TRTM TEMS Training 5,00 5.00 161.05
Staff Member Totals: 5.00 .60 h6im05
00981 Herman, Ronald David
08/11/2018 07:00 OT TRD Dive/Water Rescue 5,50 5.50 163.57
Staff Member Totals: 5.50 5.50 163.57
00601 Holmes, Gregory A
08/08/2018 18:30 07T MEM Mabas Div. 8 Meeting 2.50 2050 114.02
staff Member Totals: 2.50 2.50 114.02
00881 Kriebs, James J
08/09/2018 07:00 0T  8CS8 Shift Coverage for Sick 24.00 24.00 925.92
Staff Member Totals: 24.00 24.00 925.92
00983 Mead, Stephen C,
08/01/2018 17:30 o TRTM TEMS Training 4.00 4,410 112.56
08/09/2018 07:00 OT  CRO Shift Carry Over 0.50 0,490 14.07
Staff Member Totals: 4.50 4.50 126.63
00785 Oates, Joshua A
08/11/2018 07:00 T TRTM TEMS Training 5.00 5.00 191.95
Staff Member Totals: 5.00 5.00 191.95
00358 Pavlatos, Gregory R
08/11/2018 07:00 01 TRTM TEMS Training 5.00 5.00 159.45
Staff Member Totals: 5.00 5.00 159.45
00852 Schadle, Shawn W
08/07/2018 10:00 o TRE EMS Training 2.50 2.50 114.02
08/08/72018 10:00 o1 TRE EMS Training 2.50 2.50 114,02
08/11/2018 07:00 0T  TRD Dive/Wabter Rescue 6.00 6.00 213,66

08/15/2018 03:11

Page

1



Belvidere Fire Department

Overtime Report

Date Between {08/01/2018} And {08/14/2018}

Date Time Inaident Pay Type Activity Type Hours Wkd Hrs Paid Pay
00852 Schadle, Shawn W
Staff Member Totals: 11.00 11.00 501.71
00969 Tangye, Travis N
08/01/2018 07:00 OT IN Ingpection Bureau 2.006 2.00 64.42
08/01/2018 17:30 OT TRTM TEMS Training 4.00 4,00 128.84
Staff Member Totals: 6.00 6.00 193.26
00556 Wilcox, Craig A
08/09/2018 07:00 OT INR Reimbursable Plan 5,00 5.00 218.55
08/11/2018 07:00 0T TRD Dive/Water Rescue 5,50 5.50 240.40
Staff Member Totals: 10.50 10.50 458 185
All Staff Member Totals: 115.00 115,00 4,233.28
Types: F=Fire, M=EMS/Medical, R=Rescue, O=Other
08/15/2018 09:14 Page 2



MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT

Activity for the month of: July 2018
Month's Qutstanding
Beginning Due to or Ending Interfund Ending
Cash Receipts Expenditures  Due From Cash Loans + Fund
FUND FUND # Balance (Cash In) (Cash Out) Activity Balance Borrowings - Balance
General 01 11,922,820.57 983,865.29 1,840,963.72 11,065,722.14 | 29,102.65 | 11,094,824.79
Forestry 01 (312,837.56) 0.00 1,218.65 (314.056.21) (314,056.21)
Landfil 01 (4,206,91) 0.00 0.00 (4,206.91) (4,206.91)
IMR F/Soc Sec 01 (104,106.88) 14,656.53 59,064 55 (148,514.90) (148,514.90)
Community Dev Fund 01 (909,644.30) 22,031.80 37,494 .06 (925,106.56) (925,106.56)
Liability Insurance a1 (1,111,414.90) 0.00 0.00 (1,111,414.90) (1,111,414 .90)
General Fund 01 9,480,610.02 | 1,020,553.62 | 1,938,740.98 0.00 | 8,562,422.66 | 29,102.65 | 8,591,525.31
|Motor Fuel Tax 10 456,823 .68 50,051.60 326,149.54 180,725.74 180,725.74
Kishwaukee TIF 13 32.198 91 0.00 0.00 32,198.91 | (55,710.13) (23,511.22)
Kishaukee 2 TIF 15 491477 0.00 0.00 491477 4,814.77
Special Service Area 2 16 13.137.43 0.00 5,606.65 7,530.78 7,530.78
Special Service Area 3 17 6,086.51 0.00 3.416.83 2.669.68 2,669.68
Capital Projec!s - general
Utility Tax Fund 41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Public Improvement 41 (32,767.20) 16.61 0.00 {32.750.59) (32,750.59)
Capital Fund (752) 41 864,468.17 8,330.65 101,783.83 771.014.99 771,014.99
State Street Bridge 41 56,117.81 0.00 0.00 56,117.81 56,117.81
Capitat Projects 41 887,818.7_8 8,347.26 101,783.83 0.00 794,382.21 0.00 794,382.21
VWIS General Admin 61 75,633.08 0.00 0.00 75,633.08 75,633.08
Water - operations 61 533,689 94 206,923.50 172,833.67 | 46,246.17 614,025.94 614,025.94
W / S - bond proceeds 61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
W /S - band payments 61 102,079.26 16,720.39 0.00 118,799.65 118,799.65
W /S - bond reserves 61 592,847 32 731.63 0.00 593,578.95 593,578.95
Sewer - operations 61 995,593 5¢ 236,786.56 279.317.28 | 46,246.17 999,309.04 999,309.04
W/S Cap Imprv (Depr) 04-09 61 1,008,366.19 27,650.40 0.00 1,036,016.59 1.036,016.59
WIS Connection/Agr Fees 05-10 61 2,683,64163 6.515.00 0.00 2,690,156.63 2,690,156.63
Sewer Plant Equip Repl 06-08 61 1.487,902.39 44,717.00 41,412,95 1,491,206.44 1,491,206.44
Water / Sewer Fund 61 7.479,753.40 540,044.48 493,563.90 92,4_92.34 7,618,726.32 0.00 7,618,726.32
Escrow 91 546,890.55 435.03 0.00 547,325.58 547,325.58
TOTAL 18,908,234.05 1,619,431.99 | 2,869,261.73 | 92,492.34 | 17,750,896.65 | 26,607.48 | 17,724,289.17
Ending Due From + Ending
Money Trust Cash Due To - Fund

FUND FUND # Checking Market CD's Acct Balance Other Funds Balance
General Fund 01 529,876.53 1.452,406.90 6,580,139.23 8,562,422.66 | 29,102.65 8,591,525.31
Motor Fuel Tax 10 56,206 .64 124,519.10 180,725.74 180,725.74
Kishwaukee TIF 13 32,198.91 0.00 32,198.91 | (55,710.13) (23,5611.22)
Kishwaukee 2 TIF 15 4.914.77 0.00 4,914.77 4,914.77
Sp Srv Areas #2-Farmington 16 7.530.78 0.00 7,530.78 7,530.78
Sp Srv Areas #3-Farmington 17 2,669.68 0.00 2,669.68 2,669.68
Capital Projects 41 3,443.85 287.685.00 503,253,36 794,382,221 794,382.21
Water / Sewer Fund 61 725,779.73 777.606.64 | 6,115,339.95 7.618,726.32 7.618,726.32
Escrow 91 178,131.02 369,194.56 0.00 547,325.58 547,325.58
TOTAL 1.540,751.91 3,011,412.20 | 13,198,732.54 0.00 | 17,750,896.65 | (26,607.48)| 17,724,289.17
Fire Department - 2% Fund 19 817.83 | 30,348.78 | | | 31,166.61 | | 31,166.61
Seized Vehicles 5,616.92 5,616.92 5,616.92
Drug Operations 69,323.92 69,323.92 69,323.92
State Asset Forfeiture 49,522.85 49,522.85 49,522.85
Federal Forfeiture 61,340.02 61,340.02 61,340.02
Auction 59,866.04 59,866.04 59,866 .04
Metro Narcotics 5.060.52 5,060.52 5,060.52
Metro Narcotics OAF 1.283.00 1,283.00 1,283.00
Belvidere QOAF 553.50 553.50 553.50
TOTAL POLICE FUNDS as of June 2018 252,566.77 252,566.77 252,566.77




INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE GENERAL FUND

Through July 2018
Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
General Administration
RE Property Tax 01-4-110-4010 1,843,251.00 1,759,868.97 0.00 714,563.66 1,769,385 40%
Hotel / Motel Tax 01-4-110-4011 2,748.68 2,579.99 19.65 58.95 3,356 2%
Auto Rental Tax 01-4-110-4012 6,418.98 6,794.30 520.55 1,540.97 6,480 24%
Muni Infrastructure Maint 01-4-110-4013 150,224.37 131,450.51 10,226.16 29,368.09 142,800 21%
State Income Tax 01-4-110-4100 2,436,019.36 2,710,100.59  219,178.70 732,181.63 2,451,043 30%
Muni Sales Tax 01-4-110-4110 3,310,595.26  3,427,287.63  288,562.59 876,373.86 3,471,350 25%
Sales Tax to Developer 01-4-110-4111 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Local Use Tax 01-4-110-4112 625,105,54 663,704.70 52,825.16 163,469.87 672,885 24%
Replacement Tax 01-4-110-4120 534,532.21 433,270.17 74,437.45 169,966.43 505,727 34%
Repl Tax Dist to Pensions 01-4-110-4121 (264,958.00) (260,246.00) 0.00 0.00 (268,051) 0%
State Grants 01-4-110-4150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Grants (NDevelopment) 01-4-110-4151 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Business License 01-4-110-4200 15,870.00 15,340.00 220.00 10,575.00 17,850 59%
Liquor License & Fines 01-4-110-4210 104,050.00 157,450.00 0.00 107,450.00 114,700 94%
Amusement Machine 01-4-110-4230 8,400.00 9,800.00 0.00 48,300.00 10,300 469%
Court Fines 01-4-110-4400 269,744.37 326,213.98 31,953.51 105,671.47 313,271 34%
Parking Fines 01-4-110-4410 5,743.12 12,731.00 317.00 2,192.00 5,975 7%
Seized Vehicle Fee 01-4-110-4420 57,900.00 90,450.00 3,300.00 21,000.00 79,200 27%
Engr Fees-Subdivision 01-4-110-4430 14,005.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000 0%
Video Gambling 01-4-110-4440 229,469.55 279,016.24 28,924.23 89,621.56 273,600 33%
Franchise Fees 01-4-110-4450 270,606.66 279,541.15 0.00 69,269.78 282,795 24%
Comcast Fees 01-4-110-4455 19,662.65 2,160.90 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Death/Birth Certificates 01-4-110-4460 20,255.00 18,818.00 2,396.52 7,490.52 18,379 41%
Accident/Fire Reports 01-4-110-4470 4,258.85 6,060.00 559.00 2,279.00 5,370 42%
Annexation/Plat Fees 01-4-110-4471 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000 0%
Tipping Fees 01-4-110-4472 66,634.64 83,373.68 9,156.17 19,272.81 84,500 23%
Fuel Charges (outside vendors) 01-4-110-4550 0.00 211,852.37 22,999.30 56,047.03 245,876 23%
Interest Income 01-4-110-4600 39,813.97 55,202.89 3,055.83 4,016.55 74,750 5%
Misc Revenues 01-4-110-4900 26,134.26 13,512.51 1,5655.00 6,506.38 26,700 24%
Heritage Days 01-4-110-4901 53,386.00 88,700.24 1,467.46 77,388.02 0 0%
Historic Pres. Fund Raising 01-4-110-4902 160.00 8,115.00 0.00 497.07 0 0%
Historic Pres. Grant Reimb. 01-4-110-4903 9,052.56 0.00 0.00 16,288.89 0 0%
Operating Transfer in (Reserve: 01-4-110-9898 1,026,870.07 22,510.55 0.00 0.00 676,844 0%
Total General Administration Revenues 10,885,954.10 10,555,659.37 75167428 3,331,389.54 11,025,085 30%
Salaries - Elected Officials 01-5-110-5000 207,623.48 213,878.30 16,958.58 56,395.43 214,542 26%
Salaries - Regular - FT 01-5-110-5010 221,324.13 226,430.75 22,655.12 76,539.36 230,962 33%
Group Health Insurance 01-5-110-5130 469,397.37 454,004.09 41,590.11 120,485.97 518,757 23%
Health Ins Claims Pd (Dental) 01-5-110-5131 28,915.36 29,787.65 2,884.80 6,563.80 35,000 19%
Group Life Insurance 01-5-110-5132 1,336.50 1,379.70 120.15 349.65 1,450 24%
Health insurance Reimb. 01-4-110-4540 (153,131.82) (156,965.81)  (11,293.83) (36,158.37) (160,588) 23%
Unemployment Compensation 01-5-110-5136 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Meeting & Conferences 01-5-110-5154 11,208.73 13,284.76 1,350.65 1,752.94 14,850 12%
Subscriptions/Ed Materials 01-5-110-5156 552.90 431.61 0.00 136.80 650 21%
Gen Admin Personnel & Benefit Expenses 787,226.65 782,231.05 74,265.58 226,065.58 855,623 26%
Repairs/Maint - Bldgs 01-5-110-6010 34,784.35 19,803.99 1,242.26 7,164.00 24,200 30%
Repairs/Maint - Equip 01-5-110-6020 3,424 .32 3,925.16 345.08 656.71 5,000 13%
Legal 01-5-110-6110 7,450.91 6,082.96 556.65 1,867.69 22,000 8%
Other Professional Services  01-5-110-6120 0.00 2,169.40 7.24 7.24 5,000 0%
Grant Expenses (NDev) 01-5-110-6191 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Telephone 01-5-110-6200 20,424.85 21,934.88 2,861.53 4,761.65 21,630 22%
Codification 01-5-110-6225 8,442.83 5,231.40 0.00 0.00 2,000 0%
Other Communications 01-5-110-6290 4,037.44 2,805.52 223.85 615.45 3,330 18%
Gen Admin Contractual Expenses 78,564.70 61,953.31 5,236.61 15,072.74 83,160 18%

Page 1 of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%
General Administration (cont) Account # FY 17 FY 17 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
Office Supplies 01-5-110-7020 39,061.21 45,067.99 3,077.13 5,611.11 56,500 10%
Gas and Oil 01-5-110-7030 0.00 0.00 6,298.68 6,298.68 170,000 4%
Other Supplies 01-5-110-7800 5,417.00 5,281.54 557.68 878.83 6,800 13%
Gen Admin Supplies Expenses 44.478.21 50,349.53 9,933.49 12,788.62 233,300 5%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-110-7900 72,206.98 83,627.17 1,388.84 17,463.66 79,930 22%
Reimb of Seized Vehicie Fee 01-5-110-7901 1,207.50 600.00 0.00 300.00 0 0%
Heritage Days 01-5-110-7902 56,780.67 74,996.12 20,534.80 86,381.03 0 0%
Comcast Charges 01-5-110-7903 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Historic Preservation 01-5-110-7904 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Operating Transfers Out 01-5-110-9999 536,965.18 383,828.00 0.00 299,622.00 599,243 50%
Total General Administration Expenses 1,577,429.89 1,437,585.18 111,359.32 657,693.63 1,851,256 36%
NET GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 9,308,524.21 9,118,074.19 640,314.96 2,673,695.91 9,173,829 29%
General Fund - Audit Department
RE Taxes - Audit 01-4-130-4010 20,057.42 20,040.98 0.00 8,087.62 20,000 40%
Accounting & Auditing 01-5-130-6100 35,100.00 34,920.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 36,500 19%
NET - AUDIT DEPARTMENT (15,042.58) (14,879.02) (7,000.00) 1,087.62 (16,500) 7%
General Fund - IMRF Department
RE Taxes - IMRF 01-4-140-4010 72,109.86 65,142.80 0.00 26,255.60 65,000 40%
Replacement Tax 01-4-140-4120 92,535.00 90,889.00 0.00 0.00 93,615 0%
Interest income 01-4-140-4600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-140-4940 26,688.39 24,892.52 2,371.46 7,667.91 31.340 24%
Total IMRF Revenues 191,333.25 180,924.32 2,371.46 33,923.51 189,955 18%
IMRF Premium Expense 01-5-140-5120 210,445 .44 194,160.51 33,286.63 46,449.31 179,872 26%
NET - IMRF DEPARTMENT (19,112.19) (13,236.19)  (30,915.17) (12,525.80) 10,083 -124%
General Fund - Social Security Department
RE Taxes - FICA/Med 01-4-150-4010 225,346.90 200,385.68 0.00 80,771.63 200,000 40%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-150-4940 127,996.70 128,779.38 10,037.79 36,396.47 134,731 27%
Library Expense Reimb. 01-4-150-4941 28,310.72 28,653.10 2,247.28 7,515.68 30,600 25%
Total Soc Security Revenues 381,654.32 357,818.16 12,285.07 124,683.78 365,331 34%
FICA Expense 01-5-150-5110 201,288.27 202,747 .55 15,793.73 55,840.29 217,739 26%
Medicare Expense 01-5-150-5112 127,5611.29 128,761.10 9,984.19 36,996.13 138,284 27%
Total Soc Security Expenses 328,799.56 331,508.65 2577792 92,836.42 356,023 268%
NET - SOCIAL SECURITY DEPT 52,854.76 26,309.51 (13,492.85) 31,847.36 9,308 242%
General Fund - Liability Insurance Dept
RE Taxes - Ins Liability 01-4-160-4010 320,477.21 290,560.41 0.00 121,165.49 300,000 40%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-160-4940 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - 0%
Total Liability Insurance Revenues 320,477.21 290,560.41 0.00 121,165.49 300,000 40%
Insurance Premium 01-5-160-6800 449,520.12 452,758.88 0.00 0.00 488,060 0%
NET - LIABILITY INSURANCE DEPT (129,042.91) (162,198.47) 0.00 121,165.49 (188,060) -64%

Page 20of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Police Department Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
RE Property Tax 01-4-210-4010 1,046,390.82 1,107,755.95 0.00 485,201.39 1,201,417 40%
Grants 01-4-210-4150 88,764.64 26,682.37 0.00 1,782.90 29,760 6%
Sex Offender Reg Fee 01-4-210-4480 3,240.00 7,510.00 200.00 1,180.00 5,000 0%
Miscellaneous Revenues 01-4-210-4900 131,676.98 183,034.11 14,914.00 35,010.73 175,287 20%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-210-4940 11,641.11 4,558.00 3,008.75 3,008.75 0 0%
Sale of Assets 01-4-210-4950 6,233.33 11,970.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Total Police Department Revenues 1,287,946.88 1,341,510.43 18,122.75 526,183.77 1,411,464 37%
Salary - Regular - FT 01-5-210-5010 3,236,497.86 3,356,981.88  266,740.26 1,003,070.53 3,533,117 28%
Overtime 01-5-210-5040 410,571.39 315,416.26 23,947.95 79,225.94 400,000 20%
Police Pension 01-5-210-5122 1,026,333.40 1,087,714.97  477,113.77 477,113.77 1,181,417 40%
Health Insurance 01-5-210-5130 733,616.37 832,854.34 70,391.04 214,791.51 911,807 24%
Dental claims 01-5-210-5131 40,544.26 54,588.08 7,626.97 17,483.17 50,000 35%
Unemployment Compensation 01-5-210-5136 11,771.00 10,393.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Uniform Allowance 01-5-210-5140 64,295.91 67,481.12 25465 428.46 72,367 1%
Training 01-5-210-5152 79,508.65 58,458.67 3,393.22 7,408.71 83,305 9%
Police Dept Personnel & Benefit Expenses 5,603,138.84 5,783,888.32 849 467.86 1,799,522.09 6,232,013 29%
Repair/Maint-Equipment 01-5-210-6020 8,342.61 9,973.61 204.38 4,052.78 20,656 20%
Repair/Maint-Vehicles 01-5-210-6030 64,832.94 77,070.58 9,695.62 17,512.11 99,050 18%
Telephone/Utilities 01-5-210-6200 42,940.62 41,675.83 1,827.48 25,361.90 43,800 58%
Physical Exams 01-5-210-6810 210.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,135 0%
Community Policing 01-5-210-6816 7,991.22 7,830.41 822.85 895.69 9,500 9%
K 9 Program Expenses 01-5-210-6818 3,301.45 15,594.38 290.94 416.92 5,550 8%
Sex Offender State Disburse  01-5-210-6835 2,080.00 2,985.00 260.00 355.00 3,250 0%
Police Department - Contractual Expenses 129,698.84 155,129.81 13,101.27 48,594.40 183,941 26%
Office Supplies 01-5-210-7020 6,472.45 6,409.54 1,005.71 1,368.02 10,850 13%
Gas & Qil 01-5-210-7030 70,384.40 99,685.98 8,706.20 18,340.26 100,000 18%
Operating Supplies 01-5-210-7040 36,697.71 24 660.57 329.14 668.78 45,185 1%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-210-7900 37,100.96 35,482.95 760.39 1,188.69 40,800 3%
Police Department - Supplies Expense 150,655.52 166,239.04 10,801.44 21,565.75 196,835 1%
Equipment 01-5-210-8200 45,298.05 39,104.62 3,947.91 4,750.18 74,830 6%
Vehicles 01-5-210-8300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Total Police Department Expenses 5,928,791.25 6,144,361.79  877,318.48 187443242 6,687,619 28%
NET - POLICE DEPARTMENT (4,640,844) (4,802,851) (859,196) (1,348,249)  (5,276,155) 26%
Public Safety Building Department

Salaries - Regular - FT 01-5-215-5010 602,190.90 639,282.47 47,604.06 104,019.89 708,098 15%
Other (FICA & IMRF) 01-5-215-5079 105,206.33 110,384.54 8,149.82 17,808.21 124,979 14%
Other Contractual Services 01-5-215-6890 275,223.55 299,759.63 26,956.05 58,760.09 283,232 21%
NET - PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG DEPT (982,620.78) (1,049,426.64) (82,709.93) (180,588.19) (1,116,309) 16%

Page 3 of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Fire Department Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
RE Property Tax 01-4-220-4010 818,109.40 990,630.02 0.00 412,392.61 1,021,132 40%
Grants 01-4-220-4150 1,000.00 15,755.74 0.00 5,965.97 5,000 0%
Miscellaneous Revenues 01-4-220-4900 36,031.31 13,979.92 1,459.55 2,884 .48 25,000 12%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-220-4940 1,012.98 37,771.00 0.00 223.41 0 0%
Sale of Assets 01-4-220-4950 0.00 10.100.00 0.00 0.00 10,000 0%
Total Fire Department Revenues 856,153.69 1,068,236.68 1,459.55 421,466.47 1,061,132 40%
Salaries - Regular - FT 01-5-220-5010 1,969,596.22 2,068,633.52 157,729.11 614,866.53 2,157,165 29%
Overtime 01-5-220-5040 200,784.91 136,531.18 13,890.57 45,077.51 183,250 25%
Fire Pension 01-5-220-5124 798,051.98 970,589.04  404,304.99 404,304.99 1,001,132 40%
Heaith Insurance 01-5-220-5130 422,210.56 495,623.54 42,918.19 129,873.50 507,253 26%
Dental Insurance 01-5-220-5131 21,499.64 27,129.39 3,423.00 5,537.72 32,000 17%
Unemployment Compensation 01-5-220-5136 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Uniform Allowance 01-5-220-5140 30,429.01 29,482.63 3,219.93 6,599.49 32,300 20%
Training 01-5-220-5152 31,096.97 18,816.26 0.00 1,400.15 20,600 7%
Fire Depart Personnel & Benefits Expenses 3,473,669.29 3,746,805.56 62548579 1,207,659.89 3,933,700 31%
Repair/Maint-Bldg 01-5-220-6010 57,115.64 47,639.91 317.70 1,883.34 42,350 4%
Repair/Maint-Equipment 01-5-220-6020 0.00 7,889.99 0.00 513.48 14,200 4%
Repair/Maint-Vehicles 01-5-220-6030 57,015.82 36,582.75 341.99 3,846.03 53,500 7%
Telephone/Utilities 01-5-220-6200 11,697.06 19,202.62 690.31 1,950.69 15,240 13%
Physical Exams 01-5-220-6810 654.50 708.00 0.00 0.00 2,500 0%
Fire Prevention 01-5-220-6822 8,983.96 10,251.54 153.00 1,130.79 12,000 9%
Emergency Med Supplies 01-5-220-6824 0.00 9,760.71 40544 1,135.95 11,500 0%
Fire Department - Contractual Expenses 135,466.98 132,036.52 1,908.44 10,460.28 151,290 7%
Office Supplies 01-5-220-7020 12,685.62 11,665.64 540.87 1,536.91 14,100 11%
Gas & Oil 01-5-220-7030 14,367.49 18,927.06 1,728.63 3,499.58 20,000 17%
Operating Supplies 01-5-220-7040 6,830.98 8,606.67 390.46 2,102.05 8,000 26%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-220-7900 1,296.45 588.80 354.91 354.91 1,000 35%
Fire Department - Supplies Expenses 35,180.54 39,788.17 3,014.87 7,493.45 43,100 17%
Equipment 01-5-220-8200 53,632.91 42,800.39 2,001.46 3,262.56 25,000 13%
Total Fire Department Expenses 3,697,949.72 3,961,430.64 63241056 1,228876.18 4,153,080 30%
NET - FIRE DEPARTMENT (2,841,796.03) (2,893,193.96) (630,951.01) (807,409.71) (3,091,958) 26%
Police & Fire Commission Department

Physical Exams 01-5-225-6810 13,100.90 18,663.60 0.00 103.00 16,500 1%
Other Contractual Services 01-5-225-6890 9,417.64 21,302.72 75.00 2,046.61 10,015 20%
NET - POLICE & FIRE COMMISSION (22,518.54) (39,966.32) (75.00) (2,149.61) (26,515) 8%

Page 4 of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Community Development Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
Building Permits 01-4-230-4300 235,547.00 106,298.00 15,805.00 38,435.00 205,259 19%
Electric Permits 01-4-230-4310 19,798.50 13,270.50 143.00 2,509.00 19,965 13%
Electrician Certification Fees  01-4-230-4315 2,900.00 4,200.00 0.00 350.00 3,050 1%
Plumbing Permits 01-4-230-4320 17,392.50 10,390.00 130.00 1,5692.50 12,626 13%
HVAC Permits 01-4-230-4330 11,156.25 4,224.00 120.00 1,109.00 5,500 20%
Plan Review Fees 01-4-230-4340 76,325.75 7,826.25 0.00 403.00 40,000 1%
Sidewalk/Lot Grading Fees 01-4-230-4350 1,487.50 1,360.00 0.00 255.00 1,575 16%
Insulation Permits 01-4-230-4360 4,060.00 1,237.50 0.00 215.00 1,812 12%
Zoning Review Fee 01-4-230-4370 3,215.00 2,910.00 322.50 1,120.00 3,535 32%
Code Enforcement 01-4-230-4380 6,300.00 6,400.00 200.00 1,100.00 5,900 19%
Other Permits 01-4-230-43390 4,682.50 4,730.00 525.00 1,822.50 5,861 31%
Miscellaneous Revenues 01-4-230-4900 25.00 102.50 0.00 0.00 250 0%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-230-4940 2,569.25 1,370.83 533.80 1,185.74 2,000 0%
Planning Fees 01-4-230-4950 21,498.75 11,871.50 4,150.00 7,775.00 13,500 58%
Planning Misc. 01-4-230-4955 12,801.34 2,060.00 102.50 530.00 1,000 53%
Building Department - Revenues 419,759.34 178,251.08 22,031.80 58,401.74 321,833 18%
Salaries- Regular - FT 01-5-230-5010 213,387.45 207,201.12 19,217.60 62,138.57 252,208 25%
FICA 01-5-230-5079 16,324.12 15,850.89 1,470.14 4,753.59 19,294 25%
IMRF 01-5-230-5120 26,688.39 24,892.52 2,371.46 7,667.91 31,340 24%
Heaith Ins Expense 01-5-230-5130 59,052.36 69,550.97 7,367.00 19,463.34 98,917 20%
Dental Insurance 01-5-230-5131 2,059.20 3,803.88 313.60 494 40 5,000 10%
Unemployment 01-5-230-5136 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Training 01-5-230-5152 1,147.00 1,355.87 540.00 1,078.30 4,000 27%
Building Dept Personnel & Benefits Expense 318,658.52 322,655.25 31,279.80 95,596.11 410,759 23%
Repair/Maint - Equip 01-5-230-6020 5,331.66 6,478.55 1,224,76 2,615.79 5,500 48%
Repair/Maint - Vehicles 01-5-230-6030 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500 0%
Other Professional Services  01-5-230-6190 45,691.08 45,939.84 2,958.32 8,874.96 46,000 19%
Telephone 01-5-230-6200 2,002.33 2,048.79 200.63 443.10 3,000 15%
Postage 01-5-230-6210 6,279.70 3,373.10 870.51 870.51 2,000 44%
Printing & Publishing 01-5-230-6220 2,504.48 3,361.97 510.00 606.95 2,875 21%
Building Department - Contractual Expenses 61,809.25 61,202.25 5,764.22 13,411.31 60,875 22%
Office Supplies 01-5-230-7020 6,616.86 6,661.11 276.51 827.68 7,100 12%
Gas & Oil 01-5-230-7030 625.68 592.92 89.60 159,82 1,700 9%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-230-7900 1,142.81 502.92 83.93 83.93 1,000 8%
Operating Transfer Out 01-5-230-9999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Building Department - Supplies Expenses 8,385.35 7,756.95 450.04 1,071.43 9,800 1%
Total Building Department Expenses 388,853.12 391,614.45 37,494.06 110,078.85 481,434 23%
NET - BUILDING DEPARTMENT 30,906.22  (213,363.37) (15,462.26) (51,677.11) (159,601) 32%
Civil Defense Department

RE Tax - Civil Defense 01-4-240-4010 7,032.46 7,030.74 0.00 2,828.04 7,000 40%
Miscellaneous Revenues 01-4-240-4900 25,285.36 631.35 0.00 0.00 0 #DIv/o!
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-240-7900 30,687.50 83,747.22 0.00 0.00 7,000 0%
NET - CIVIL DEFENSE DEPARTMENT 1,630.32 (76,085.13) 0.00 2,828.04 0 #DIViO!

Page 5 of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Street Department Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
RE Tax - Road & Bridge 01-4-310-4010 320,508.22 320,365.58 0.00 133,764.76 320,000 42%
Grants 01-4-310-4150 0.00 60,503.12 34,980.00 34,980.00 0 0%
Sidewalk/Driveway/Lot Grading 01-4-310-4350 2,940.00 2,220.00 240.00 600.00 2,000 30%
Miscellaneous Revenues 01-4-310-4900 5,374.04 1,822.38 0.00 200.00 3,000 0%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-310-4940 67,971.36 34,421.34 2,446.65 7,608.35 10,000 0%
Expense Reimbursement 01-5-310-4940 (18,583.89) (210,670.36) 0.00 (39,605.40) - #DIV/O!
Sale of Assets 01-4-310-4950 7,100.00 0.00 12,637.50 12,637.50 - #DIV/O!
Street Department - Revenues 385,309.73 208,662.06 50,304.15 150,185.21 335,000 45%
Salaries - Regular - FT 01-5-310-5010 583,028.64 580,406.51 44,914 66 152,601.75 623,098 24%
Overtime 01-5-310-5040 42 551.26 37,416.56 1,267.60 7,912.65 40,000 20%
Health Insurance 01-5-310-5130 219,296.47 220,842.37 12,918.20 34,192.67 233,560 15%
Uniform Allowance 01-5-310-5140 13,047.28 16,329.15 983.34 2,436.27 15,000 16%
Training 01-5-310-5152 710.00 293.10 0.00 0.00 1,500 0%
Street Dept - Personnel & Benefits Expenses 858,633.65 855,287.69 60,083.80 197,143.34 913,158 22%
Repair/Maint - Storm Drain 01-5-310-6001 24,632.80 27,988.96 8,972.88 11,564.98 25,000 46%
Repair/Maint - St/Parking Lot  01-5-310-6002 87,243.71 119,636.90 8,829.15 27,870.27 95,000 29%
Repair/Maint - Sidewalk/Curb  01-5-310-6003 43,102.36 54,680.98 13,155.16 26,788.76 40,000 67%
Repair/Maint - Building 01-5-310-6010 19,295.50 14,190.21 251.06 1,122.78 13,000 9%
Repair/Maint - Equipment 01-5-310-6020 82,224 .48 114,315.41 5,249.47 (5,328.54) 110,000 -5%
Repair/Maint - Traffic Signal ~ 01-5-310-6024 81,592,52 88,578.51 0.00 6,749.44 30,000 22%
Telephone/Utilities 01-5-310-6200 7,166.18 7,632.54 678.17 1,261.33 6,500 19%
Leaf Clean-up/Removal 01-5-310-6826 10,592.30 9,296.40 0.00 0.00 12,000 0%
Street Department - Contractual Expenses 355,849.85 436,319.91 37,135.89 70,029.02 331,500 21%
Office Supplies 01-5-310-7020 6,919.17 4,707.63 423.44 684.18 6,000 11%
Gas & Oil 01-5-310-7030 49,327 .64 73,272.48 4,061.80 7,731.24 75,000 10%
Operating Supplies 01-5-310-7040 29,559.93 32,087.06 2,001.91 3,532.75 25,000 14%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-310-7900 1,179.69 1,165.50 150.00 183.41 2,000 0%
Street Department - Supplies Expenses 86,986.43 111,232.67 6,637.15 12,131.58 108,000 11%
Equipment 01-5-310-8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Total Street Department Expenses 1,301,469.93 1,402,840.27 103,856.84 279,303.94 1,352,658 21%
NET - STREET DEPARTMENT (916,160.20) (1,194,178.21)  (53,552.69) (129,118.73) (1,017,658) 13%
Street Lighting

RE Tax - Street Lighting 01-4-330-4010 210,318.07 200,385.68 0.00 84,815.44 210,000 40%
Expense Reimbursement 01-5-330-4940 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Repair/ Maint - Street Light 01-5-330-6022 74,151.47 140,835.41 0.00 5,286.00 40,000 13%
Street Lighting - electricity 01-5-330-6310 285,611.12 278,689.77 22,624.42 44,350.47 280,000 16%
NET - STREET LIGHTING (149,444.52) (219,139.50)  (22,624.42) 35,178.97 (110,000) -32%

Page 6 of 7



Actual Actual Month of YTD Actual Budget 25%

Landfill Department Account # FY 17 FY 18 July for FY 19 FY 19 of budget
RE Tax - Refuse/Landfill 01-4-335-4010 45,081.73 45,101.85 0.00 20,196.92 50,000 40%
Miscellneous Revenue 01-4-335-4900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Miscellaneous Expenses 01-5-335-7900 47,563.60 68,103.20 0.00 0.00 56,000 0%
NET - GARBAGE DEPARTMENT (2,481.87) (23,001.35) 0.00 20,196.92 (6,000) -337%
Forestry Department
RE Tax - Forestry 01-4-340-4010 40,081.62 35,081.34 0.00 16,165.21 40,000 40%
Other Fees 01-4-340-4490 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Miscellaneous 01-4-340-49500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Forestry Department Revenues 40,081.62 35,081.34 0.00 16,165.21 40,000 40%
Repair/ Maint - Other 01-5-340-6080 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Tree Removal or Purchase 01-5-340-6850 127,536.00 91,591.98 1,218.65 1,576.65 80,000 2%
Miscellaneous Expense 01-5-340-7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - #DIV/Q!
Forestry Department Expensess 127,536.00 91,591.98 1,218.65 1,576.65 80,000 2%
NET - FORESTRY DEPARTMENT (87,454.38) (56,510.64) (1,218.65) 14,588.56 (40,000) 0%
Engineering Department
Engineering 01-5-360-6140 387.50 31,641.67 2,700.00 4,731.64 27,000 18%
Subdivision Expense 01-5-360-6824 8,735.00 1,508.00 0.00 0.00 10,000 0%
Office Supplies 01-5-360-7020 7,023.73 7,013.20 13417 380.08 8,000 5%
Gas & Oil 01-5-360-7030 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - 0%
NET - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT (16,146.23) (40,162.87) (2,834.17) (5,111.72) (45,000) 1%
Health / Social Services
Council on Aging 01-5-410-6830 33,000.00 23,000.00 0.00 0.00 23,000 0%
Demolition / Nuisance 01-5-410-6832 0.00 2,105.00 225.00 225.00 5,000 5%
NET - HEALTH / SOCIAL SERVICES (33,000.00) (25,105.00) (225.00) (225.00) (28,000) 1%
Economic Development
Planning Dept Services 01-5-610-6150 52,650.00 49,923.81 0.00 0.00 57,500 0%
Economic / Business 01-5-610-6840 73,000.00 73,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 73,000 75%
Tourism 01-5-610-6842 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,000 0%
Historic Preservation 01-5-610-6844 20,357.87 32,976.59 0.00 2,175.40 4,000 54%
NET - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (151,507.87) (155,900.40) 0.00 (57,175.40) (141,500) 40%
Ag Tech Initiatives Dept
Federal Grants 01-4-620-4160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Other Contractual Services 01-5-620-6890 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
NET - AG TECH INITIATIVES DEPT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Utility Tax Dept.
Utility Tax - Electric 01-4-751-4131 1,393,783.95 1,364,570.77 125,316.33 338,622.86 1,459,907 23%
Utility Tax - Gas 01-4-751-4132 308,338.72 328,638.72 16,535.91 79,620.08 325,813 24%
Utility Tax - Telephone 01-4-751-4133 300,448.75 262,901.00 20,452.32 58,736.15 296,315 20%
Expense Reimbursement 01-4-751-4940 0.00 40,938.89 0.00 3,188.79 0 0%
Columbia Ave. 01-5-751-8040 450,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Downtown Streetscape 01-5-751-8052 644,463.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 o] 0%
Downtown Pavement Project 01-5-751-8054 294,850.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Tripp Rd. Reconstruction 01-5-751-8056 0.00 47,257.18 0.00 0.00 0 #DIv/o!
Southside Stormsewer Study  01-5-751-8058 0.00 87,498.97 0.00 0.00 0] 0%
Bellwood Detention Basin 01-5-751-8060 0.00 27,478.50 550.00 550.00 0 #DIv/0!
Poplar Grove/ Lawrenceville Int 01-5-751-8062 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000 0%

613,256.96 1,834,814.73 161,754.56 479,617.88 2,070,035 23%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 17,079,016.60 16,486,943.83 1,020,553.62 5,379,660.62 17,418,835 31%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 17,079,016.60 16,486,943.83 1,938,740.98 4,593,683.79 17,418,835 26%
NET REV OVER (UNDER) EXP 0.00 0.00 (918,187.36) 785,976.83 0

Page 7 of 7



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR WATER / SEWER FUND as of July 31, 2018

Water / Sewer General Administration

Actual Actual Manth of Actual Budget 25.00%
Line ltem Account # FY 17 FY 18 July FY 19 FY 19 used
Beginning Cash & Investments 75,606 75,606 75,607.08 75,606
Interest Income-sweep acct  61-4-110-4600 0] 0] 0.00 26.00 0
Miscellaneous Revenues 61-4-110-4900 0 0 0.00 0.00 0
Operating Transfer Out 61-5-110-9999 0 0.00 0.00 0
Ending Cash 75,606 75,606 0.00 75,633.08 75,608
Water Department
Actual Actual Month of Actual Budget 25.00%
Line Item Account # FY 17 FY 18 July FY 19 FY 19 used
Beginning Cash & Investments 697,162 590,508 430,243.45 592,645
Water Consumption 61-4-810-4500 2,118,914 2,143,711 206,255.93 536,649.01 2,191,072 24%
Dep on Agr - Westhill 61-4-810-4521 3,786 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Meters Sold 61-4-810-4530 93,879 93,455 290.94 2,485.44 87,650 3%
Other Services 61-4-810-4590 5,647 7,813 320.50 1,363.00 7,500 18%
WIS Interest 61-4-810-4600 o] 2,333 56.13 188.40 0 0%
Miscellaneous Revenues 61-4-810-4900 6,450 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Expense Reimbursement 61-4-810-4940 6,196 39,267 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Sale of Assets 61-4-810-4950 1,925 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Operating Transfers-In 61-4-810-9998 0 0 0.00 0.00 = 0%
Total Water Department Revenues 2,236,697 2,286,579 206,923.50 540,685.85 2,286,222 24%
Salaries - Regular - FT 61-5-810-5010 555,858 566,222 42,785.61 157,796.44 577,070 27%
Overtime 61-5-810-5040 34,276 28,055 1,267.60 6,423.61 35,000 18%
FICA Water 61-5-810-5079 51,932 49,317 3,776.56 14,104.63 45,100 31%
IMRF 61-5-810-5120 79,941 73,542 13,953.71 20,264.73 73,011 28%
Group Health Insurance  61-5-810-5130 214,738 246,826 15,057.40 39,537.86 245,391 16%
Uniform Allowance 61-5-810-5140 6,484 7,257 617.42 1,871.90 13,000 14%
Rep& Maint-Infrastructure  61-5-810-6000 68,065 136,623 12,487.40 41,992.61 70,000 60%
Rep& Maint - Buildings 61-5-810-6010 27,173 14,405 1,221.11 1,528.30 24,500 6%
Rep& Maint - Equipment  61-5-810-6020 51,773 32,237 3,857.49 4,856.95 33,000 15%
Rep& Maint - Vehicles 61-5-810-6030 18,417 12,583 27.50 1,182.08 20,000 6%
Rep& Maint - Contractual 61-5-810-6040 102,795 66,355 5,925.95 11,317.82 85,000 13%
Other Professional Serv. 61-5-810-6190 4,118 2,132 719.74 719.74 12,000 6%
Telephone 61-5-810-6200 8,259 9,220 757.80 1,473.91 9,000 16%
Paostage 61-5-810-6210 15,304 17,831 1,085.61 3,0686.79 22,000 14%
Utilities 61-5-810-6300 311,597 255,296 24,092.22 48,427.33 260,000 19%
Office Equip Rental/Maint 61-5-810-6410 32,006 29,265 676.37 1,376.68 30,300 5%
Liability Insurance 61-5-810-6800 110,328 111,448 0.00 0.00 136,884 0%
Lab Expense 61-5-810-6812 27,337 30,984 1,156.52 7,211.08 36,000 20%
Office Supplies 61-5-810-7020 8,298 8,530 468.50 609.43 9,000 7%
Gas & Ol 61-5-810-7030 15,226 17,057 1,457 .31 2,802.30 20,000 14%
Operating Supplies 61-5-810-7040 70,770 60,663 4,370.95 9,963.35 65,000 15%
Chemicals 61-5-810-7050 59,764 85,026 7,987.88 12,784.74 90,000 14%
Meters 61-5-810-7060 42,939 41,995 1,156.59 3,473.59 20,000 17%
Bad Debt Expense 61-5-810-7850 2,118 281 0.00 291.06 2,000 15%
Miscellaneous Expense 61-5-810-7900 5,168 4,077 75.18 182.82 8,400 2%
|Equipment 61-5-810-8200 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Transfer Out 61-5-810-9999 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Depreciation Set Aside 305,604 314,772 27,017.92 81,053.76 324,215 25%
Bond Pmt Set Aside 141,200 213,350 833.33 2,499.99 10,000 25%
Total Water Department Expenses 2,371,488 2,435,350 172,833.67 476,813.50 2,275,871 21%
NET WATER DEPARTMENT (134,791) (148,770) 34,089.83 63,872.35 10,351
Change in Accounts Receivable (YTD) 28,419 (11,494) 119,910.14
Ending Cash & Investments 590,790 430,243 614,025.94 602,996

10f4



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR WATER / SEWER FUND as of July 31, 2018

Sewer Department

Actual Actual Meanth of Actual Budget 25.00%

Line ltem Account # FY 17 FY 18 July FY 19 FY 19 used
Beginning Cash & Investments 1,284,737 965,295 797,980.97 516,865

Interest Income

Sewer Consumption 61-4-820-4500 3,103,395 3,349,266 230,5622.23 770,265.52 3,172,429 24%
Dep on Agr - Westhills 61-4-820-4521 2,978 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Meters Sold 61-4-820-4530 92,544 92,004 250.00 2,444.50 87,650 3%
Other Services 61-4-820-4590 92,574 27,739 5,694.39 8,949.59 25,000 36%
WWT Interest 61-4-820-4600 0 931 319.94 595.23 0 #DIv/Q!
Miscellaneous Revenues 61-4-820-4900 2,153 100 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Expense Reimbursement 61-4-820-4940 0 123,351 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Operating Transfers-In 61-4-820-9998 500,000 500,000 0.00 0.00 500,000 0%
Total Sewer Department Revenues 3,793,644 4,093,391 236,786.56 782,254.84 3,785,079 21%
Salaries - Regular - FT 61-5-820-5010 565,019 575,315 42,611.17 155,692.47 626,958 25%
Overtime 61-5-820-5040 44,286 46,506 3,003.30 7,595.99 55,000 14%
FICA WWTP 61-5-820-5079 39,653 40,034 3,082.89 10,946.19 49,585 22%
IMRF 61-5-820-5120 82,421 76,818 14,082.75 20,149.67 82,337 24%
Group Health Insurance  61-5-820-5130 207,899 234,151 14,457.70 39,173.67 223,259 18%
Dental Claims 61-5-820-5131 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Uniform Allowance 61-5-820-5140 18,158 20,427 1,647.92 4,185.07 17,000 25%
Travel 61-5-820-5151 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
|Rep & Maint - Lift Stations 61-5-820-6005 50,022 29,795 0.00 0.00 20,000 0%
Rep & Maint - Buildings 61-5-820-6010 19,652 91,703 30,090.45 39,183.77 123,000 32%
Rep & Maint - Equipment  61-5-820-6020 88,281 54,797 1,397.58 5,691.69 0 0%
Rep & Maint - Vehicles 61-5-820-6030 29,626 29,372 1,082.49 1,677.34 25,000 7%
Rep & Maint - Contractual 61-5-820-6040 28,275 18,343 282.50 2,952.13 100,000 0%
Other Professional Serv  61-5-820-6190 76,824 103,291 35,698.28 41,606.21 73,500 57%
Telephone 61-5-820-6200 10,153 9,369 886.08 1,508.17 11,000 14%
Postage 61-5-820-6210 15,123 17,692 839.31 2,820.48 20,000 14%
Utilities 61-5-820-6300 208,399 212,511 16,447.20 35,304.91 230,000 15%
Office Equip Rental/Maint 61-5-820-6410 4224 3,077 228.55 685.65 6,000 11%
Liability Insurance 61-5-820-6800 131,014 132,345 0.00 0.00 142,500 0%
Lab Expense 61-5-820-6812 36,420 27,530 4,712.72 6,642.35 50,000 13%
Sludge Disposal 61-5-820-6814 9,871 7,240 347.18 1,568.53 10,000 16%
Office Supplies 61-5-820-7020 5,682 8613 468.50 609.42 8,000 8%
Gas & Oil 61-5-820-7030 14,368 18,551 318.16 786.61 35,000 2%
Operating Supplies 61-5-820-7040 23,637 20,120 3,159.41 4,244.56 20,000 21%
Chemicals 61-5-820-7050 35,011 24,826 3,025.50 12,948.05 60,000 22%
Meters 61-5-820-7060 12,258 30,521 1,312.72 4,955.32 20,000 25%
Bad Debt Expense 61-5-820-7850 2,665 341 0.00 333.31 4,000 8%
Miscellaneous Expenses  61-5-820-7900 4241 2,430 0.00 6.91 5,000 0%
Equipment 61-5-820-8200 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Operating Transfer Out 61-5-820-9999 500,000 500,000 0.00 0.00 500,000 0%
Depreciation Set Aside 452,955 466,544 40,083.33 120,249.99 431,000 28%
Bond Pmt Set Aside 332,395 338,350 15,000.00 45,000.00 180,000 25%

3,048,534 3,140,615 234 265.69 566,518.46 3,128,139 18%

Sewer Department

Collection System Expenses

Salaries - Regular - FT 61-5-830-5010 282,807 284,555 22,329.94 79,743.99 304,959 26%
Qvertime 61-5-830-5040 22,941 23638 0.00 6,443.94 30,000 21%
FICA Sewer 61-5-830-5079 20,088 23,577 1,708.20 6,592.06 25,624 26%
IMRF 61-5-830-5120 43,336 39,176 7,645.84 10,635.54 42,026 25%
Group Health Insurance  61-5-830-5130 99,658 101,803 7,126.70 19,454.09 110,737 18%
Uniform Allowance 61-5-830-5140 4,300 5,200 381.20 555.55 6,600 8%
Rep & Maint - Infrastructure 61-5-830-6000 34,372 37,085 2,765.00 5,006.75 40,000 13%
Rep & Maint - Equipment  61-5-830-6020 4127 23,840 869.82 1,512.55 12,000 13%
Rep & Maint - Vehicles 61-5-830-6030 29,748 17,076 113.73 44434 20,000 2%
Office Equip Rent’/Maint  61-5-830-6410 26,120 26,106 447.82 691.03 30,300 2%
Gas & Qil 61-5-830-7030 7,607 9,109 656.47 1,444.09 10,000 14%
Operating Supplies 61-5-830-7040 16,402 16,220 1,006.87 1,794.52 20,000 9%

20f4



Sewer Department

Actual Actual Month of Actual Budget 25.00%

Account # FY 17 FY 18 July FY 19 FY 19 used
Misc. Expense 61-5-830-7900 1,182 569 0.00 0.00 3,000 0%
Equipment 61-5-830-8200 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Total Sewer Department Expenses 3,641,224 3,748,570 279,317.28 700,836.91 3,783,385 19%
NET SEWER DEPARTMENT 152,419 344,821 (42,530.72) 81,417.93 1,694
Change in Accounts Receivable 28,419 (12,134.66) 119,910.14
Ending Cash & Investments 965,572 797,981 999,309.04 18,559
Bond Reserves (necessary per bond ordinances) - was 06-15
Beginning Cash & Investments 586,815 588,709 591,697.61 588,709
Additional reserves 0 0] 0 0 0 0%
Interest Income 1,894 2,989 731.63 1,881.01 0 0%
Transfer Out: Bond Payment 0 0 0.00 0.00 350,000 0%
Ending Cash & Investments 588,709 591,698 593,578.62 238,709
Connection Fees (plant expansion) / Deposits on Agreement (system extensions) Accounting - was 05-10
Beginning Cash & Investments 3,719,983 3,981,393 2,645,839.94 1,969,192
Sources
Interest Income 16,868 26,613 6,515.00 16,749.98 32,000 52%
Connection Fees 614-810-4510 66,291 47,382 0.00 7,948.00 30,000 26%
Deposits on Agreement 61-4-810-4520 660 1,045 0.00 603.06 2,500 24%
Connection Fees 61-4-820-4510 108,609 91,511 0.00 17,823.65 36,000 50%
Deposits on Agreement 61-4-820-4520 75,331 4674 0.00 1,192.00 5,000 24%
Connection Fee Set-Aside Q 0 0.00 0.00 500,000 0%
TOTAL Sources 267,759 171,225 6,515.00 44 316.69 605,500 7%
Uses
Construction in Progress - Water (1790) 6,350 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Construction in Progress - Sewer (1790) 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Equipment & Vehicles (1750) 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Recapture Refunds 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Building (1730) 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Loan to Depreciation Fund 0 1,506,778 0.00 0.00 0 0%
TOTAL Uses 6,350 1,508,778 0.00 0.00 0 #DIvio!
Ending Cash & Investments 3,981,393 2,645,840 2,690,156.63 2,574,692

3of4



Actual Actual Month of Actual Budget 25.00%
Line Item Account # FY 17 FY 18 July FY 19 FY 19 used
Depreciation Funding - was 04-09 and 06-08
Eeginning Cash & Investments 3,042,622 2,204,050 2,565,727.85 2,656,366
Sources
Interest Income 13,634 21,512 5,266.15 13,539.19 25,500 53%
Loan Funds 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Grant 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Misc. 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Depreciation set aside - Water (for Plant) 84,796 314,772 27,017.92 81,053.76 324,215 25%
Depreciation set aside - Water (for System) 220,808 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Depreciation set aside - Sewer (for System) 150,050 966,544 40,083.33 120,249.99 981,000 12%
Depreciation set aside - Sewer (for Repl) 802,905 0 0.00 0.00 0] 0%
Loan From Connection Fees 0 1,506,778 0.00 0.00 0 #DIV/0!
TOTAL Sources 1,272,193 2,809,605 72,367.40 214,842 .94 1,330,715 16%
Uses
Construction in Progress - Water (1790) 524,890 800,150 0.00 92,949.11 91,000 102%
Construction in Progress - Sewer (1790) 1,530,519 1,397,060 41,412.95 160,398.65 675,000 24%
Equipment & Vehicles (1750 & 1760)) 55,356 250,716 0.00 0.00 125,000 0%
Buildings 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Transfer Out - Connection Fees Loan Payn 0 0 0.00 0.00 500,000 0%
Sewer-Repl Equip (part of 820-8200) 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
TOTAL Uses 2,110,765 2,447,927 41,412.95 253,347.76 1,391,000 18%
Ending Cash & Investments 2,204,050 2,565,727 2,527,223.03 2,596,081.00
Bond Payments Accounting - was 06-10 and 06-13
Beginning Cash & Investments 200,263 122,163 130,894.86 129,772
Sources
Interest Income 2,297 3,624 887.06 2,280.64 4,500 51%
Bond Proceeds 61-4-110-4901 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Operating Transfers-in 61-4-110-9998 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Bond Pmt Set Aside 473,595 551,700 15,833.33 47,499.99 540,000 9%
TOTAL Sources 475,892 555,324 16,720.39 49,780.63 544,500 9%
Uses
Debt Service - Principal 61-5-110-8910 501,068 502,335 0.00 51,647.60 503,618 10%
Interest Expense 61-5-110-8920 52,924 44 257 0.00 10,228.23 34,974 29%
Fiscal Charges 61-5-110-8930 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
Bond Issuance Costs 61-5-110-9031 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0%
TOTAL Uses 553,992 546,592 0.00 61,875.83 538,592 11%
Ending Cash & Investments 122,163 130,895 118,799.66 135,680.00
Gross Revenues (excludes set asides) 6,315,925 6,579,319 524,211.15 1,384,984 22 5,706,801
Gross Expenditures (excludes set asides) 6,951,667 8,852,199 410,629,32 1,244,070.26 6,043,633
NET CASH FLOW (635,742) (2,272,882) 113,581.83 140,913.96 (336,832)

40f 4




CITY OF BELVIDERE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Minutes
Tuesday, August 14, 2018
City Council Chambers
401 Whitney Boulevard

6:00 pm
ROLL CALL
Members Present: Staff Present:
Alissa Maher, CHM Gina DelRose, Community Development Planner
Robert Cantrell Cathy Crawford, Administrative Assistant
Art Hyland Michael Drella, City Attorney

Andrew Racz

Members Absent:
Daniel Arevalo, VCHM
Paul Engelman
Vacancy

Chairman Alissa Maher called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

MINUTES: It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Hyland) to approve the minutes of
July 10, 2018. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT: None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:

2018-14; TerraNavigator (TA): The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator,
LLC), 888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA 92037, is requesting a text
amendment to the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 150 as amended)
pertaining to Sections 150.013 Definitions, 150.105(A)(1)(B) Rural Holding District,
150.105(C)(7)(B) Planned Industrial District, 150.105(C)(8)(B) General Industrial
District, 150.105(C)(9)(B) Heavy Industrial District, Appendix C: Land Use Summary
Chart and Section 150.902 Amendment of Zoning Regulations (Text Amendments).
The request will allow non-building mounted solar installations for export of energy
for use by Public Utility as a special use in the above referenced zoning districts.

The public hearing opened at 6:07 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 3, 2018.
The case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on July 25, 2018. Gina
DelRose stated that after consultation with the city attorney, the proposed language
of the text amendment was amended to the following:



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

20f 20

Section 150.013: Definitions

Export of Energy: The onsite generation of wholesale electricity that is
delivered to the utility distribution network as allowed under long term contract
with a public electrical utility as defined by 220ILCS 516-102.

Gina DelRose stated this amendment will help clarify the language. Ms. DelRose
stated that, due to the Future Energy Jobs Act (FEJA) and the State of lllinois’
renewable energy law which mandates that 25% of power (including ComEd’s
power) come from renewable sources by 2025, there has been a significant increase
in solar farms in the area. Applications have been made in Boone County and the
Village of Poplar Grove will be undergoing a similar text amendment as well. The
text language proposed makes it clear that the special use is for more traditional
ground-mounted solar farms that generate electricity that is delivered to the utility
distribution network. Residential and business building-mounted panels that serve
the property would still be permitted. The text amendment would allow solar farms
in the rural holding, light industrial, heavy industrial and general industrial districts.
Requirements for solar farms will be conditions of the special uses. Ms. DelRose
stated that state law is already addressing some of the other concerns that arise
from the new technology. Ms. DelRose cited SB3214, SB486 and SB2591/HB4651
as examples of bills that address other requirements. The planning staff
recommends approval of case 2018-14.

There were no questions for the staff.
The applicant did not wish to make a statement.
The public hearing closed at 6:14 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Racz/Hyland) to recommend approval of case 2018-
14. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

2018-15; TerraNavigator (SU): The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator,
LLC), 888 Prospect St, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA 92037, on behalf of the property
owner, Boone County Conservation District, 603 N. Appleton Road, Belvidere, IL
61008 is requesting a special use to install non-building mounted solar installations
for export of energy for use by Public Utility (pending text amendment approval) at
825 North Appleton Road within the RH, Rural Holding District (Belvidere Zoning
Ordinance Section 150.150(A)(1)(B) and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval
Procedures). The solar farm will encompass approximately 15 acres. PIN: 05-27-
100-005.

The public hearing opened at 6:15 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 8, 2018.
The case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on July 25, 2018 and



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

3 of 20

certified mailings were sent on July 20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated that the landfill is
a portion of the 357-acre Spencer Conservation Area. Ms. DelRose provided a
history of the former landfill. After several caps were installed due to materials
determined to be disposed in the 1960s and 1970s, the landfill was placed on the
National Priorities List in 1982. The land became a superfund site in 1983. Planning
began for remediation in 1984 and 1988 and drums of hazardous materials were
removed in 1986. Remediation activities occurred between 1989-1992. The area
was removed from the National Priorities List in 2015, however, routine operations
and maintenance is still required.

Due to this history, the applicant is proposing the installation to be entirely above-
grade, utilizing concrete ballast blocks and above-ground electrical infrastructure.
The proposed project has a 35-year lifecycle and a decommissioning plan would
restore the site after this lifecycle. The maintenance and security of the property will
be handled by the property owner, the Boone County Conservation District.
Landscaping will be completed using low maintenance pollinator plants. These
plantings will be in accordance with lllinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA)
guidelines.

The planning staff recommends approval of the special use subject to the following
conditions:

1. Substantial compliance with the narrative and site plan submitted, unless
otherwise noted.

2. The plans shall be revised to show proper access for fire apparatus.

3. The applicant shall provide training to the Belvidere Fire Department pertaining to
the hazards in conducting fire control and extinguishment of the proposed solar
system.

4. All work conducted on the subject property shall be reviewed and approved by
the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

5. All areas within the fencing must be maintained by the project operator (applicant
and future lessees) in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency’s
requirements for the length of the project. This includes maintenance of the
vegetation and fencing.

6. The project operator shall maintain the landfill cap as required by state and
federal agencies.

7. The project operator shall repair any inadequacies in the landfill cap, such as
divets, prior to the installation of the development.

8. The project operator shall ensure that the landfill site is secure from public
access, except as permitted for educational activities overseen by the Boone
County Conservation District. A minimum of 7-foot tall fencing and signage shall
be installed around the perimeter of the landfill.

9. The existing underground power lines shall be utilized unless reasonable proof
can be submitted showing they are inadequate.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

4 of 20

10. All vegetation shall be approved by the Environmental Protection Agency and the
Boone County Conservation District. Pollinator friendly vegetation shall be used.

11.A decommissioning plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of
Belvidere and the Boone County Conservation District prior to the
commencement of the development.

12. A surety, covering the complete execution of the decommissioning plan for when
the project ends shall be posted.

The commission had no questions for the staff.

David Bonk asked a question regarding the mechanism for transfer of the energy to
the utility grid.

Gina DelRose stated this would be a question for the applicant.

Christian Dick, Senior Director for Project Development for TerraNavigator, LLC,
was sworn in. Mr. Dick presented a PowerPoint to the commissioners. In the
presentation Mr. Dick detailed the adaptive reuse of the landfill site and its proposed
benefits. Graphics were displayed showing the above-ground panels and concrete
ballast blocks the project is proposing. Mr. Dick explained that the proposed project
is in a category known as “Community Solar”, in which residents and business
owners who cannot access the benefits of larger solar installations, which can sell
their energy directly to the power company, can still see a benefit through becoming
subscribers to entities that will contract with ComEd to receive a lowered energy rate
in exchange for the energy produced. Mr. Dick stated that he is in communication
with Craig Wilcox of the Belvidere Fire Department regarding training and access
issues for project. Mr. Dick stated there are no proposed public utilities which need
to be extended to the site. Mr. Dick stated that the above-grade installation allows
for an easier decommissioning of the site. The details of the decommissioning of the
site would be provided at the time of building permitting.

Robert Cantrell asked if Mr. Dick believes the installation will not be functioning at
the end of the 35-year lifecycle.

Christian Dick stated the installation is expected to still be functioning at
approximately 75% of its capacity that time.

Robert Cantrell asked if Mr. Dick expects the technology to be very different at that
time.

Christian Dick stated the technology for solar farms does not advance very quickly,
but it is difficult to answer that at this time.

Robert Cantrell asked if there is a plan to do any grading at the site.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

5 of 20

Christian Dick said no, the final survey will design the project to its exact conditions.
Andy Racz asked for the economic benefits for the project.

Christian Dick stated the benefits will include real property tax benefits, revenues
from sales tax and the opportunity for the city to become a subscriber to the project.

Andy Racz asked the economic benefits to the Boone County Conservation District.

Christian Dick stated the Conservation District will see benefits throught the lease on
the site as well as the operational costs of managing and securing the site.

Andy Racz asked if TerraNavigator is located in lllinois.
Christian Dick said no.
Andy Racz asked what the company will do in case of emergency.

Christian Dick stated it would be necessary for TerraNavigator to have a presence
“on the ground” if the project occurs.

Andy Racz asked if there are other projects in lllinois.

Christian Dick stated there are 12 projects planned for lllinois. Those projects are not
operational at this time. Mr. Dick stated there are only five solar sites operational in
lllinois. Solar has now reached a point where solar energy is more cost-effective
and able to compete with other energy sources.

Robert Cantrell asked how TerraNavigator, LLC financially benefits from the project.
Christian Dick stated the company will enter into a competitive solicitation in January
in which TerraNavigator will compete for a contract. They will also offer subscriptions
to the project.

Terry Polhill asked how a homeowner would benefit from the project.

Christian Dick stated that as a subscriber to the project, he would see a lowered rate
on his energy bill. Mr. Dick explained the contract process agrees upon a lowered

ComEd rate to subscribers.

Renee Renkosiak asked Mr. Dick to explain the statement about fire safety at the
site and what would be the risk of fire at the landfill site.

Christian Dick stated there is no greater risk of fire at the site than would be present
anywhere else.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

6 of 20

Renee Renkosiak asked why Mr. Dick included mention of fire safety.

Gina DelRose stated the Belvidere Fire Department requested that this provision for
training and access be included in the conditions so they would be prepared for any
possible problem.

Renee Renkosiak asked what is meant by “vegetation management.”

Christian Dick stated that his company would be inheriting the obligation to manage
the vegetation from the Conservation District. In order to meet the state bill requiring
these plantings, there must be a native plant mix.

Renee Renkosiak referred to Mr. Dick's statement that the energy output could
power 459 homes and be equivalent to the removal of 656 cars from the road; she
asked Mr. Dick to clarify those numbers.

Christian Dick stated that for the purposes of illustration, these numbers are given to
show the benefit in removal of greenhouse gases and the potential output of power.
The amount of greenhouse gases for that number of cars would be generated by
traditional energy generation sources.

Renee Renkosiak asked if Mr. Dick meant for homeowners to join a city-wide
aggregate as subscribers, or individually.

Christian Dick said these are details the lllinois power authority has not determined
at this time; Mr. Dick said the contract would be between an entity and
TerraNavigator and the lllinois Power Authority would set the rate. The lowered rate
will be credited against subscriber's bills. The utility becomes a third party in
administering that rate. ComEd would still deliver the power. Community Solar is
designed to provide a new revenue source for those who want the benefits and cost
structure of being solar stakeholders.

Renee Renkosiak asked Mr. Dick to clarify the contract details.

Christian Dick said this varies throughout the country; the rates will most likely be for
the life of the contract.

Renee Renkosiak asked if the rates could go above the regular ComEd rates.
Christian Dick said no, there would be no benefit to the subscriber in that case.

Renee Renkosiak asked for clarification of whether a homeowner would join in the
contract individually or in a group.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

7 of 20

Christian Dick said this would be an individual subscriber contract.

James DeCoto asked if students would have an opportunity to visit the site for
educational purposes.

Christian Dick said the Boone County Conservation District may have to answer the
question.

Gina DelRose stated that Dan Kane from the Boone County Conservation District
was present and can answer questions after Christian Dick is finished.

David Bonk said he was concerned about the impact of the project; Mr. Bonk asked
for clarification of the use of pollinator plants on the site.

Michael Drella cautioned that questions must be specific to the testimony given by
Mr. Dick.

David Bonk asked if Mr. Dick can answer the question.

Christian Dick stated that he would have no concern over the safety of the plantings
or of the integrity of the landfill cap because TerraNavigator would be working within
the guidelines laid out by the IEPA. The landfill has been closed and remediated for
some time. It is part of the permit that the installation cannot permeate the cap.

David Bonk asked Mr. Dick to clarify how long TerraNavigator, LLC has been in
existence.

Christian Dick clarified that the company rebranded in 2017; the original company
was PD Navigator, a subsidiary of Project Navigator, and was formed to give them
the ability to launch projects of this kind. The legal entity was formed in 2013 and
rebranded in 2017.

David Bonk asked Mr. Dick to list what projects the company has completed in the
USA.

Christian Dick said that TerraNavigator has completed five projects nationwide.
David Bonk asked where the interconnections to ComEd lines will be placed.

Christian Dick said his company is currently in negotiations with ComEd regarding
this detail.

David Bonk asked where the connections might be.

Christian Dick said these details have not been determined at this time.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

8 of 20

David Bonk said he would like more details before he approves of the proposed
project.

Jeff Gerlach said he approves of solar energy; Mr. Gerlach asked why the power is
not simply generated and sold back to ComEd directly.

Christian Dick explained that the scale of the proposed site is not large enough for
such direct transfer to ComEd; larger installations are able to compete in such
negotiations with ComEd. The benefit, according to Mr. Dick, is lowered rates as
subscribers in this smaller project. There is a development of larger scale
“Brownfield Solar” sites that are more appropriate for the mechanism Mr. Gerlach
described.

Michael Drella reminded the audience that the commission must determine whether
the land use is appropriate; questions regarding the financials of such a project are
beyond the scope of the commission.

Kimberly Montanez asked if Terranavigator LLC had surveyed any other possible
sites in Belvidere.

Christian Dick said yes; they want to locate the proposed installation on previously
disturbed sites that cannot be used for any other purpose. Mr. Dick said many
others are surveying farmland for solar installations. Mr. Dick said TerraNavigator
does not consider that use of productive farmland to be appropriate for such an
installation.

Kimberly Montanez asked if it would not be better to let the land heal.

Christian Dick said the landfill has had more than 30 years to settle. It is an older
landfill that has characteristics compatible to the solar installation project.

Kimberly Montanez said as the project ages, there may be more settling.

Christian Dick said a third-party civil engineering expert as well as the IEPA and the
City of Belvidere would help craft the design of the concrete ballasts.

Michael Drella asked for confirmation that any project approved by the city would
require approval by the IEPA.

Christian Dick said that was correct. They have retained a consultant to draft that
report and it is underway.

Michael Drella asked if Dan Kane, as representative of the property owner, wished
to speak.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

9 of 20

Dan Kane said there were some questions that had been asked that he could
address. Mr. Kane was sworn in. Mr. Kane said the Boone County Conservation
District (BCCD) is concerned that nothing penetrate the landfill cap. There are
native plants that have very deep root systems. Therefore, the plant materials will
be approved by the IEPA. The pollinators utilizing those plants already utilize the
landfill site. The cap has been redone several times. The wildlife using the site are
not long-lived species. The BCCD and TerraNavigator have no desire to disturb the
integrity of the cap. Mr. Kane stated he is confident that whatever plant materials
are proposed by the IEPA would not pose a threat to the integrity of the cap or the
wildlife.

David Bonk asked why the cap was not sufficient and had to be repaired repeatedly.

Dan Kane said when the BCCD entered into a lease agreement with TerraNavigator,
it was made clear that any disturbance of the landfill cap would be the responsibility
of TerraNavigator. Currently, the City of Belvidere maintains the fence and mows
the site. Woody plants with deep roots must be kept from disturbing the area. The
public works director has indicated mowing costs the city $5,000 per year. That cost
will disappear with TerraNavigator's management of the site. The BCCD will realize
some $7,000 in revenue from the lease agreement; a revenue stream that can be
used for public benefit is an important component. Mr. Kane said part of the BCCD
agreement with TerraNavigator is that BCCD can use the site in educational
programs for schoolchildren. TerraNavigator has stated they might help support that
endeavor, which may result in more cost reductions.

The public hearing was closed at 7:31 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Hyland/Racz) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

It was moved and seconded to approve case 2018-15 subject to the conditions as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

Gina DelRose stated the first reading before the city council will be August 20, 2018
and the second reading and final vote will be on September 4, 2018.

2018-16; Kelley Williamson (SU): The applicant, John C. Griffin, 9145
Meadowsweet Drive, Belvidere, IL 61008 on behalf of the property owner, Griffin-
Williamson Co., 1132 Harrison Avenue, Rockford, IL 61104 is requesting a special
use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar with video gaming at 1776
Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial Entertainment and 150.904
Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). PIN: 06-31-101-003.

The public hearing opened at 7:34 p.m.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

10 of 20

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 1, 2018
and amended August 7, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated the case was published in the
Belvidere Daily Republican on July 25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July
20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated there is adequate parking for the video gaming use.
The video games and bar will be located to the east of the entrance doors. Shelving
and barricades will be used to create the 150 square-foot gaming area from the rest
of the gas station and will leave a clear line of sight from the cashier’'s counter. The
gaming machines will only be operational Monday through Saturday from 6:00 a.m.
to 2:00 a.m. and Sunday from 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. when liquor is allowed to be
sold. The only other gas station in Belvidere to include video gaming is the
Speedway station on Crystal parkway; this station qualified as a truck stop and so
was able to have video gaming without the added requirement for on-site
consumption of alcohol. Kelley's Market Mobil is not operating under a truck stop
license. Therefore, open alcohol and alcohol consumption must be permitted in
order for the facility to offer video gaming. Alcohol will only be permitted in the
gaming area. The applicant plans to sell alcohol at higher-than-average prices to
discourage its consumption on-site. Alcohol consumption at gas stations has not
occurred in Belvidere previously, but people drive to and from gas stations as well as
bars. Planning staff is not aware of any detriment to businesses or residences due
to the three video gaming facilities already in the vicinity.

The staff recommends approval of case 2018-16 subject to the following conditions:
1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.
2. Alcohol consumption is only permitted within the video gaming area.

3. The video gaming area must be enclosed and only accessible through a
designated entrance.

4. Substantial compliance with the site plan submitted.

Robert Cantrell asked how the gaming area will be enclosed and still be visible to
the cashier.

Gina DelRose stated there will be a waist-high to chest-high barricade constructed.
It will not be floor-to-ceiling.

Andy Racz said he feels consumption of alcohol at these premises may be a liability
issue.

Michael Drella said the issue is not the local liquor laws; the proposed location does
not have a special use for indoor commercial entertainment. If gaming is allowed at
this location, alcohol consumption must be allowed.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

11 of 20

Andy Racz said the proposed special use does not make sense to him and he feels
he cannot support it.

Robert Cantrell said he also cannot support it.

Lori Forsythe was sworn in. Ms. Forsythe addressed the commissioner's concerns
regarding on-site consumption of alcohol; Ms. Forsythe stated the beer will be priced
at $9.00 a bottle to deter consumption. Ms. Forsythe said she works with many
nontraditional gaming locations with on-premises pouring of alcohol. This special
use will allow Kelley’s Market to compete with other gas stations with comparable
diesel sales.

Michael Drella asked if the presentation Ms. Forsythe gave should be introduced into
evidence.

Lori Forsythe stated she would like it included in the evidence.
Jeff Gerlach asked if there will be an addition built to accommodate gaming.

Lori Forsythe provided a drawing of the proposed gas station configuration with a
gaming area indicated.

Jeff Gerlach asked where purchasers of beer will be standing.

Lori Forsythe stated they do not anticipate anyone buying beer at $9.00 a bottle.
The alcohol will be kept behind the counter and anyone wishing to drink in use the
gaming area must stand in line, show their valid identification, and then return to the
gaming area, where a cashier will bring them their beer.

Jeff Gerlach listed concerns with the proposed project which included the presence
of traffic, school children, and the existence of five gaming facilities within a short
distance.

Lori Forsythe stated that if Kelley’s Market doesn’t get the machines, someone else,
possibly nearby, would. Ms. Forsythe stated nobody under the age of 21 will be
allowed into the gaming area.

Jeff Gerlach stated he is a frequent customer and that the cashiers are very busy
currently. Mr. Gerlach stated he has concerns with the type of people who might be
present at the station if this use is approved. He states there has been more crime in
Wycliffe Estates recently and he does not wish this element to be present in his
neighborhood.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

12 of 20

Lori Forsythe asked Mr. Gerlach to clarify what Mr. Gerlach meant by “these types of
people.”

Jeff Gerlach said they might not be regular Kelley’'s Market customers and the
proposed hours of the special use are the hours during which crime happens.

Seeing no further questions, the public hearing was closed at 7:54 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Racz) to accept the findings of fact as
presented.

Michael Drella reminded the commissioners that the current findings are drafted in
light of the staff recommendation to approve the case; if members wish to deny the
case, Attorney Drella recommended the findings be amended to reflect this vote.
Attorney Drella further clarified what he previously stated.

Discussion was held regarding the findings of fact.

The motion failed with a 3-1 roll call vote. Andy Racz voted not to accept the
findings of fact.

Michael Drella stated the chair could rule that the motion passes.
Chairperson Maher stated the motion carried.

It was moved and seconded (Hyland/Racz) to approve case 2018-16 subject to the
conditions as presented.

Michael Drella stated that state law requires four “aye” votes for the final motion to
pass.

The motion to recommend approval failed with a 2-2 roll call vote. Andy Racz and
Robert Cantrell voted no.

Gina DelRose stated that the case would move to the city council for a first reading
on August 20, 2018 and a second reading on September 4, 2018.

Chairperson Alissa Maher called for a five-minute recess at 8:00 p.m.

The meeting resumed at 8:05 p.m.

2018-17; Hernandez (SU): The applicant and property owner, Jenaro Hernandez,
7818 IL Route 173, Poplar Grove, IL 61065 is requesting a special use for indoor

commercial entertainment to operate a bar/tavern with pool tables, arcade machines
and video gaming at 522 South State Street within the CB, Central Business District




City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

13 of 20

(Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(6)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial
Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). PIN:
05-25-360-007

The public hearing opened at 8:05 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated July 31, 2018.
Ms. DelRose stated the case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on
July 25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July 20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated
the special use would allow a bar with five video gaming machines, pool tables, and
arcade games with snacks being served. The applicant wishes to promote a
relaxing atmosphere. Anticipated hours of operation are Monday through Saturday
from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. and it will be closed on Sunday. The site is served by
a private parking lot; however, on-site parking is not required in the central business
district. The property is within the Downtown Overlay District; the regulations of the
district ensure that changes made to the building will be kept in line with the
character of the neighborhood. The planning staff recommends approval of case
2018-17 subject to the following condition:

1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.
There were no questions for the staff,
The applicant’s representative did not wish to make a statement.
The public hearing was closed at 8:10 p.m.

It was motioned and seconded (Cantrell/Racz) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

It was motioned and seconded (Cantrell/Racz) to recommend approval of case
2018-17 subject to the condition presented. The case was approved with a 4-0 roll
call vote.

Gina DelRose stated the case would go forward to the city council for a first and
second reading on August 20 and September 4, 2018, respectively.

2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, Inc. (SU): The applicant and property owner, Daniel
L. Simpson (D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl Street Road, Belvidere, IL 61008
is requesting a special use to permit in-vehicle sales or service (car wash) at 925
Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) in-vehicle sales or services and 150.904 Special Use
Review and Approval Procedures,). PIN: 05-36-206-046

The public hearing opened at 8:12 p.m.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

14 of 20

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 2, 2018
and amended on August 8, 2018. Ms. DelRose said the case was published in the
Belvidere Daily Republican on July 25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July
20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated the special use is to bring the existing car wash into
compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. The car wash has been operating since
1974, the applicant purchased the property in 2004 and added the automatic bays in
2016. There is now a total of eight bays and a vacuum island. There is a pending
variance request to relocate the driveway to better accommodate traffic levels.
Other than the recent traffic concerns being addressed by the pending variance
application, staff is not aware of any negative impacts the car wash has made on the
community or neighborhood. By bringing the car wash into compliance,
improvements can be made to the property. The planning staff recommends
approval of case 2018-18 subject to the following conditions:

1. Upon relocation of the driveway, the original driveway entrance shall be closed
and the pavement shall be removed between the sidewalk and the street and
replaced with a grass terrace.

2. The existing depressed curb and gutter across the driveway opening shall be
replaced with full-section curb and gutter.

Daniel Simpson asked Gina DelRose to clarify the requirement for replacement of
the grass terrace.

Gina DelRose said there was a request from the public works department that the
formerly paved area be seeded with grass to mimic adjacent properties.

Daniel Simpson asked for details of the city’s sidewalk cost-sharing program to
replace the sidewalk.

Gina DelRose suggested Mr. Simpson consult the public works department for those
details.

James DeCoto stated he had a question for Mr. Simpson. He stated he was
concerned with the amount of noise from the automatic bays disturbing the residents
at 953 Logan Avenue as well as the location of the driveway causing traffic issues.

Gina DelRose asked if Mr. DeCoto was concerned with the noise or the driveway
location.

James DeCoto stated he was concerned with the driveway location.

Gina DelRose stated he should wait until the next case, when the driveway location
would be addressed.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

15 of 20

The public hearing was closed at 8:20 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Hyland/Cantrell) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

It was moved and seconded (Racz/Cantrell) to recommend approval of case 2018-
18 subject to the conditions as presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call
vote.

2018-19; D Bar S Enterprises, Inc. (VAR): The applicant and property owner,
Daniel L. Simpson (D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl Street Road, Belvidere, IL
61008 is requesting a variance to reduce the required twenty-five-foot separation
between driveways to eight feet in order to relocate an existing entrance at 925
Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Sections 150.702(G) Distance Between Access Drives and 150.909 Variance
Review and Approval Procedures). PIN: 05-36-206-046

The public hearing opened at 8:21 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 1, 2018.
Ms. DelRose said the case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on July
25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July 20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated that
the addition of the automatic bays prompted the need for the requested variance.
There is an egress/ingress on the west side of the property and an exit only on the
east side of the property. On busy days, cars waiting to use the automatic bays
have backed up onto Logan Avenue. The applicant wished to move the main
ingress/egress farther east to allow additional queueing. If the required 25-foot
separation between driveways is met, then an existing light pole would need to be
relocated. It would also bring the driveway within 20 feet of the vacuum island which
could disrupt vehicle circulation patterns. The public works department is requiring
that upon relocation of the driveway, the original driveway entrance shall have the
pavement removed and replaced with a grass terrace. Full access curb and gutter
will also replace the existing curb and gutter. The staff recommends approval of
case 2018-19.

James DeCoto repeated his question regarding the driveway location as well as the
noise from the automatic bays. Mr. DeCoto stated he was concerned that the
reconfiguration of the driveway will exacerbate the traffic problem.

Daniel Simpson showed Mr. DeCoto the site plan with the relocated driveway.
Gina DelRose stated the driveway allowing for exit only, which is closest to the

property in question, is not being altered. Only the ingress/egress drive will be
moved and it is proposed to be closer to the exit only drive.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

16 of 20

Daniel Simpson was sworn in. Mr. Simpson explained that Mr. DeCoto was asking
for the speakers on the automatic bays to be turned down also.

The public hearing was closed at 8:30 p.m.

It was motioned and seconded (Hyland/Racz) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Racz) to approve case 2018-19. The motion
carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

2018-20; Busch. (SU): The applicant, Michael Busch, 923 Logan Avenue,
Belvidere, IL 61008 on behalf of the property owner, DMD Investment, Inc., 923
Logan Avenue, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting an amendment to the existing
Planned Development (special use per Ordinance 904G) for the Shaw Mills and
Glenmoor of River Run Subdivision within the SR-4, Single-family Residential -4
District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Section 150.907 Planned Development District
Procedures). The amendment to the Planned Development is being requested in
order to remove the garage setback requirements. The original Planned
Development encompassed PINs: 05-30-378-022, 05-30-451-003, 05-30-451-002,
05-30-451-001, 05-30-451-004, 05-30-451-005, 05-30-401-005, 05-30-401-004, 05-
30-401-003, 05-30-401-002, 05-30-401-001, 05-30-378-021, 05-30-378-020, 05-30-
378-019, 05-30-380-005, 05-30-378-018, 05-30-380-010, 05-30-378-017, 05-30-
380-009, 05-30-380-003, 05-30-379-004, 05-30-378-016, 05-30-380-008, 05-30-
380-002, 05-30-378-015, 05-30-379-003, 05-30-380-007, 05-30-379-002, 05-30-
378-014, 05-30-380-001, 05-30-380-006, 05-30-330-002, 05-30-328-019, 05-30-
330-001, 05-30-328-018, 05-30-329-008, 05-30-329-016, 05-30-328-017, 05-30-
329-007, 05-30-329-015, 05-30-328-016, 05-30-329-006, 05-30-329-014, 05-30-
328-015, 05-30-329-005, 05-30-328-014, 05-30-329-013, 05-30-329-004, 05-30-
328-013, 05-30-329-012, 05-30-328-012, 05-30-329-003, 05-30-329-011, 05-30-
328-011, 05-30-329-002, 05-30-329-010, 05-30-328-010, 05-30-329-001, 05-30-
329-009, 05-30-327-005, 05-30-380-004, 05-30-379-006, 05-30-400-011, 05-30-
400-010, 05-30-400-012, 05-30-327-001, 05-30-379-005, 05-30-200-013 and parts
of PINS: 05-30-200-012; 05-30-200-017 and 05-30-400-008.

The public hearing opened at 8:32 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 7, 2018.
Ms. DelRose said the case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on July
25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July 20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated the
first final plat of this Planned Development was approved in 2008 with 15 single-
family lots and 43 two-family lots west of Shaw Road. The two-family lots were
proposed to have joint drives to encourage facing the garages internally rather than
towards the road. The applicant is requesting to amend conditions 6, 7 and 8 of
Ordinance 904G in order to remove the following language:



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

17 of 20

“All front load attached garages shall be located at a distance equal with or behind
the front fagade of the house, the porch, the entrance feature/pad, or the bay
window, whichever is closer to a public street. All attached side or rear load garages
shall be located at a distance that does not exceed 6 feet in front of the front fagade
of the house.”

The garages will still need to meet the required primary structure setbacks, size and
percentage of the front facade as defined in the planned development. Other design
requirements will still be in place.

The planning staff recommends approval of case 2018-20 subject to the following
conditions:

The Planned Development is granting only the following flexible standards:
Garage Setbacks (Section 150.204(A)(2)(B).

2. The Planned Development is only amending conditions 6, 7 and 8 of
Ordnance 904 G to read as follows:

6. Within Shaw Mills of River Run, detached single family building front facades
of the same color or of similar elevation shall not be located across the street
from one another (lots with 30% overlap or greater) or on adjacent lots. All
front facades of the single family homes located within the development shall
contain decorative brick or stone. 65% of said homes shall contain decorative
brick or stone on a minimum of 1/3 of the front facade. Front porches and
side or rear load garages are strongly encouraged. All front load garages
shall not occupy more than 65% of the front facade of the house in width. All
attached garages with garage doors facing a public street shall have a partial
roof/eave/overhang placed directly above on the same story.

7. Within Glenmoor of River Run, detached single family building front facades
of the same color or of similar elevation shall not be located across the street
from one another (lots with 30% overlap or greater) or on adjacent lots. 80%
of all of the homes located within the development shall contain decorative
brick or stone on a minimum of 1/3 of the front facade. All attached garages
with garage doors facing a public street shall not occupy more than 65% of
the front facade of the house in width. All attached garages with garage doors
facing a public street shall have a partial roof/eave/overhang placed directly
above on the same story.

8. Within Whispering Meadows Condos, building front facades of the same color
or of similar elevation shall not be located across the street from one another
(lots with 30% overlap or greater) or on adjacent lots. All front facades of the
two-family homes located within the development shall be of decorative brick



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

18 of 20

or stone. Front porches and side or rear load garages are strongly
encouraged. All front load garages shall not occupy more than 65% of the
front facade of the house in width. All attached garages with garage doors
facing a public street shall have a partial roof/eave/overhang placed directly
above on the same story.

There were no questions for the staff.
The applicant did not wish to make a statement.
The public hearing was closed at 8:40 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Racz/Cantrell) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Hyland) to recommend approval of case 2018-
20 subject to the conditions as presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call
vote.

2018-21; Neil-Boss (TA): The applicant, Jacquelyn Neil-Boss, 1101 N. Austin St,
Rockport, TX 78382 is requesting a text amendment to the City of Belvidere Zoning
Ordinance (Chapter 150 as amended) pertaining to Section 150.802 Nonconforming
Use Regulations and Section 150.902 Amendment of Zoning Regulations (Text
Amendments). The request will allow single-family residences in existence prior to
April 16, 1956 to be rebuilt in the Central Business District by special use.

The public hearing opened at 8:42 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 6, 2018.
Ms. DelRose stated the case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on
July 25, 2018. The proposed language was revised August 14, 2018 after
consultation with the city attorney. The proposed language is as follows:

Section 150.802(G)

The Owner of a legal, non-conforming single family residential structure (the
Structure), which was in existence prior to April 16, 1956, and is located, at the time
of application for a special use under this Section, in the CB, Central Business
District, may apply for consideration as a special use to allow the continued
existence or reconstruction of the Structure, if damaged or destroyed. Any such
Structure shall only be reconstructed so as to not expand the floor area or footprint
of the damaged or destroyed Structure.

Gina DelRose stated that there are some 17 lots within the central business district
that contain solely residential land uses. Although the desire is for the residential
properties to be redeveloped in line with the rest of the City’s downtown area, until



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

19 of 20

that time comes, the properties in this situation are having a difficult time obtaining
financing for repairs and/or transfer of ownership. Recently, lending institutions have
stopped approving loans and mortgages for legal non-conforming land uses. This
makes it difficult to maintain the residences until it is appropriate to redevelop them,
creating a situation where they may fall into a state of disrepair which negatively
affects the downtown and the community.

The residence at 519 South main Street is a unique situation; the property is a local
landmark. The residence is in very good shape and is up for sale. Repeated
attempts to secure financing have failed because of the zoning of the property.
Planning staff recommends approval of case 2018-21.

There were no questions for the staff.
The applicant’s representative did not wish to make a statement.
The public hearing was closed at 8:45 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Racz/Cantrell) to recommend approval of case 2018-
21. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

2018-22; Neil-Boss (SU): The applicant and property owner, Jacquelyn Neil-Boss,
1101 N. Austin Street, Rockport, TX 78382 is requesting a special use to continue
the use of a single-family residence at 519 S. Main Street within the CB, Central
Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Section 150.802(G)(pending text
amendment approval) and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures).
The special use will bring the residence commonly known as the Alexander House
into compliance. PIN: 05-25-361-007.

The public hearing opened at 8:46 p.m.

Gina DelRose was sworn in and summarized the staff report dated August 6, 2018.
Ms. DelRose said the case was published in the Belvidere Daily Republican on July
25, 2018 and certified mailings were sent on July 20, 2018. Ms. DelRose stated that
the residence has existed since 1902; it has been zoned commercial since the city’s
first zoning ordinance and map were adopted in 1956. The Zoning ordinance
prohibits extensive renovations and repairs from occurring on legal non-conforming
structures. Until recently, however, such structures could still be bought and sold.
Due to the economic recession that began in 2007, lending institutions have
changed their policies and will no longer approve mortgages. This creates a
situation where the residents cannot sell their houses even if they are still habitable.
Allowing the residence to remain empty while waiting for a commercial purchaser
increases the chance of this landmarked home falling into disrepair or being torn
down for redevelopment.



City of Belvidere

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
August 14, 2018

20 of 20

The planning staff recommends approval of case 2018-22 with no conditions.
There were no questions for the staff.

The applicant’s representative had no testimony to provide.

The public hearing was closed at 8:52 p.m.

It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Racz) to accept the findings of fact as
presented. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll cali vote.

It was moved and seconded (Cantrell/Hyland) to recommend approval of case 2018-
22. The motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

OTHER BUSINESS: None
DISCUSSION: None

Staff Report:

Gina DelRose stated there will be between two and a possible four cases for the
September meeting. Ms. DelRose stated the Boone County Museum of History's
annual Ice Cream Social will be held August 21 2018.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m.

Recorded by: Reviewed by:
Cathy Crawford Gina DelRose

Administrative Assistant Community Development Planner



Minutes
Committee of the Whole
Building, Planning, Zoning and Public Works
August 13, 2018
6:00 p.m.

Call to Order — Mayor Chamberlain:
Roll Call: Present: M. Borowicz, R. Brooks, G. Crawford, W. Frank, M. Freeman,

T. Porter, T. Ratcliffe, M. Sanderson, D. Snow and C. Stevens.

Absent:  None.

Department Heads and City personnel in attendance:
Budget and Finance Director Becky Tobin, Public Works Director Brent Anderson,
Police Chief Woody, City Attorney Drella and City Clerk Arco.
Public Comment;:
Public Forum: None.

Reports of Officers, Boards and Special Committees:

Mayor Chamberlain reported on the collaboration flyer between District 100 and RVC
offering credit and non-credit classes.

Growth Dimensions Report by Executive Director Pam Lopez-Fettes.

1. Building, Planning and Zoning, Unfinished Business: None.

N

Building, Planning and Zoning, New Business: None.

3. Public Works, Unfinished Business: None.

4. Public Works, New Business:

(A) Street Closure — Boone County Historical Museum.
Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2™ by Ald. Sanderson to provide barricades on Whitney Blvd
between Buchanan Street and Locust Street and State Street and Pleasant on August 21,

2018 for the Boone County Historical Museum’s Ice Cream Social. Aye voice vote
carried. Motion carried.



Committee of the Whole
August 13, 2018 2

(B) Cantilever Gate — Street Department Branch Pile.
Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Ratcliffe to approve the proposal from Northern
Contracting in the amount of $9,620 for the installation of a 30’ cantilever gate. This
work will be paid from the Street Department line item #01-5-310-6002. Aye voice vote
carried. Motion carried.

5. Adjournment:

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2" by Ald. Brooks to adjourn meeting at 6:29 p.m.
Aye voice vote carried. Motion carried.

Mayor

Attest: City Clerk




ORDINANCE # 415H

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 150,
ZONING ORDINANCE, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE
(Nonconforming Use Regulations)

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere has adopted Chapter 150 (Zoning Ordinance) of the
Belvidere Municipal Code pursuant to the lllinois Compiled Statutes to establish and set forth
regulations pertaining to the use and development of land, buildings and structures in the
City; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to periodically amend the Zoning Ordinance in
response to changes in technology, business and development practices, community
standards and to improve administration and enforcement procedures; and,

WHEREAS, after due notice, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing to
consider an amendment of the Zoning Ordinance on August 14, 2018 and has transmitted its
recommendation on the matter to the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the Planning and Zoning Commission's
recommendation.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF BELVIDERE, BOONE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That Section 150.013: Defintions, be and is hereby amended, to read as follows:

§150.013: Definitions

Essential Services...

Export of Energy: The onsite generation of wholesale electricity that is delivered to the utility
distribution network as allowed under long term contract with a public electrical utility as
defined by 220 ILCS 5/16-102.

Exterior Communication Devices (land use)...

Section 2. That Section 150.105(A)(1)(B): Rural Holding District, be and is hereby
amended, to read as follows:

(1) Rural Holding (RH) District
B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2.Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special Use
Single-Family - 40 acre lot Husbandry

Cultivation Intensive Agriculture

On-Site Agricultural Retail Agricultural Services
Selective Cutting Clear Cutting

Passive Outdoor Public Recreation Qutdoor Commercial Entertainment
Active Outdoor Public Recreation Commercial Animal Boarding



Ordinance #415H

Page 2 of 5
Outdoor Institutional Bed and Breakfast Establishments
Public Services and Utilities Campground

Waste Disposal Facility
Composting Operation
Airport/Heliport
Extraction Use

Non-building mounted solar installations for
export of energy for use by a Public Utility

Section 3. That Section 150.105(C)(7)(B): Planned Industrial District, be and is hereby
amended, to read as follows:

(7) Planned Industrial (Pl) District
B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special Use
Cultivation Clear Cutting

Selective Cutting Indoor Commercial Entertainment
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation  Indoor Sales or Service

Active Outdoor Public Recreation Day care center (3+ children)
Public Services and Utilities Artisan Studio/Production Shop
Office Personal Storage Facility
Personal or Professional Services Airport/Heliport

Indoor Maintenance Service Distribution Center

indoor Storage or Wholesaling Communication Tower

Light Industrial Campground

Off-Site Parking Lot
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance
In-vehicle Sales or Service

Non-building mounted solar installations for
export of energy for use by a Public Utility

Section 4. That Section 150.105(C)(8)(B): General Industrial District, be and is hereby
amended, to read as follows:
(8) General Industrial (Gl) District

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special Use
Cultivation Clear Cutting

Selective Cutting Day care center (3+ children)
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation  Artisan Studio/Production Shop
Public Services and Utilities Outdoor Storage or Wholesaling
Office Airport/Heliport

Indoor Maintenance Service Freight Terminal



Ordinance #415H

Page 3 of 5
Indoor Storage or Wholesaling Communication Tower
Off-Site Parking Lot Campground
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance Distribution Center
Personal Storage Facility Heavy Industrial
Light Industrial Shooting Range

Non-building mounted solar installations for
export of energy for use by a Public Utility

Section 5. That Section 150.105(C)(9)(B): Heavy Industrial District, be and is hereby
amended, to read as follows:

(9) Heavy Industrial (HI) District
B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special Use
Cultivation Agricultural Services

Selective Cutting Clear Cutting

Passive Outdoor Public Recreation  Outdoor Maintenance Service
Public Services and Utilities Sexually Oriented Land Use
Office Junkyard or Salvage Yard
Indoor Maintenance Service Waste Disposal Facility

Indoor Storage or Wholesaling Composting Operation
Outdoor Storage or Wholesaling Airport/Heliport

Off-Site Parking Lot Freight Terminal

Distribution Center Communication Tower

Light Industrial Extraction Use

Heavy Industrial Shooting Range

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance Non-building mounted solar installations for

export of energy for use by Public Utility



Ordinance #415H
Page 4 of 5

Section 6. That Appendix C: Land Use Summary Chart, be and is hereby amended, to read
as follows

Appendix C: Land Use Summary Chart

Tables of Land Uses (Storage/Disposal, Transportation, and Industrial

-Family Residential (SR-
-Family Residential (SR-

Institutional (1)

Type of Land Use

Storage/Disposal
(150.204(E))

(1) Indoor Storage or
Wholesaling

(2) Outdoor Storage or
Wholesaling

(3) Personal Storage
Facility

(4) Junkyard or Salvage
Yard

--.- Neighborhood Offic; NO

(5) Waste Disposal
Facility

(6) Composting Operation

Transportation Uses
(150.204(F))

(1) Off-Site Parking Lot

(2) Airport/Heliport

(3) Freight Terminal

——

I 1 O A 7
....-..--- Neighborhood éusiness NB

(4) Distribution Center

Industrial Uses
(150.204(G))

L0 L L (2| General Business (GB)

of
&) |
o
=
||
i
|
| |
i
| |

(1) Light Industrial

(2) Heavy Industrial

(3) Communication Tower

L L el [ [ ] @ | || Ppamedmieduseds

(4) Extraction Use




Ordinance #415H
Page 50of 5

Center (TC

_Planned Mixed Use 1 (PM 1
General Industrial (GI)

| General Business (GB
_Planned Mixed Use 4 (

Institutional (1)

Type of Land Use

ol
5 Z)
z al
ol 2
O | '®
= S
O ' m
© | O
(@] | O]
O (o]
£ | |
— | —_
@] i O
Keo] | O
N | -y
[ ©
zZ Z

| Technolog

(5) Non-building mounted
solar installations for
export of energy for use
by Public Utility

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Belvidere this day of , 2018.

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Belvidere this day of , 2018.

Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk

Ayes: _~  Nays: Absent

City Council Members Voting Aye:

City Council Members Voting Nay:

Date Published: Sponsor:




CITY OF BELVIDERE

%0%%(07@0’5} Dew ﬂ/@/m&né

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLANNING DEPARTMENT

401 WHITNEY BLVD. SCITE 300 BELVIDIRI, IL 61008 * PH (815547-7177 FAX (815)547-0789

August 3, 2018

ADVISORY REPORT
CASE NO: 2018-14 APPLICANT: TerraNavigator (solar panels)

REQUEST:

The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator), 888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA
92037, is requesting a text amendment to the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 150
as amended) pertaining to Sections 150.013 Definitions, 150.105(A)(1)(B) Rural Holding
District, 150.105(C)(7)(B) Planned Industrial District, 150.105(C)(8)(B) General Industrial
District, 150.105(C)(9)(B) Heavy Industrial District, Appendix C: Land Use Summary Chart and
Section 150.902 Amendment of Zoning Regulations (Text Amendments). The request will allow
non-building mounted solar installations for export of energy for use by Public Utility as a special
use in the above referenced zoning districts. The proposed language is below.

The methods used to show changes are:

0000000 = (Standard text) existing text within the zoning cade; no changes proposed.

»oaoonoeee = (Strike through text) text that is proposed to be deleted from the zoning code.

xxxxxxxxxxx = (Highlighted and underlined text) new text that is proposed to be inserted into the zoning code.

§150.013: Definitions

Lixport of Energy: The onstte generation of wholesale electricity that is delivered to the utility distribution

network as allowed under long term coutract with public electrical utility:

§150.105: Purpose and Intent of Standard Zoning Districts

The following subsections specify the purpose and intent of the standard zoning districts established by this
Chapter.

(A) Agticultural District

(1) Rural Holding (RH) District
B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right B2, Permitted as Special Use
Single-Family - 40 acre lot Husbandry
Cultivation Intensive Agriculture
On-Site Agricultural Retail Agtricultural Services
Selective Cutting Clear Cutting

Passive Qutdoor Public Recteation Outdoot Commercial Entertainment



Active Outdoor Public Recreation
Outdoor Institutional
Public Services and Utilities

(C) Nonresidential Districts

(7) Planned Industrial (PI) District

Case: 2018-14; TerraNavigator

Commercial Animal Boarding

Bed and Breakfast Establishments
Campground

Waste Disposal Facility

Composting Operation

Adrpott/Heliport

Extraction Use

Non-butlding mounted solar installauons for

export ol enerpy o

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2, Permitted by Right
Cultivation
Selective Cutting
Passive Qutdoor Public Recreation
Active Outdoot Public Recreaton
Public Services and Ultilities
Office
Personal or Professional Services
Indoor Maintenance Service
Indoor Stotage or Wholesaling
Light Industrial

(8) Genetal Industrial (GI) District

B2. Permitted as Special Use
Cleat Cutting

[ndoor Commercial Entertainment
Indoor Sales ot Service

Day cate center (3+ children)
Artisan Studio/Production Shop
Personal Storage Facility
Airport/Heliport

Distribution Center
Communication Tower
Campground

Off-Site Parking Lot

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance
[n-vehicle Sales or Setvice

Non-building mounted solar
mseallations tor export of enerpy For use
by Public Utility

B. List of Allowable Ptincipal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right
Cultivation
Selective Cutting
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation
Public Services and Utilities
Office

Indoor Maintenance Service

B2. Permitted as Special Use
Clear Cutting
Day care centet (3+ childeen)
Artisan Studio/Production Shop
Outdoor Storage or Wholesaling
Aitport/Helipott
Freight Terminal



Case: 2018-14; TerraNavigator

Indoor Stotage or Wholesaling Communication Tower
Off-Site Parking Lot Campground

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance Distribution Center
Personal Storage Facility Heavy Industrial

Light Industrial Shooting Range

Non-building mounted solar

installations for export of energy for use

by Public Utility

(9) Heavy Industrial (HI) District
B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (pet Article 2)

A2. Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special Use
Cultivation Agticultural Services
Selective Cutting Clear Cutting
Passive Qutdoor Public Recreation Outdoor Maintenance Service
Public Services and Utilides Sexually Oriented Land Use
Office Junkyard or Salvage Yard
Indoor Maintenance Service Waste Disposal [acility
Indoot Storage or Wholesaling Cotnposting Operation
Outdoot Storage or Wholesaling Airport/Heliport
Oft-Site Parking Lot Creight Terminal
Distribution Center Communication Towet
Light Industrial Extraction Use
Heavy Industrial Shooting Range

Vehicle Repait and Maintenance

Appendix C: Land Use Summary Chart

|
1 G
B :
| 3 | &
B E s] €
! Z g =
: 3 i g
.g | 2| i} .8
S S o d
<| gl & =
TINE S k] 3
Z & © = = Type of Land Use
i I' Storage/Disposal
1 |f (150.204(E))




Residential (SR-3!

ole-Famil

] L] ] s
L] (s

BACKGROUND:

-l...-.llll- Ne_if__!_xb.urhood Oftice

(N0

] ] =

|7 || General Business G

ed Use 1 (PM 1)

| %
| S
el
b &
g
=
il
L ]
|
i
S |
]
N
iII
—
[ |
|
i

A 1 N 2 N 2 O O YOOy

A 5 O O 7 O 2 O O

v Center '

Lechnlag

Case: 2018-14; TerraNavigator

General Indusrial (Gl

 fopeiel | elelels] ] ]| fsf ] =

Insarutonal (1)

Type of Land Use

(1) Indoor Storage ot
Wholesaling

(2) Outdoor Storage or
Wholesaling.

(3) Personal Storage Facility

(4) Junkyard or Salvage Yard

(3) Waste Disposal Facility

(6) Composting Operation

Transportation Uses

(150.204(F))

(1) Oft-Site Parking I.ot

(2) Airport/Heliport

(3) Freight Tetminal

(4) Disttibution Center

Industrial Uscs

(150.204(G))

(1) Light [ndustrial

(2) Feavy Industrial

(3) Communication Tower

(4) Extraction Use

(3) Non-building mounted

€ stallations for export

Due to the Future Energy Jobs Act (FEJA) and the State of lllinois’ renewable energy law which
mandates that 25% of power (including ComEd's power) come from renewable sources such as
wind and solar by 2025, there has been a significant increase in solar farms in the area.
Several applications have been made in Boone County; the Vilage of Poplar Grove is
undergoing a similar text amendment to allow applications in their jurisdiction as well.




Case: 2018-14; TerraNavigator

The language of the text amendment makes it clear that the special use is for the more
traditional solar farms, large ground-mounted projects that do not solely benefit the property on
which they are located. These projects generate electricity that is delivered to the utility
distribution network. If a resident or business wanted to install building-mounted panels for their
personal use, that would still be permitted. The text amendment would allow solar farms in the
rural holding, light industrial, general industrial and heavy industrial districts. These districts
often have the needed acreage, distance from residential developments and proximity to
ComEd infrastructure.

Requirements for solar farms such as acceptable plantings, size, location and decommissioning
will become conditions of approval for the special use. This is due to the varying size and types
of solar farms, ever-changing technology and state law already addressing some of the
concerns. SB3214 creates a set of criteria for pollinator-friendly solar site management
(landscaping), SB486 creates a standardized formula for assessed values and the depreciation
schedule and SB2591/HB4651 requires Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreements with the
lllinois Department of Agricultural.

Based upon this information, planning staff recommends approval of case 2018-14.

Submitted by:

%\N‘Mﬂ/\&

Gipa DelRose,
Commumty Development Planner




2.

Case: 2018-14; TerraNavigator

ATTACHMENTS

Letter from Boone County Health Department, Amanda Mehi, July 23, 2018.
Letter from Boone County Conservation District, Dan Kane, August 1, 2018.



07/25/2018 08:44 Administrative b\w (FAX) P.007/013

Boone County
Health Department

1204 Logan Avenue, Belviders, Illinois 61008
lic Health Main Office 815.544.2951 Clinic 815.544.9730 Fax 815.544.2050
Provent, Promote, Protuot. www.boonehealth.oré

The mission of the Boone County Haalth Departinent is to serve our community by
preventing tha apread of diseasa, promoting optimal wellness & protecting the public’s health.

July 23, 2018
FAX: 815-547-0789

Gina DelRose

Community Development Planer
401 Whitney Blvd Suite 300
Belvidere, IL. 61008

Re: TerraNavigator, Zoning Ordinance Amendment (2018-14)

Dear Gina,

We are in receipt of the application for a text amendment to the Zoning Regulations.
The Boone County Health Department has no comments.

Thank you,

(b Ik

Amanda Mehl
Administrator
sk



603 North Appleton Road, Belvidere, Illinois 61008
Phone: (815) 547-7935
Fax: (815)547-7939

August 1, 2018

Ms. Gina DelRose, Community Development Planner
401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 300
Belvidere, Illinois 61008

Re:  Case 2018-14; TerraNavigator, Zoning Ordinance Amendment

Ms. DelRose:

The Boone County Conservation District supports the proposed text amendment and has no
comments or suggestions to alter the proposed changes.

Thank you for your time and consideration of these comments.

Sinacerely,

P \ T e
Voo AT T

Dan Kane, Executive Director
Boone County Cofiservation District

c. District Files



MEMO

DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Case 2018-24; TerraNavigator, LLC

REQUEST:

The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator), 888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla,
CA 92037, is requesting a text amendment to the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
(Chapter 150 as amended) pertaining to Sections 150.013 Definitions, 150.105(A)(1)(B)
Rural Holding District, 150.105(C)(7)(B) Planned Industrial District, 150.105(C)(8)(B)
General Industrial District, 150.105(C)(9)(B) Heavy Industrial District, Appendix C: Land
Use Summary Chart and Section 150.902 Amendment of Zoning Regulations (Text
Amendments). The request will allow non-building mounted solar installations for export
of energy for use by Public Utility as a special use in the above referenced zoning
districts.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission motioned to approve case number 2018-14 as
amended. Motion carried with a 4-0 roll call vote.

220 11.CS 5/16-102

§150.105: Purpose and Intent of Standard Zoning Districts
The following subsections specify the purpose and intent of the standard zoning districts established
by this Chapter.

(A) Agricultural District

(1) Rural Holding (RH) District

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2, Permitted by Right  B2. Permitted as Special Use
Single-Family - 40 acre lot Husbandry
Cultivation Intensive Agticulture
On-Site Agricultural Retail Agricultural Services
Selective Cutting Clear Cutting
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation Outdoor Commercial Entertainment
Active OQutdoor Public Recreation Commercial Animal Boarding
Outdoor Institutional Bed and Breakfast Establishments

Public Services and Utilities Campground



Recommendation 2017-35; City of Belvidere

Waste Disposal Facility
Composting Operation
Airport/Heliport
Extraction Use

Non-building mounted solar installations for
export of energy for use by a Public Utility

(C) Nonresidential Districts
(7) Planned Industrial (PI) District

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2, Permitted by Right B2.
Use

Clear Cutting

Permitted as Special

Cultivation
Selective Cutting Indoor Commercial Entertainment
Indoor Sales or Service

Day care center (3+ children)
Artisan Studio/Production Shop
Personal Storage Facility
Airport/Heliport

Distribution Center

Communication Tower

Passive Outdoor Public Recteation
Active Outdoor Public Recreation
Public Services and Ultilities
Office

Personal or Professional Services
Indoor Maintenance Setrvice
Indoot Storage or Wholesaling
Light Industrial Campground

Off-Site Parking Lot

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance
In-vehicle Sales ot Service
Non-building mounted solar

by a Public Utility

(8) General Industrial (GI) District

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2, Permitted by Right B2.
Use
Clear Cutting
Day care center (3+ children)
Artisan Studio/Production Shop

Permitted as Special

Cultivation
Selective Cutting
Passive Qutdoor Public Recreation

Public Services and Utilities
Office

Indoor Maintenance Setvice
Indoor Storage or Wholesaling
Off-Site Parking Lot

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance
Personal Storage Facility

Outdoor Storage or Wholesaling
Airpott/Heliport

Freight Terminal
Communication Tower
Campground

Distribution Center

Heavy Industrial



Recommendation 2017-35; City of Belvidere

Light Industrial Shooting Range

Non-building mounted solar
installations for export of energy for use
by a Public Utility

(9) Heavy Industrial (HI) District

B. List of Allowable Principal Land Uses (per Article 2)

A2, Permitted by Right B2. Permitted as Special
Use

Cultivation Agricultural Services
Selective Cutting Clear Cutting
Passive Qutdoor Public Recreation Outdoor Maintenance Service
Public Services and Ultilities Sexually Otiented Land Use
Office Junkyard or Salvage Yard
Indoor Maintenance Service Waste Disposal Facility
Indoort Storage or Wholesaling Composting Operation
Outdoor Storage or Wholesaling Airport/Heliport
Off-Site Parking Lot Freight Terminal
Distribution Center Communication Tower
Light Industrial Extraction Use
Heavy Industrial Shooting Range
Vehicle Repair and Maintenance Non-building mounted s

installations for export of energy for use
by a Public Utility

: _I_}borhoo_d Business

&l <
= = |
8 / =
‘B
- :
et el | 2
H B EH E
g S|BSl © e 2
izl m ~ = Type of Land Use
: .‘ . : Storage/Disposal
- .. (150.204(E))
.." : ! (1) Indoor Stotage ot
| ‘ | " Wholesaling
: !' . (2) Outdoor Storage or
.| 5] Wholesaling
£ S [l | (3) Personal Storage Facility




Recommendation 2017-35; City of Belvidere

‘hborhood Office
Institutional (I)

Type of Land Use

(4) Junkyard or Salvage Yard

(5) Waste Disposal Facility

(6) Composting Operation

Ttransportation Uses

(150.204(F))

(1) Off-Site Parking Lot

(2) Airport/Heliport

(3) Freight Terminal

(4) Distribution Center

Jelerleols] | | || | General Industeial @1

Industrial Uses
(150.204(G))

E
| B
p
|
:Ii
| B
N .
B

(1) Light Industrial

(2) Heavy Industrial

(3) Communication Tower

T T T

(4) Extraction Use

(5) Non-building mounted
olar installati

oun
s for exg

The methods used to show changes are:

XXXXXxxxxxx = (Standard text) existing text within the zoning code; no changes proposed.
¥00000000e¢ = (Strike through text) text that is proposed to be deleted from the zoning code.
xxoxxxxxxxx = (Highlighted and underlined text) new text that is proposed to be inserted into the
zoning code.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



Belvidere #1 Landfill

TerraNavigator Special Use Permit
Case # 2018-15

City of Belvidere Planning Commission
August 14, 2018



AGENDA

TerraNavigator Introduction
Project Vision and Benefits

Project Overview
Findings for proposed Special Use
o Case #2018-15 Special Use TerraNavigator
Belvidere #1 Landfill
Relevant Project Topics
Questions?



4@ TerraNavigator

RESTORE

Parks & Redrealion, Habital Restoration,

Developer Experience HES

. 50+ years of project development experience —_—
>$15B in transaction experience
Partnered with Project Navigator- Environmental management expertise REDEVELOP

Entitlement, Industiial, Commercial, and
Residential

Investment Approach
Impact Investment

« Transparency and Fairness
Consensus Driven Decision Making

Win/Win Partnerships and Repeatable Transaction Structure
#1 priority is to quickly align interests
Committed to pursuing opportunities that lead to mutually-beneficial and economically viable projects
“Open-Book” Partnership and fully transparent process

Contracting Approach/Local Preference

- Offers proven capability to execute on the proposed solution

- Utilize qualified, local resources to assist with project development, construction and operations

. Listen to customers and stakeholder recommendations into consideration when selecting sub-contractors and

service providers.



_——- e T T e e ]

Vision for Site

Economic Driven Re-Development Vision: Ballasted Solar Project

v We believe a ballasted solar project can provide operational
cost savings, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT and ADAPTIVE REUSE
of brownfield real estate in Belvidere.

Cleaner Energy
v The clean energy project will provide LOWER COST, CLEAN
ENERGY to the residents of Belvidere.

Environmental Stewardship

v Our Impact Investment is focused in BENEFICIAL REUSE of
environmentally challenged and underutilized sites like the
Belvidere #1 Landfill.

Respect for Community

v/ LOCAL CONTRACT PREFERENCE, allowing for opportunities to
bring temporary and permanent employment to residents of
Belvidere and Boone County.




e = Y s eyt S [ SR | E | xS = T R = =

Project Benefits

» Beneficial, adaptive reuse of the closed landfill property, allowing surrounding lands to
be preserved for more productive, existing land uses

» Economic development from new long-term lease revenues
» Real Property tax revenues

» Part Time Construction employment and on-the-job training for the clean energy
economy

» 1-2 FTE associated with O&M activities

» Subcontractor and supplier procurement from local providers for O&M activities
» Creation of Pollinator habitat (SB3214)

» No cap penetration or disturbance of existing environmental conditions

» Easily sited around existing ground water monitoring, gas wells, or other existing
infrastructure associated with the Landfill Closure plan

» Enhanced site security, monitoring, and vegetation mgmt.
> Operational cost savings to community solar subscribers for renewable energy



Brownfield Solar- lllinois Power Authority

Types of Solar

Probable MW

of Size Limit per Project, per the
Development Future Energy Jobs Act
by 2025

Description

System Is on the customer's roof (main buliding or All'behind-the-meter projects are

Residential ] limited to 2 MW in size, bul each must
accasgsory structure). In rare instances, a residential 300 » '
Rooftop Solar be sized to appropriately meet the
ustomer ma nt to put solar on the ground.
S0 y want fo p g0 owner's elactric need. A typical
. ) , id | project Is b 13-10
System is on the customer's property, either on the p .
commetcial s roof (main building or accessory struclure) or the 300 (R LD EV G (778

Industrial Solar

ground. coud be 10 kW -2 Mw.dependmg on

Generally, a larger system where a bination of
several entities (residents, businesses,
governmants) have a partial interest (subscriplion)
in the output of a sy Syst: can be | d 275-325
on a roof or on the ground, but do not have lo be
located near the subscribers. Projects are limited to
2 MW in size (10-12 acres).

The Future Energy Jobs Act limits
each communily solar project to 2
MW (10-12 acres), however
developers may be allowed to locate
more than one project at the same
site (co-locate).

Community
Solar

Brownfield
Solar

There is no minimum or maximum

suitable for redevelopment, such as closed landfills 35-50 Sperfor browniiold projecls!

or Superfund sites
Systems must be larger than 2 MW,

Utility Scale Large systems (2 MW-200 MW) that generally do but have no upward limit. These
silar not serve an indiidual customer and are located 750-1000 projects could use anywhere from 10
near electrical infrastructure. acres to 100s of acres for a single

project



Project Location: 825 Appleton Road, Belvidere, IL, 61008
Preliminary Engineering Site Plan

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

CAPACITY (AT) 200 MW
CAPAGITY 051 ZALW
CCAL RATIO V22
(A COLLEGTION SYSTEM =
|mme

SYSTEM VOLTAGE 1,500V
TOTAL MODIAES (AL
MODLULES FER STRING )
STRINGS PER INVERTER %
TOTAL %
BATTERY ENERGY Wik ) = y =

TORAGE | & : - H

GROUND COVERRATIO | 4% f——
RACKING. 35° FIXED TILT .\ L o ) B
ROW TOROWSPACING __|24.17 o 7 5 \
[eotmpary avea 0 ACRES B s L Sl
|Fvamen 13 ACRES O i




Solar Anatomy — Ballasted Racking Systems

Non-Cap Penetrating Racking

= Pre-Cast or Cast-in-Place Ballast Blocks

= Racking designed in accordance with load bearing
capacity of cap

= Racking also designed in accordance with existing
landfill gas collection and monitoring systems to
ensure access and to facilitate OM&M program

* No cap damage or penetration




Solar Anatomy — Above Ground Electrical

Non Cap Penetrating Electrical
= String wiring typically mounted to back of racking
system

= Multiple strings are typically routed through cable
trays to combiner boxes, and then run above
ground to inverters

= No cap damage or penetration




Solar Anatomy — Raceways and Switchgear

Above Ground Feeders

= From combiner boxes, feeders are
aggregated via a DC collection system to
the inverter stations (as shown below)

= Feeders from the inverter stations (now
converted to AC power, shown below)
constitute the AC collection system that
connects to the medium voltage switchgear




Findings for Special Use

A. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.
= Adaptive reuse of underutilized, “brownfield” real estate provides for community uplift from the Belvidere 1 Landfill
«  No visual Impact; Enhancement of site thru maintenance and pollinator friendly habitat
- Provides a necessary and attractive new generation source for the residents of Belvidere and customers in ComEd’s

service territory.

A. The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its location and in its specific location, will be in
harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive
Plan, Section 150.904 of the Belvidere Zoning Ordinance and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or
under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

» Little to no impact on adjacent properties: Passive recreation- BCCD
» No alternative uses for closed municipal landfill




Standards for Special Uses (Cont.)

C. The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan, result in a
substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental
factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare,

« Pollinator Habitat;

¢ Enhanced vegetation management and site security;

« Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions associated with power generation for ComEd, equivalent to the
removal of 656 cars per year;

¢ Generate power for use of approximately 459 homes per year

Belvideres




Standards for Special Uses (Cont.)

E.

The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement
of surrounding property, and maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land
use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property.
* The proposed solar farm meets the applicable regulations of the City of Belvidere
*  Project is designed as a low-impact project that takes into account consideration and sensitivity to the
surrounding community, City of Belvidere development requirements.

The proposed Special Use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an
undue burden on, any of the improvement facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing
the subject property.

*  Minimal to no impact on access roads, traffic, or public infrastructure

* No required extension of public utilities to serve project;

The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any and all potential adverse impacts of
the proposed special use after taking into consideration the Applicant's proposal and any requirements
recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

+ Economic Development

* Visual Enhancement and ongoing vegetation management

* Clean, renewable energy for City of Belvidere



Decommissioning Plan

« 35 year lifecycle for solar technology
* Entirely Above grade installation enables easier removal; Return to existing condition
+ Site control documents include binding obligation for posting of surety equal to 100% of cost of
removal of system;
» TerraNavigator responsible for 100% of removal costs;
* Final system size to be confirmed following January IPA Solicitation
* Final Engineering will determine total quantities and labor hours for system removal;
» Calculation of value of recycled materials: Glass, copper, steel, aluminum, equipment
+ Recommendation: Condition of Approval (COA) require submittal of 3™ party engineered report with
Building plan set;
+ Recommendation: Condition of Approval require evidence of surety posted, prior to issuance of
building permit




_——-— e T e e T T e R TR )

Fire Safety & Training

»  Meeting with Craig Wilcox, Belvidere Fire Department
+  Prior to Certification of Operations (COD) TerraNavigator will complete onsite orientation and training
» System Shutdown/Disconnects
* Industry BMP’s
« Perimeter and interior access roads provide access to all areas of project
+ Project safety signage on 7°0” perimeter fence (NEC Code) mﬂ';’;’ % 7’ v"'w
« 24 hour system monitoring thru security and onsite data acquisition system t‘ ¥ A
* Regular vegetation management 1S ¢ A/ g U8 ? ) 6918
»  “Knox Box” access for all Emergency Management Services Y,




Site security

» 6’0” Chain Link perimeter security fence
24 hour Remote-monitored cameras & alarm
system

* Notifications of equipment errors

» Security breach

* Remote trouble shooting
Regular scheduled equipment inspections
Vegetation management and pollinator habitat
Clear Site access

* Knox box access for EMS




Questions?




Construction Timeframe

» Approximately 3 months; Fall 2019
» 3-4 trucks per day at height of construction
» Max weight of trucks 68,000

Operations & Maintenance

» Remote monitoring and security
» 2-3 visits/year for equipment monitoring
» 2-3 visits/year for mowing

» No pesticides or herbicides

Decommissioning

|
4

Easily removable, above grade system

Decommissioning plan

Impacts During Operation

>
>
[ 4

Minimal noise only during construction
No traffic impacts

Little to no impacts on County utilities or
services

No property value impacts



ORDINANCE NO. 416H

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
TO PERMIT A SOLAR FARM
WITHIN THE RH, RURAL HOLDING DISTRICT
(825 N. Appleton Road)

WHEREAS, The City of Belvidere has adopted Chapter 150, Zoning Ordinance
in accordance with the provisions of lllinois Compiled Statutes to regulate the use
of land and to specify the minimum requirements for improvements on land in the
City of Belvidere; and

WHEREAS, Special Uses are certain municipal or private uses that due to their
physical or operational characteristics may pose a threat to the value, use and
enjoyment of adjoining property; are reviewed on a case by case basis; and are
permitted only by permission of the Belvidere City Council; and,

WHEREAS, The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator, LLC), 888 Prospect
St., Suite 200, La Jolla, CA 92037 on behalf of the property owner, Boone
County Conservation District, 603 N. Appleton Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 has
petitioned the City for a Special Use to permit a solar farm; and

WHEREAS, after due notice by publication pursuant to the lllinois State Statutes,
the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on
August 14, 2018 concerning the proposed Special Use; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission having
examined the application and having considered the evidence, both oral and
documentary and being fully advised about the premises did make findings of
fact and a recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the City considered the findings of fact
and concur with the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF BELVIDERE, BOONE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. That a Special Use in the RH, Rural Holding District for a solar farm
on the property depicted in Attachment A and legally described as:



Ordinance No. 416H
Page 2 of 9

A part of Section 27, Township 44 North, Range 3 East of the Third
Principal Meridian in Boone County, lllinois, described as follows:
Beginning at a point in the North line of the Northwest Quarter of said
Section 587.00 feet East from the Northwest Corner of said Section;
thence along an old fence line as follows: South 683.00 feet to a point;
thence South 40 degrees 00 minutes West 77.00 feet to a point; thence
North 85 degrees 00 minutes West 172.00 feet to a point; thence South 22
degrees 45 minutes East 1384.00 feet to a point; thence South 38
degrees 00 minutes East 61.00 feet to a point; thence South 125.00 feet
to the center line of the Kishwaukee River; running thence Southeasterly
along the center line of said River as follows: South 68 degrees 40
minutes East 212.00 feet to a point which is 1522.62 feet West of the East
line of the West Half of said Section 27 and 37.50 feet North of an iron
stake set on the South bank of the Kishwaukee River 3026.70 feet North
of the South line of said Section; thence South 68 degrees 00 minutes
East 286.00 feet to a point; thence South 43 degrees 45 minutes East
548.00 feet to a point; thence South 16 degrees 50 minutes East 160.00
feet to a point; thence South 10 degrees 00 minutes East 280.00 feet to a
point; thence South 21 degrees 00 minutes East 320.00 feet to a point;
thence South 42 degrees 28 minutes East 568.00 feet to a point; thence
South 65 degrees 00 minutes East 319.00 feet to the point of intersection
of said center line of the Kishwaukee River and the East line of the
aforesaid West Half of Section 27; running Thence North along said East
line 4029.00 feet to an iron stake marking the Northeast corner of said
West Half of Section 27; running West along the North line of said Section
2053.00 feet to the place of beginning. (Excepting therefrom that part
thereof described in document recorded in Boone County, lllinois, in Book
102, Page 9, and also excepting a parcel of 1 acre in the Northwest corner
of the West Half of Section 27 which is described as the North 231 feet of
the East 188.57 feet of the West Half of said Section27). Also beginning
at the Southwest Corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section Twenty-
seven (27) Township Forty-four (44) North, Range Three (3) East of the
Third Principal Meridian, North Eleven and twenty-seven hundredths
(11.27) chains along the West line of said Quarter Section to a point of
beginning, thence North along said Quarter Section line one hundred
(100) feet thence South Seventy-nine (79) degrees, twenty (20) minutes
East for a distance of Sixty-seven (67) feet, thence North Seventy-six (76)
degrees, forty-six (46) minutes East Eighty-two (82) feet, thence South
One hundred and Eighty (180) feet, thence North Seventy-nine (79)
degrees and Twenty (20) minutes West a distance of One Hundred (100)
feet to the point of beginning. PIN: 05-27-100-005.



Ordinance No. 416H
Page 3 of 9

is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:

1. Substantial compliance with the narrative and site plan submitted, unless
otherwise noted. (Attachment B).

2. The plans shall be revised to show proper access for fire apparatus.

3. The applicant shall provide training to the Belvidere Fire Department
pertaining to the hazards in conducting fire control and extinguishment of the
proposed solar system.

4. All work conducted on the subject property shall be reviewed and approved
by the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

5. All areas within the fencing must be maintained by the project operator
(applicant and future lessees) in accordance with the Environmental
Protection Agency’s requirements for the length of the project. This includes
maintenance of the vegetation and fencing.

6. The project operator shall maintain the landfill cap as required by state and
federal agencies.

7. The project operator shall repair any inadequacies in the landfill cap, such as
divets, prior to the installation of the development.

8. The project operator shall ensure that the landfill site is secure from public
access, except as permitted for educational activities overseen by the Boone
County Conservation District. A minimum of 7-foot tall fencing and signage
shall be installed around the perimeter of the landfill.

9. The existing underground power lines shall be utilized unless reasonable
proof can be submitted showing they are inadequate.

10.All vegetation shall be approved by the Environmental Protection Agency and
the Boone County Conservation District. Pollinator friendly vegetation shall
be used.

11.A decommissioning plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of
Belvidere and the Boone County Conservation District prior to the
commencement of the development.

12.A surety, covering the complete execution of the decommissioning plan for
when the project ends shall be posted.

Section 3. That the premises shall be used in accordance with and subject to
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belvidere and
shall not be used except as may otherwise be expressly authorized by the
applicable law and the special use.

Section 4. That acceptance of any of the benefits of this Special Use shall be
deemed acceptance of all the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.



Ordinance No. 416H
Page 4 of 9

Section 6. If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision
of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder
thereof, which remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Belvidere this day of :
2018.
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Belvidere this day of ,
2018.

Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk

Ayes: Nays: Absent:

City Council Members Voting Aye:

City Council Members Voting Nay:

Date Published: Sponsor:




Ordinance No. 416H

Page 5 of 9
ATTACHMENT A
3 B8
I w75 it L\r.u’zm-nk—J l 8732
o 2 WESTHILLSBIND—"2
1368 3 8567 g . FIERGE-GT E:
prsiCsod 420
m 2
S
2927
S

~—

BAR WG b A

ol

MARSEAANDET:
JAMESGT

CASE 2018-15

TerraNavigater, LLC
| 825 North Appleton Road
suU

b ket L N G OL N E ]
z Kishwaukea Rver

\\N‘ :
: “"\Rfmc__,

SON=§
i ]
W =
E -g-
5 g
T —W.PERRY- s!'r-—§ —_
3 g

3 0 -—rmx-x\!is-s'r e
p— [~
i " ""'J\'H_' "a‘?d‘ 2239 0oy fis h\'t}“‘“m..—a—-—«.\\
T NEWBCRGRY), R
3 2
1 Y o
740 bl 5 3
2
N
2 6765 |7
S
1inch = 1,163 feet 1000 1201 1222




Lol

45§

WP UIR |

i

- i

palielusal.

T

ATTACHMENT B

L e

PRELIMINARY - NOT
FOR CONSTRUCTION

N BURNS
//Ingzzm_u_n

Ordinance No. 416H
Page 6 of 9




Ordinance No. 416H
Page 7 of 9

@ TerraNavigator

June 21, 2018

Ms. Gina DelRose

Community Development Planner
City of Belvidere

401 Whitney Blvd, Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

Dear Ms. DelRose,

As you know, TerraNavigator (“Developer') wishes to submit a special use permit (“SUP™) application for a ballasted,
ground mount solar project at the Belvidere Landfill | (the “Project Arca™), localed near 825 North Appleton Road, Belvidere,
IL 61008 (the “Property™), for development and the operation of commercial solar energy generation (the “Project™).

Our firm is distinguished by the unique combination of our environmental management and clean energy project development
expertise to redevelop underutilized real estate for renewable energy generation. We believe the adaptive reuse of
brownfields, landfills and “Superfund” sites are an intelligent reuse to provide economic development, community
uplift, and renewable energy for the residents of Belvidere. Our “Impacl-investment” approach to site selection maximizes
the economic development benefits to the local community by providing new revenues, real property taxes, on-the-job training,
and part-time/full time employment resulting from the proposed solar project. By purposely not directing our expettise towards
converting productive land uses (A-1 Prime Farm land, etc.) for renewable energy generation, we preserve the established
identity City of Belvidere, for tuture generations.

The following document is provided in support of our SUP for the proposed project at the Belvidere Landfill 1.

TerruNavigator Overview

Our project team has a combined more than 50 years of project development experience working for Fortune 500 and
industry-leading players including: Unocal, BP, Chevron, NRG, Sempra, PacifiCorp, SDG&E, and Swinerton. Collectively,
we have over $15B in domestic and international transaction experience, developing renewable energy assets including wind,
solar, pipelines, energy storage, hydro, transmission, natural gas and geothermal, Our sister company, Project Navigator, has
been providing environmental services to owners and stakeholders as well as managing environmentally impacted and
surplus properties for over 20 years. As a result, our firm p all the ry resources, experience, and
sophistication to execute the proposed development, construction, finance, and operations of the project at the
Belvidere Landfill 1.

Project Overview- Ballasted, ground mount solar ) . -

TerraNavigator’s focus on brownfield, landfill and superfund sitc redevelopment is anchored in the technical approach
made possible through the utilization of concrete ballast blocks. The blocks eliminate the need for structural piles to penetrate
the ground, thereby (a) preserving the current site conditions and (b) eliminating damage to existing subsurface infrastructure
(tile drains, utilities, etc.). A licensed structural professional engineer (P.E.) determines the size and number of ballast needed
by performing calculations that incorporate topographical data, wind and snow loads, while optimizing the basis of design for
photovoltaic energy generation. The system is installed on the “top deck™ of the landfill, while also praviding a tolerance up

888 Prospect Streel, Suite 200, La Jolla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 www terranavigator com



Ordinance No. 416H
Page 8 of 9

@TerraNavigator

to 10% grade.

The second benefit of a ballasted racking installation is the elimination ot the requirement to install the electrical
collection system (conductors, conduits, etc.) underground. The collection systemn insteud utilizes a network of raceway
channels under the racking system for conductors. This provides ease of access for inspections during the Operations and
Maintenance period.

Ultimately, the proposed project will sit entirely ahove grade, eliminating the risks and challenges of subsurtace
conditions.

Operations & Maintenance

Once constructed, operation of the Project is remotely monitored and requires no on-site personnel. The project will
be secured by a remotely monitored security system that will provide alarms for both security and routine maintenance
requirements. The project will have a security fence around the perimeter, with signage providing for safety notifications and
information.

During the life of the system, the project will have regularly scheduled vegetation management in accordance with the
existing post closure ceport, and to promote low growing pollinator vegetation. Finally, the Project Area will be walked on a
regular basis for evaluation of other potential issues related to safety, security, or environmental protection.

Compatibility with Land Use Plan -
The following summary is provided in support of a tinding by the Planning Commission in favor of the proposed project on
the Belvidere Landfill 1.

First, the adaptive reuse of underutilized real estatc provides for community uplift from the Belvidere Landfill 1. We believe
the proposed project has little to no adverse effect on the surcounding properties and is compatible with Land Use Plan for City
ol'Belvidere and post closure report for the landfill.

Secondly, with the continued emergence of the clean energy economy in [llinois and retirement of coal generation plants, the
proposed project provides a necessary and attractive new generation source for the residents of City of Belvidere and customers
in ComEd’s service tervitory. More specitically, the proposed project will have the following Project Benefits:

e Economic development for new long-lerm lease revenues;

» Real Property tax revenues, or PILOT:

e Part Time Construction employment, “on the job™ training for emerging Illinois clean energy economy;

o 1.2 FTE associated with O&M activities;

o Subcontractor and supplier procurement from local providers tor O&M activities;

¢ Beneficial, adaptive reuse of closed landfill real estate; preservation of more preductive, existing land uses

s No cap penetration or disturbance of existing environmental conditions

o Easily sited around existing ground water monitoring, gas wells, or other existing infrastructure associated

with the Landfill Closure plan;
o Provides enhanced security to property

The proposed clean energy project will have little to no impact upon the adjacent properties or residents of Belvidere. The
installation of the project will require approximately 3 months, with all of the equipment deliveries within first 2-3 weeks. The
project will require no extensian ot public utilitics, and have no occupied facilities onsite. As a result, the project will have
minimal to no-impact on access roads, traffic, public infrastructure, or the gencral public.

More specifically, the proposed project will have the following positive impacts:
e Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions associated with power generation for ComEd, equivalent to
the removal of 656 cars for one year;

888 Prospect Street, Suite 200 La Jalla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 www terranavigator com



Ordinance No. 416H
Page 9 of 9

0 TerraNavigator

*  Generate power equivalent to the demand of 459 homes, for one year

Decommissioning Plan
The Project is proposed with a 35-year design life. At the end of the Project’s design life, all equipment, including racking

systems, panels, inverters, ballast foundations, and electrical collection systems, will be removed in accordance with the
Project’s Decommissioning Plan. The decommissioning plan will be submitted with our final project design set for review by
the City of Belvidere. The Project currently has commitments in its agreements with all of the landowners to remove the
equipment at the end of the Project’s useful life and decommission the Project. [n all of the agreements, the Project has an
abligation to decommission all above-grade facilities and foundations and restore the surface to a condition similar to that as
it existed at the inception of the Project, as well as repair any damage to the leased area as a result of removing the
improvements. It is anticipated that the salvage value of the equipment would fully offset the cost of decommissioning and
restoration. The salvaged equipment includes steel, aluminum, copper, glass, and electrical equipment.

If there is any further information or clarification that can be provided in support of our application, please do not
hesitate to contact me at (858) 461-9252 or v!ilich e tervanavigator.con.

Very truly yours,

Christian F. Dick,
TerraNavigator, LL.C

o, (s N3 Stk

Its: Sr. Director, Project Development

388 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 MWW tarranavigator.com



CITY OF BELVIDERE

%0/ mmunily __@;«a—e/@/b ment

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLANNING DEPARTMENT

401 WHITNEY BLVD. SUITE 300 BELVIDERE, IT. 61008 * I’H (815)547-7177 F'AX (815)547-0789

August 8, 2018

ADVISORY REPORT
CASE NO: 2018-15 APPLICANT: TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator, LLC), 888 Prospect St, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA
92037 on behalf of the property owner, Boone County Conservation District, 603 N. Appleton
Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting a special use to install non-building mounted solar
installations for export of energy for use by Public Utility (pending text amendment approval) at
825 North Appleton Road within the RH, Rural Holding District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Section 150.150(A)(1)(B) and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
solar farm will encompass approximately 15 acres and is located on top of a closed municipal
landfill (part of PIN: 05-27-100-005).

EXISTING LAND USE ON SUBJECT PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTY:
Subject property: Inactive municipal landfill within the Boone County Conservation District
Adjacent property:

North: Residential and open space

South: Residential, Industrial and Belvidere's waste water treatment plant
West: Row crop production

East: Residential and First Baptist Church of Belvidere

ZONING ON SUBJECT PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTY:

Subject property: RH, Rural Holding District

Adjacent property:

North: RH, Rural Holding District, SR-6, Single-family Residential-6 District and
Unincorporated Boone County

South: SR-4, Single-family Residential-4 District, Pl, Planned Industrial District and I,
Institutional District

West: Unincorporated Boone County

East: RH, Rural Holding District, SR-6, Single-family Residential-6 District, |, Institutional
District and Unincorporated Boone County

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
Subject property: Passive Recreation

Adjacent property:
North: Environmental Corridor, Mixed Use and Single Family Residential




2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

South: Passive Recreation and Institutional
West: Single Family Residential, Vacant and Passive Recreation
East: Single Family Residential, Mixed Residential and Institutional

***Since the special use occupies a small portion of a 357-acre, irregularly shaped parcel,
adjacent property information refers to properties closest to the special use location.

BACKGROUND:

Although the landfill (a former gravel pit) is only 15-20 acres in size, the entire parcel is 357
acres (Spencer Conservation Area). The landfill was operated by the City of Belvidere from
1939-1965. While still maintaining ownership, the landfill was operated by private contractors
from 1965-1973. It was during this time that suspected hazardous waste was dumped on-site.
The landfill was closed in 1973, when the City began utilizing the new municipal landfill on
lllinois Route 76. A borrow pit was utilized to place the first cap on the landfill.

The Boone County Conservation District purchased the property in 1976. In 1979 another cap
was placed on the landfill and in 1981, the final cap was deemed inadequate in some areas.
The inadequate cap created a potential threat to surface and groundwater, leading the landfill to
be placed on the National Priorities List in 1982. In 1983, after the listing was finalized, the
landfill became a superfund site. Superfund sites are sites where known release or threatened
releases of hazardous substances, pollutants or ather contaminants have occurred.

Remediation studies and plans were created in 1984 and 1988 in response to being declared a
superfund site. Drums of potential hazardous materials were removed from the property in
1986 and remediation activities occurred between 1989-1992. Due to these efforts, the landfill
was removed from the National Priorities List in 2015 although routine operations and
maintenance is still required.

Due to the history of the property, the type of solar installation that the applicant is proposing
(pending text amendment approval) would use concrete ballast blocks that eliminate the need
for structural piles to penetrated the ground. The electrical infrastructure does not need to be
below ground either. The project can be developed entirely above ground and would produce
minimal water run-off The panels will not exceed seven feet in height and will be secured by a
seven-foot security fence. The project is anticipated to take three months to install.

The proposed project has a 35-year design life and all equipment will be required to be removed
and the site restored per the decommissioning plan. The proposed project is anticipated to
produce enough energy to power 459 homes a year and reduce greenhouse gas emissions
equivalent to removing 656 cars from the roads a year.

The maintenance and security of the property, currently handled by the City of Belvidere and the
Boone County Conservation District will become the responsibility of the applicant and any
future operators of the solar farm. The property will be required to be landscaped with low
maintenance plants that act as natural pollinators. These plantings, which will require approval
by the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency will be beneficial to the neighboring properties
and conservation efforts.

TREND OF DEVELOPMENT:

The property is located within the Boone County Conservation District. There is a mix of
residential and Institutional Development along Appleton Road and a mix of residential and
industrial development along Newburg Road.



2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The subject property is designated as “Passive Recreation” by the City of Belvidere
Comprehensive Plan, adopted July 19, 1999. The passive recreation map category encourages
open space facilities generally devoted to trails, picnic areas, gardens and related recreation
activities

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare.

The solar panels will be located on top of an old landfill that is surrounded by the Boone
County Conservation District. The property is not currently accessible by the general public
and is visually obscured by trees within the Spencer Conservation Area. There will be no
visual impact to the public and the special use will not reduce the public's ability to utilize
Spencer Conservation Area.

Due to the special use being located on a landfill, the IEPA will be involved with the
installation, operation and maintenance of the development. Staff is not aware of any
potential negative impacts to the wildlife in the area and |EPA regulations will minimize any
potential negative impacts to the soil and vegetation.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its location
and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives,
policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan, Section 150.904
of the Belvidere Zoning Ordinance and any other plan, program, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

Only authorized personnel can access the property due to the cantinued maintenance and
monitoring of the landfill. The surrounding property owned by the Boone County
Conservation District is meeting the goals of the Comprehensive Plan and being used for
passive recreation. The landfill, however, is not suitable for such activities.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map,
or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by
the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development.

There are many kinds of solar farms, each having their own set of environmental impacts.
Solar farms can be thousands of acres in size, some require that all vegetation be removed
which impacts wildlife by loss of habitat, some are constructed on cement pads that
increase surface water run-off, some radiate heat and some feed into a tower that can be



2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

dangerous for birds and insects. The proposed development will occupy 15 acres of the 19-
acre landfill, be constructed on ballasts that sit above ground and be planted with
appropriate vegetation. The panels will be approximately seven-feet above ground and are
not anticipated to create a glare or radiate a large quantity of heat. The site is currently
fenced off from the rest of the conservation area and will continue to be so. This will prevent
larger wildlife from entering. Staff does not anticipate that this specific development will
create any negative environmental impacts.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

The development is located within the Spencer Conservation Area, owned and operated by
the Boone County Conservation District. The development’'s production of non-carbon
based electricity and the ability to be used as a form of educational research will benefit the
Boone County Conservation District and the City of Belvidere. Due to the size of the
Spencer Conservation Area, there is limited nearby development for the special use to
impact.

E. Findings: The proposed Special Use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement facilities,
utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject property.

The subject property is a closed landfill within the Boone County Conservation District which
is served with municipal utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any and
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’'s proposal and any requirements recommended by the
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

Requirements of the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency, the Boone County
Conservation District and conditions of approval will mitigate any potential negative impacts
of the special use. The improvements made to the property due to the special use will be a
benefit to the community.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS:

The solar panels will be iocated on top of an old landfill that is surrounded by the Boone County
Conservation District. The property is not currently accessible by the general public and is
visually obscured by trees within the Spencer Conservation Area. There will be no visual impact
to the public and the special use will not reduce the public's ability to utilize Spencer
Conservation Area. Only authorized personnel can access the property due to the continued
maintenance and monitoring of the landfill.

There are many kinds of solar farms, each having their own set of environmental impacts. Solar
farms can be thousands of acres in size, some require that all vegetation be removed which
impacts wildlife by loss of habitat, some are constructed on cement pads that increase surface
water run-off, some radiate heat and some feed into a tower that can be dangerous for birds
and insects. The proposed development will occupy 15 acres of the 19-acre landfill, be
constructed on ballasts that sit above ground and will be planted with appropriate vegetation.



2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

The panels will be approximately seven-feet above ground and are not anticipated to create a
glare or radiate a large quantity of heat. The site is currently fenced off from the rest of the
conservation area and will continue to be so. This will prevent larger wildlife from entering.
Staff does not anticipate that this specific development will create any negative environmental
impacts

The development’s production of non-carbon based electricity and the ability to be used as a
form of educational research will benefit the Boone County Conservation District and the City of
Belvidere. Due to the size of the Spencer Conservation Area, there is limited nearby
development for the special use to impact. Requirements of the lllinois Environmental
Protection Agency, the Boone County Conservation District and conditions of approval will
mitigate any potential negative impacts of the special use. The improvements made to the
property due to the special use will be a benefit to the community.

RECOMMENDATION:
Planning staff recommends the approval of case number 2018-22 subject to the following

conditions:

1. Substantial compliance with the narrative and site plan submitted, uniess otherwise noted.

2. The plans shall be revised to show proper access for fire apparatus.

3. The applicant shall provide training to the Belvidere Fire Department pertaining to the
hazards in conducting fire control and extinguishment of the proposed solar system.

4. All work conducted on the subject property shall be reviewed and approved by the lllinois
Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

5. All areas within the fencing must be maintained by the project operator (applicant and future
lessees) in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency's requirements for the
length of the project. This includes maintenance of the vegetation and fencing.

6. The project operator shall maintain the landfill cap as required by state and federal
agencies.

7. The project operator shall repair any inadequacies in the landfill cap, such as divets, prior to
the installation of the development.

8. The project operator shall ensure that the landfill site is secure from public access, except
as permitted for educational activities overseen by the Boone County Conservation District.
A minimum of 7-foot tall fencing and signage shall be installed around the perimeter of the
landfill.

9. The existing underground power lines shall be utilized unless reasonable proof can be
submitted showing they are inadequate.

10. All vegetation shall be approved by the Environmental Protection Agency and the Boone
County Conservation District. Pollinator friendly vegetation shall be used.

11. A decommissioning plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of Belvidere and
the Boone County Conservation District prior to the commencement of the development.

12. A surety, covering the complete execution of the decommissioning plan for when the project
ends shall be posted.

Submitted by:

LGS

Giﬂé' DelRose, '
ommunity Development Planner




2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION/CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall make and forward findings of fact as to the
compliance of the proposed planned development with the standards and make a
recommendation to the City Council. The City Council shall review the findings and
recommendation and may accept or reject the findings and recommendation of the Planning
and Zoning Commission in whole or in part; or the City Council may refer the matter back to the
Planning and Zoning Commission for further consideration. Any approval shall be considered
the approval of a unique request and not be construed as precedent for any other proposed
planned development.



10.

11.

12.

2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

ATTACHMENTS:

Location Map by Planning Staff.

Aerial Photo by Planning Staff.

Site Plan Submitted by the Applicant.
Narrative as Submitted by the Applicant.
Background information from NRI #1583.
Pictures of project location.

Email submitted by the Belvidere Fire Department, Craig Wilcox,
July 20, 2018.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Health Department,
Amanda Mehl, July 23, 2018.

Memo submitted by the Belvidere Public Works Department, Brent
Anderson, July 23, 2018.

Letter from the lllinois Department of Transportation, Kevin
Marchek, July 24, 2018.

Letter from the Boone County Conservation District, Dan Kane,
August 1, 2018.

Opinion and Overview of the Boone County Soil and \Water
Conservation District for NRI #1583, August 6, 2018.



1868

2927

_Bl—:su:mu

4 8675 = IAFAYETTEDR 8732
E = WEST-H I LS-BLEVD =)

z § ? PIERGE-GT

g 8567 ) L Al

=

3111

3209

EASTWOOD N

I
3901

Iﬁ\‘K-Ei-Si 1ORE-

R

R

MARNIEAND G

JAMES-GT

&

/\
/ by .
CASE 2018-15 '
TerraNavigator, LLC |
825 North Appleton Road |
SuU

S

[Te]
& 6765

7\
S
/
S

4 innrh — 1 122 foat

—
E .---"‘"-_'-_—.-_—

_“_
0 I RANCGIS ST
<M.
s
© MARY-ST:
NEWBU R.f_‘ul_t__-
2552

2340

2964

a1 [

l 1nnn 1227

Riig Yas 'e‘_‘('

E4
— TWHACKSONST—
s & &
E 5 2
b —Z_v-perny sl'r—z,.5
5 2 2
= Z
i~ =
= i WALINGONAVE sl
g-' Kishwauk ]
> aukee Rive
-

R
s 2238 200y \ shwaukeZ

-~

1151

Wal:(ELS TSI

1140

1140

[re—S A PP EETONIRD

g | 1= l\lLl-\)
| ’ I

Wehit ST



CASE 2018-15
TerraNavigator, LLC

825 North Appleton Road | ™, /
su ™

!

¥

]
1
&
LS
s
| BN
T
]

Al




g

NOTE:

THIS DAZWING 1S CONCEPTUAL M MATURE 40 7 oM
PLAMAING PURPOSES DXLY

THIS DRAVANG REPPESENTS UNE PROFTSED
LAYOUT AND IS SURSECT 1O CHANGE BASED ON
DETAILED DS GN, AS WELL AS ACTUAL SITE
CONDITICNS

TH!S BRAWING OES NOT COMSIDER FEDERAL
STATE GR OTHE2 OCAL JEVE: OPVEN"
RECULATION WHICH MAY IMPACT THE FROFOSED
LaYCUT

Tl FSPOEED -PI.”"E?E&G&

AN 5 PAECT O LM ARIE DARTS O
BLRVEY (BUTA

% THE SITE LA 7CUT DOES NOT TAKE INTO

CONS/SERATION THE FLOOD ZONE TIANSVISSION
EASEMENTS OR OTHER EASEVENTS

s PRE SOOIV TDRECETIOAT
* e T s wAMIR LT RES T

f

£V MODULE [TV}
&

TS T

A/ [
4

i ___

NOT 70 SCaLE

VICINITY 1SAP

1T WNLeA
GATUND DEARASTE

&

PRELIMINARY - NOT |,
FOR CONSTRUCTION

N BURNS
//ZmUOZZM_L.

S50 N CENTRAL AVENUE. SUITE 860

0 TerraNavigator

OELVOCRE WUNICH M LAKDE R L
S7E SN

ozt —l‘ﬂu«.

L -
EP100 - Cc

e trae

e mheE !.:i..-l.a

R e e T e Ly ey




e TerraNavigator

June 21,2018

Ms. Gina DelRose

Community Development Planner
City of Belvidere

401 Whitney Blvd, Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

Re: TerraNavigator introduction and solar project proposal overview

Deat Ms. DelRose,

As you know, TerraNavigator (“Developer”) wishes to submit a special use permit (“SUP") application for a ballasted,
ground mount solar project at the Belvidere Landfill 1 (the “Project Area”), located near 825 North Appleton Road, Belvidere,
[L 61008 (the “Property™), for development and the operation of commercial solar energy generation (the “Project™).

Qur firm is distinguished by the unique combination of our environmental management and clean energy project development
expertise to redevelop underutilized real estate for renewable energy generation. We believe the adaptive reuse of
brownfields, landfills and “Superfund” sites are an intelligent reuse to provide economic development, community
uplift, and renewable energy for the residents of Belvidere. Our “Impact-investment” approach to site selection maximizes
the economic development benefits to the local community by providing new revenues, real propetty taxes, on-the-job training,
and part-time/full time employment resulting from the proposed solar project. By purposely not directing our expertise towards
converting productive land uses (A-! Prime Farm land, etc.) for renewable energy generation, we preserve the established
identity City of Belvidere, for future generations.

The tollowing document is provided in support of our SUP for the proposed project at the Belvidere Landtill 1.

TerraNavigator Overview

Our project team has a combined more than 50 years of project development experience wotking for Fortune 500 and
industry-leading players including: Unocal, BP, Chevron, NRG, Sempra, PacifiCorp, SDG&E, and Swinerton. Collectively,
we have over $15B in domestic and international transaction experience, developing renewable energy assets including wind,
solar, pipelines, energy storage, hydro, transmission, natural gas and geothermal. Our sister company, Project Navigator, has
been providing environmental services to owners and stakeholders as well as managing environmentally impacted and
surplus properties for over 20 years. As a result, our firm possesses all the necessary resources, experience, and
sophistication to execute the proposed development, construction, finance, and operations of the project at the
Belvidere Landfill 1.

Project Overview- Ballasted, ground mount solar

TerraNavigator’s focus on brownfield, landfill and superfund site redevelopment is anchored in the technical approach
made possible through the utilization of concrete ballast blocks. The blocks eliminate the need for structural piles to penetrate
the ground, thereby (a) preserving the current site conditions and (b) eliminating damage to existing subsurface infrastructure
(tile drains, utilities, etc.). A licensed structural professional engineer (P.E.) determines the size and number of ballast needed
by performing calculations that incorporate topographical data, wind and snow loads, while optimizing the basis of design for
photovoltaic energy generation. The system is installed on the “top deck” of the landfill, while also providing a tolerance up

888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 www.terranavigator.com



Q TerraNavigator

to 10% grade.

The second benefit of a ballasted racking installation is the elimination of the requirement to install the electrical
collection system (conductors, conduits, etc.) underground. The collection system instead utilizes a network of raceway
channels under the racking system for conductors. This provides ease of access for inspections during the Operations and
Maintenance period.

Ultimately, the proposed project will sit entirely above grade, eliminating the risks and challenges of subsurface
conditions.

Operations & Maintenance

Once constructed, operation of the Project is remotely monitored and tequires no on-site personnel. The project will
be secured by a remotely monitored security system that will provide alarms for both security and routine maintenance
requirements. The project will have a security fence around the perimeter, with signage providing for safety notifications and
information.

During the life of the system, the project will have regularly scheduled vegetation management in accordance with the
existing post closure report, and to promote low growing pollinator vegetation. Finally, the Project Area will be walked on a
regular basis for evaluation of other potential issues related to safety, security, or environmental protection.

Compatibility with Land Use Plan
The tollowing summary is provided in support of a finding by the Planning Commission in favor of the proposed project on
the Belvidere Landfill 1.

First, the adaptive reuse of underutilized real estate provides for community uplift from the Belvidere Landfill 1. We believe
the proposed project has little to no adverse effect on the surrounding propertics and is compatible with Land Use Plan for City
of Belvidere and post closure report for the landfill.

Secondly, with the cantinued emergence of the clean energy economy in [llinois and retirement of coal generation plants, the
proposed project provides a necessary and attractive new generation source for the residents of City of Belvidere and customers
in ComEd’s service territory. More specifically, the proposed project will have the following Project Benefits:

Economic development for new long-term lease revenues;

Real Property tax revenues, or PILOT;

Part Time Construction employment, “on the job” training for emerging lllinois clean energy economy;

1-2 FTE associated with O&M activities;

Subcontractor and supplier procurement from local providers for O&M activities;

Beneficial, adaptive reuse of closed landfill real estate; preservation of more productive, existing land uses
No cap penetration or disturbance of existing environmental conditions

Easily sited around existing ground water monitoring, gas wells, or other existing infrastructure associated
with the Landfill Closure plan;

e Provides enhanced security to property

The proposed clean energy project will have little to no impact upon the adjacent properties ot residents ot Belvidere. The
installation of the project will require approximately 3 months, with all of the equipment deliveries within first 2-3 weeks. The
project will require no extension of public utilities, and have no occupied facilities onsite. As a result, the project will have
minimal to no-impact on access roads, traffic, public infrastructure, or the general public.

More specifically, the proposed project will have the following positive impacts:
e Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions associated with power generation for ComEd, equivalent to
the removal of 656 cars for one year;

888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 www . terranavigator.com



@TerraNavigator

e Generate power equivalent to the demand of 459 homes, for one year

Decommissioning Plan
The Project is proposed with a 35-year design life. At the end of the Project’s design life, all equipment, including racking

systems, panels, inverters, ballast foundations, and electrical collection systems, will be removed in accordance with the
Project’s Decommissioning Plan. The decommissioning plan will be submitted with our final project design set for review by
the City of Belvidere. The Project currently has commitments in its agreements with all of the landowners to remove the
equipment at the end of the Project’s useful life and decommission the Project. In all of the agreements, the Project has an
abligation to decommission all above-grade facilities and foundations and restore the surface to a condition similar to that as
it existed at the inception of the Project, as well as repair any damage to the leased area as a result of removing the
improvements. It is anticipated that the salvage value of the equipmeant would fully offset the cost of decommissioning and
restoration. The salvaged equipment includes steel, aluminum, copper, glass, and electrical equipment.

If there is any further information or clarification that can be provided in support of our application, please do not
hesitate to contact me at (858) 461-9252 or cldick cilerranavivator.com.

Very truly youts,

Christian F. Dick,
TerraNavigator, LLC

oy, (it N5 S

[ts: St. Director, Project Development

888 Prospect Street, Suite 200, La Jolla, California 92037 (858) 263-2889 www.terranavigator.com



NRI # 1583

4. Belvidere Municipal Landfill Number One History

41 Location & Background

Belvidere Municipal Landfill Number One is located on the west side of the City of Belvidere (Figures 1, 2, &
3) and consists of approximately 139 acres; however, this can be broken down into two parts: 120 acres of
land between the landfill and the Kishwaukee River; and the remaining 19 acres is the landfill. The landfill is
on land owned by the Boone County Conservation District (BCCD). This property is bordered by the
Kishwaukee River (west); Spencer Park (south); a gravel pit (north); and Appleton Road (east) (Figures 2 &
3). Currently, residential neighborhoods are located along Appleton Road and northeast of the landfill
(Figure 2 & 3). .There is a small pond, Deeppit Pond, between the landfill site and Appleton Road (pond is
east of landfill) (Figures 2 & 3).

From 1939 until 1965 this site was operated by the City of Belvidere as a municipal landfill, where waste
was disposed of in an old gravel pit. The City of Belvidere retained ownership from 1965 until 1973, while
private contractors operated the landfill. The illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) indicated
some hazardous wastes were disposed of in the early 1970’s and the site was formally closed in 1973;
where Belvidere Municipal Landfill Number Two, located on Illinois Route 76, was created in 1973 (also see
NRI 1581). The closure process consisted of the landfill being covered with sandy soil extracted from an on-
site borrow pit, in addition to soil remaining from area highway construction. In 1976, the BCCD purchased
this site with additional acreage to develop a recreational area and attempt ecological restoration of prairie
ecosystems (also known as Spencer Park).

Although formally closed in 1973, the layer of soil placed on top to “conceal” wastes was not compliant
with the IEPA’s regulatory requirements. In 1979, an additional layer of soil material obtained on-site, was
used; this material consisted of sand and gravel, which was covered with native prairie vegetation.
Although additional soil layers were applied to be compliant with IEPA regulations, in 1981 the final cover
for the landfill was deemed inadequate in some areas, with a potential threat to surface and groundwater.
Based on findings from the IEPA, Belvidere Municipal Landfill Number One was placed on a National
Priorities List (NPL) December 30, 1982 and was finalized on September 8, 1983; thus, listed as a Superfund
site. Superfund sites are locations where “known release or threatened releases of hazardous substances,
pollutants, or contaminates [occur]” (USEPA.gov).

4.2 Remedial investigation and Studies

After being listed as a Superfund site in 1983, remediation studies and plans were created between 1984
and 1988. Various studies conducted consisted of: limited soil gas surveys; installation of groundwater
monitoring wells; collection and analysis of groundwater, leachate, river water, pond water and pond
sediment samples; and completion of a hydrogeologic investigation. During onsite investigations by the
IEPA, drums disposed of at this location were believed to contain hazardous industrial wastes and removal
action was implemented; drums were removed and properly disposed of off-site, which was completed
December 1986. A couple years later the USEPA approved a record of decision to address contamination:
on-site wastes and contaminated soils were to be contained, contaminated groundwater was to be
extracted and treated. There were four primary objectives: “1) minimize risk to public health and the
environment from direct contact with contaminated material; 2) control the migration of contaminated
material to surface waters; 3) control migration of leachate to groundwater via infiltration; and 4) minimize
potential risk to public health from further consumption of contaminated groundwater” (USEPA, 2014). In

i



NRI # 1583

order to meet these objectives various remedial cleanup activities were identified: a certified landfill cap
must be established; plume barrier for a groundwater extraction system must be in place (pump-and-treat);
re-sampling of soils after removal of hazardous materials, such as polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs);
restrictions must be placed into the deed; area must be protected from floods; fencing must be appropriate
around landfill area; and monitoring must be performed for groundwater, surface water, air, and biota.
The remedial activities took place from 1989-1992:

® 1989-1990: Soil samples were collected, with soil extracted as necessary. Soils extracted were kept
on-site and deposited in the landfill. This material was then covered with additional 12 feet of
leveling layers and minimum of six-foot multilayer cap. The muitilayers consisted of: leveling layer,
low permeability layer, drainage layer, vegetative cover, and gas venting system;

e 1990: Security fencing was installed;

* 1990-1991: Monitaring wells installed;

e 1990: A flood protection berm was constructed at 750 above sea level to protect landfill from a
100-year flood event;

e 1991: Plume barrier groundwater extraction system constructed between the landfill and the
Kishwaukee River to intercept groundwater. This system consists of a 1200-foot-long array with 40
extraction wells. These wells are located about 100 feet from the river and are single suction
pumps with a connection to the City sanitary sewer system;

e 1991: Deed Restriction—Restrictive Agreement: “..prohibits groundwater use and construction
activities on clay cap. In addition, Belvidere City Ordinance Code, Section 114-160 (1997) prohibits
the construction, alteration, rebuilding, or restoration of private wells within city limits” (USEPA,
2014).

After strict monitoring, cleanup, operation and maintenance activities, completed by 1992, monitoring
results were improved; however, monitoring, operation, and maintenance were still required. Belvidere
Municipal Landfill Number One was eventually removed from the NPL February of 2015; however, several
five-year reviews of the remedial processes have been performed, with the most recent provided in an
annual report May of 2015. At this site routine operation and maintenance is still required (i.e. site mowing
and well monitoring; see section 4.4) and gas vents are prevalent on the landscape (Figure 5).

43 Monitoring Results

Removal of soil contaminated with PCBs was verified from analysis of samples taken from the edge of drum
and excavation areas, with all samples below 10 parts per million (ppm). Air quality was also monitored from
a discharge manhole for the pipeline during each barrier system effluent sampling event. Routine air monitoring
was conducted and there were no exceedances. Pipeline effluent (leachate) was monitored when the plume
barrier extraction system was operational (shutdown in 1995). Results from these studies illustrate effluent
concentrations did not exceed pretreatment standards; therefore, pretreatment was not required prior to
discharge of effluent to the public treatment facility in Belvidere.

Monitoring was performed, to track location and level of contaminates within groundwater and to assess
effectiveness of remediation efforts. Initially, groundwater monitoring wells and the plume barrier
groundwater extraction system tested for arsenic, benzene, ethylbenzene, 2,4 dimethylphenol,
naphthalene, PCBs, toluene, vinyl chloride, and xylenes within 16 groundwater monitoring wells; however,
the most recent monitoring network includes annual sampling of 10 monitoring wells with the
contaminates of concern being: benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylenes (BTEX). Overall, groundwater
monitoring illustrated groundwater contamination is contained within the site boundaries and in down

10



NRI # 1583

gradient wells. One well, MW-X5, located within the landfill and near what is believed to the source area
for BTEX, has the highest concentrations of these contaminants: toluene, 93ug/L; ethylbenzene, 230ug/L;
and total xylenes, 2100ug/L. In general, groundwater flow is from the landfill, southwest, toward the
Kishwaukee River. In 2005, lllinois Department of Public Health (IDPH) detected two contaminates
{Tetracloroethylene and Trichloroethene) at a hand pump in Spencer Park, near the pavilion. Based on
recommendations, BCCD properly decommissioned this well on May 8, 2010.

Surface water was also monitored in Deeppit Pond, but was discontinued after continuous compliance was
achieved from the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. Likewise, fish sampling
was conducted to understand the impacts of contaminates on fish populations. The lllinois Department of
Natural Resources (IDNR) was contacted by the IEPA to conduct this study. Fish were caught and filleted
with samples provided to the IDPH laboratory. In 2013, IDPH reported water, sediment, and fish tissue
results below health based standards; thus, the BCCD has permitted fishing within Deeppit Pond. Another
biological concern was potential presence of the Indiana Bat; however, the lllinois Department of
Conservation (IDOC), found no presence of the species, during their surveying period.

44  Continued Operation & Maintenance
The plume barrier groundwater elimination system was shut off in 1995 under the condition the City of
Belvidere ensures groundwater use is prohibited and the Kishwaukee River is protected adequately. Operational
activities are typically performed annually and have been reported each year since 2003:
e Routine Maintenance: mowing (biennially), tree/shrub removal and rodent control/removal
e Landfill closure inspection: security, vegetation, drainage and erosion control, settlement, gas control,
survey benchmarks
e Maintenance of gas vent
e Air monitoring in gas probes and perimeter air
e Plume Barrier Groundwater Extraction System:
o Inspection of system: security, access pumps and pump house, pipeline pump house meter
reading, and oil level check (monthly)
o Monitoring/ performance evaluation, well integrity
o Groundwater monitoring

11

N N T T EE T TSNS FEEESEES



Rourvier oo '
Landhill JA

j,amt«rﬁlu




"(W31 wo310q) eASE UOHUIIBP WO 1sE3YINOS SUINOO] J|ypuE| JO MBIA ‘(13| WO110q) Wa)sAs
713Mas Aseyues Ayp 01 uondsUUOD utew 3204 ym wasAs Suidwnd uoions 3j3uls quawdinba uonJBAXS pue SWNNJEA {(3y3u doi1) uonesado
wawdinba Joy jpued |os3u0d (3| dol) sjlam uopdesxs Suidwnd Joy Juawdinba pue swnniea yum asnoy dwng -sydes3ojoyd as ‘b a1nsiy

sydesSojoyd aus s

£8ST # IYN




T "(1y31 wonoq) ypuel 4o doy uo jjom Sulioluow {(1Y3] WO1I0G) SIUIA JO MBIA YUM |[LIPUE] JO
do] ‘(1y3u doy) syusa a1y (3| dol) 1samyInos Supjoo) ‘|ipue| 40 dol WOl UOIIUR1IAP PUBJIIM JO MBIA "PINUIIUOD sydesdoloyd 911S °s a4nSi4

€8ST # IUN



“(won0q) |0V Ul 10U ‘I3AY FBNNEMYSTY 3Y) WO 198) 00T
Ajs1ewixoadde Jajueq 1eaul| 1004-007T UO S|lam UONRIRIIXS JS1EMPUNO.S Jo SuidnosS |eaidAL {(3ySn dol) |0V ul 10U ‘WwaisAS uordEIIXg 1318MPUNOIY
Jallieg awnid dy3 ul ||]3m uoilde.ixe Jalempunolg (13 dol) |iypuel jo doj woyy puod nddasg jo M3l panunuo) sydesSojoyd aus ‘9 aindiy

vi

€8ST # 14N




Gina DelRose

From: Craig Wilcox <cwilcox@belviderefire.com>
Sent: Friday, July 20, 2018 3:47 PM

To: Gina DelRose

Subject: Re: request for comments

Gina

Our concemns are as follows:
1. Plans shall show proper access for fire apparatus.
2. Provide training of the hazards in conducting fire control and extinguishment of proposed solar system.

Respectfully

Craig Wilcox

Inspection Bureau Coordinator
Belvidere Fire Department
123 South State Street
Belvidere IL 61008
815.601.7857 Cell

On Wed, Jul 18,2018 at 1:32 PM, Gina DelRose <GDelRose(@ci.belvidere.il.us> wrote:

Please see attached

Gina DelRose

Community Development Planner
City of Belvidere

401 Whitney Boulevard
Belvidere, IL 61008

(O) 815-547-7177

(F) 815-547-0789



07/25/2018  09:44 Adninistrative b\w (FaX) P.006/013

Boone County
Health Department

1204 Logan Avenue, Belvidere, [llinois 61008
Main Office 815.544,2951 Clinic 815.544.9730 Fax 815.544.2050

M@Eﬂﬂ,ﬂ? www.boonehealth.org

The mission of the Boone County Haalth Department la to serve our community by
preventing the apread of diseass, promoting optimal wellness & protecting the public’s health.

July 23, 2018
FAX: 815-547-0789

Gina DelRose

Community Development Planer
401 Whitney Blvd Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

Re: Case: 2018-15; TerraNavigator, 825 North Appleton Road
Dear Gina,

We are in receipt of the application for a special use to install non-building mounted solar
installations for export of energy.

The Boone County Health Department has no comments.

Thank you,

Qi

Amanda Mehl
Administrator
skm



401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 200
Belvidere, lllinois 61008 M 1
R o Belvidere Public Works

To: Gina DelRose, Community Development Planner

Frome Brent Anderson, Director of Public Warks

Date: 7/23/2018

Re: Case #2018-15: TerraNavigator, Landfill #1 Solar Installation

Having reviewed the above referenced case, | would offer the following:
1. All work related to this case must be reviewed and approved by the IEPA and USEPA as required.

2. All areas within the fencing must be maintained in accordance with EPA requirements for the length
of the project.

3. A surety needs to be posted to guarantee the complete execution of the decommissioning plan
when the project ends.



llinois Department of Transportation

Office of Highways Project Implementation / Region 2 / District 2
819 Depot Avenue / Dixon, lllinois 61021-3500

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT
Programming
Boone County

July 24, 2018

Ms. Gina DelRose

Community Development Planner
City of Belvidere

401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 300
Belvidere, lllinais 61008

Dear Ms. DelRose:

Thank you for the notification of the public hearing on August 14, 2018,
regarding a request for a special use permit by TerraNavigator, LLC to install
non-building mounted solar installations for export of energy for use by public
utility. The property is located at 825 North Appleton Road and is owned by
Boone County Conservation District.

In the near future, there are no roadway construction plans for this area that
would affect the property at this location or the special use permit request.
Consequently, at this time, we have no objections.

Please note petitioners must apply to this office for an access permit for a
new entrance or a modification to an existing entrance onto a State
maintained road. I[f either of these is intended, please have the petitioner
contact Mr. Jason Stringer, Senior Permit Technician at (815) 284-5413 for
access permit information.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the special use permit. If you
have any questions, please call Ms. Katie Smith, Systems Inventory
Supervisor, at (815) 284-5447.

Sincerely,

\<6V\A;~ rl/\lvv‘ﬁ’{’"uk [\

Kevin Marchek, P.E.
Region Two Engineer

KS/fd
cc: Jason Stringer



603 Appleton Road, Belvidere, lllinois 61008
Phone 815-547-7935
Fax 815-547-7939

BOONE COUNTY

CONSERVATION
DISTRICT
August 1, 2018
Ms. Gina DelRose, Community Development Planner
401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 300
Belvidere, Illinois 61008

Re:  Case 2018-15; TerraNavigator, 825 North Appleton Road

Ms. DelRose:

The Boone County Conservation District Board of Trustees has approved a lease option agreement with
TerraNavigator. This agreement was reached after considerable review and negotiation with TerraNavigator.
The agreement ensures that the Boone County Conservation District does not incur any responsibility or
liability relative to the proposed development and/or any potential change that could negatively affect the
landfill. The assurance of no liability or responsibility for any future impact to the landfill is an essential
condition of the BCCD Board of Trustees.

The proposed solar energy facility is viewed as a positive use for a site that has extremely limited options. The
BCCD supports the proposed development and views the production of non-carbon based electrical energy as
an important step forward for the local community. TerraNavigator has agreed to allow the BCCD to utilize the
solar facility as an educational resource, which is an additional benefit.

Additionally, TerraNavigator has agreed to provide other important considerations in the terms of their
proposed use. These include but are not limited to: l

1. Ensuring the landfill cap is maintained as required by state and federal agencies.

2. Ensuring the landfill site is secure from public access, except as permitted for educational activities
overseen by the BCCD.

3. Paying an annual lease fee.

4. Providing electric energy to power BCCD facilities at a reduced rate.

5. Ensuring BCCD input toward planning, construction or development activities that cross or potentially
affect BCCD property.

[n conclusion, the Boone County Conservation District supports the proposed solar energy facility based on the
terms of the existing agreement. This proposal will benefit the local community and provide a new, alternative
energy option for residents and businesses seeking renewable energy options.

Thank you for your time and consideration of these comments.

Si‘nccrcly, '

Dan Kane, ExceutiVe Director

Boone County Cofiservation District

c. District Files



2. Opinion of the BCSWCD Board

NRI # 1583

Christian Dick, on behalf of TerraNavigator, LLC, has submitted a request for a Natural Resource
Information Report as part of an application for a special use on a portion (25.563 acres) of parcel
05-27-100-005 in the City of Belvidere, Belvidere Township. The Area of Interest (AOl} is located at 825
North Appleton Road on the west side of Belvidere. The legal description submitted by the applicant reads

as follows:

Part of the Northwest Guarter and Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Township

44 Morth, Range 3 East of ihe Third Principal Meridian, bein

described 08

follows: Commencing at the Northeast comer of soid Northwest Quarten
thence South 00 degrees 17 minutes 20 seconds West along the East line of
the said Northwest Quarter, 713.29 faet to the Ploce of Beginning; thence

South 52 degrees 45 minutes 02 seconds West,
degraes 02 minutes 13 seconds Wost, 670.79 faot;
534,64 foet; thence South 18 dugrees 28
thence South 44 degrees 47 minutes

82 minutes 34 seconds West,

minutes 41 seconds East, 71542 fael;
182,35 feel; thence Soulh 43 degrees
thence Norlh 42 degrees 15 minutes 13 seconds
South 65 degrees 46 minutes 30 seconds Eost,
dograes 17 minutes 11 seconds East, 94,44
27 minutes 58 seconds East, 109.77 feel;

28 seconds ‘West,
soconds Eost, 142,05 feol;
East, 162,97 fesl; thence
369.44 feot; thence North 42
fest; thence North 23 degraes

30,38 feal; thence South 51
thence South 35 degrees

54 minutes 48

thenca Nerth 5B degraes 47 minutes 52 goconds Eogt, 96.72 feet; thenca

North 21 degrees 49 minutes 05 se
degroos 26 minutes 19 seccnds Wesl, 59.86 feot;

conds East, 91.51 feot; thence North 27

thence North 02 degraes 27

minutes 21 seconds West, 223.58 feat; thence North 22 degraes 45 minutes

33 seconds East, 80.35 feel;
seconds East, 50.56 feel;

East, 80.38 feol; lhence North 02
248,70 fest; thence North 02 degree

foet;

thence North 02 degrass 1 minute
North 63 degresa 59 minutes 19 secon

thence Nor!

thence North 42 degrees 35 minutes 38
th 23 degrees 57 minutes 18 seconds
degrees 28 minutes 43 seconds East,
s 36 minutes 40 soconds West, 191.08
thencs North 45 degrees 34 minutes 0B scconds East, 6710 feal;
a 08 saconds Eost, 89.42 fesl;
da Wost, 77.80 feet; thence North 27

thence

degreas 35 minutes 39 seconds West, #8.26 feet; thence Norlh 15 degrees 41
mitutas 35 seconds West, 39.53 feat; thence Narth 03 degresa 09 minutea

98 saconds East, 33613 feol; thence South 52 d
gecands West, 43,38 feot to the Place of Beginning, in

roes 45 minutes 02
cae County Iinols,

The Boone County Soil & Water Conservation District Board has a

}( Favorable

o Unfavorable

a Other:

opinion of the proposed fand use change. The Board concerns are stressed in the “Overview” section of the
report. More detailed information is presented throughout the various sections of this document.

Signature of Board Chairman:

Sie) He V)

o Eb-200F

R—




NRI # 1583

14.Overview

This report details information for several natural resource topics. Most of the details for individual topics
are presented in a special section. This section highlights the natural resource concerns, which are most
important to this site, the environment, and the community:

1.

No soils or agricultural information have been provided, because of previous site history and altered
soil state (Section 6: Soil and Agricultural Information).

Protection of the clay landfill cap is essential to maintain effective pollution control within the
landfill and groundcover should be installed appropriately to protect soil from erosion. Control of
erosion is an important aspect for protection of surface water quality (Section 7: Soll Erosion and
Sediment Control). Design plans and proposed solar equipment illustrate rno penetration or
damage to landfill cap (Section 13: Land Use and Proposed Design Plans)

Freshwater wetlands and floodplains are mapped adjacent and within surrounding vicinity of
proposed project area (Section 8: Hydrologic Information & Section 9: Wetland Information and
Regulations). Although existent, these areas are not within the AOI or preliminary site design plan
(Figures 8 & 14).

If this special use is approved and acreage of land disturbance is greater than one acre in size, a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit (NPDES permit) will be required.
Temporary soil stabilization, control of sediment during construction and permanent site
stabilization after construction is completed is required under a NPDES permit.

Wildlife and pollinator habitat is present. Routine maintenance should take vegetation budding and
bloom timing into consideration (i.e. mowing at specified dates). (Section 12: Biological Resources).

Long-term groundwater monitoring at this site is required by the IEPA permit with reports to be
completed periodically, to track any changes in groundwater quality. This is of importance because
this site is within an old quarry; geologic materials are permeable and close to ground surface,
which could lead to potential groundwater contamination. (Section 10: Geologic Information)

32




MEMO

DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Findings of Fact for Case: 2018-15; 825 N. Appleton Road

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator, LLC), 888 Prospect St, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA
92037 on behalf of the property owner, Boone County Conservation District, 603 N. Appleton
Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting a special use to install non-building mounted solar
installations for export of energy for use by Public Utility (pending text amendment approval) at
825 North Appleton Road within the RH, Rural Holding District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Section 150.150(A)(1)(B) and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
solar farm will encompass approximately 15 acres and is located on top of a closed municipal
landfill (part of PIN: 05-27-100-005).

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare.

The solar panels will be located on top of an old landfill that is surrounded by the Boone
County Conservation District. The property is not currently accessible by the general public
and is visually obscured by trees within the Spencer Conservation Area. There will be no
visual impact to the public and the special use will not reduce the public’s ability to utilize
Spencer Conservation Area.

Due to the special use being located on a landfill, the IEPA will be involved with the
installation, operation and maintenance of the development. Staff is not aware of any
potential negative impacts to the wildlife in the area and IEPA regulations will minimize any
potential negative impacts to the soil and vegetation.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its location
and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives,
policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan, Section 150.904
of the Belvidere Zoning Ordinance and any other plan, program, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

Only authorized personnel can access the property due to the continued maintenance and
monitoring of the landfill. The surrounding property owned by the Boone County
Conservation District is meeting the goals of the Comprehensive Plan and being used for
passive recreation. The landfill, however, is not suitable for such activities.



Findings of Fact 2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map,
or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by
the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development.

There are many kinds of solar farms, each having their own set of environmental impacts.
Solar farms can be thousands of acres in size, some require that all vegetation be removed
which impacts wildlife by loss of habitat, some are constructed on cement pads that
increase surface water run-off, some radiate heat and some feed into a tower that can be
dangerous for birds and insects. The proposed development will occupy 15 acres of the 19-
acre landfill, be constructed on ballasts that sit above ground and be planted with
appropriate vegetation. The panels will be approximately seven-feet above ground and are
not anticipated to create a glare or radiate a large quantity of heat. The site is currently
fenced off from the rest of the conservation area and will continue to be so. This will prevent
larger wildlife from entering. Staff does not anticipate that this specific development will
create any negative environmental impacts.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

The development is located within the Spencer Conservation Area, owned and operated by
the Boone County Conservation District. The development’s production of non-carbon
based electricity and the ability to be used as a form of educational research will benefit the
Boone County Conservation District and the City of Belvidere. Due to the size of the
Spencer Conservation Area, there is limited nearby development for the special use to
impact.

E. Findings: The proposed Special Use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement facilities,
utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject property.

The subject property is a closed landfill within the Boone County Conservation District which
is served with municipal utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any and
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

Requirements of the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency, the Boone County
Conservation District and conditions of approval will mitigate any potential negative impacts
of the special use. The improvements made to the property due to the special use will be a
benefit to the community.



Findings of Fact 2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

The motion to adopt the Findings of Fact as presented by staff for case 2018-15 for a
special use to permit a solar farm in the RH, Rural Holding District at 825 N. Appleton

Road carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



MEMO

DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Case: 2018-15; 825 N. Appleton Road

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant, Christian Dick (TerraNavigator, LLC), 888 Prospect St, Suite 200, La Jolla, CA
92037 on behalf of the property owner, Boone County Conservation District, 603 N. Appleton
Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting a special use to install non-building mounted solar
installations for export of energy for use by Public Utility (pending text amendment approval) at
825 North Appleton Road within the RH, Rural Holding District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance
Section 150.150(A)(1)(B) and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
solar farm will encompass approximately 15 acres and is located on top of a closed municipal
landfill (part of PIN: 05-27-100-005).

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning and zoning commission recommended the approval of case number 2018-15 for
a special use to permit a solar farm in the RH, Rural Holding District subject to the following
conditions:

1. Substantial compliance with the narrative and site plan submitted, unless otherwise noted.

2. The plans shall be revised to show proper access for fire apparatus.

3. The applicant shall provide training to the Belvidere Fire Department pertaining to the
hazards in conducting fire control and extinguishment of the proposed solar system.

4. All work conducted on the subject property shall be reviewed and approved by the lllinois
Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

5. All areas within the fencing must be maintained by the project operator (applicant and future
lessees) in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency’s requirements for the
length of the project. This includes maintenance of the vegetation and fencing.

6. The project operator shall maintain the landfill cap as required by state and federal
agencies.

7. The project operator shall repair any inadequacies in the landfill cap, such as divets, prior to
the installation of the development.

8. The project operator shall ensure that the landfill site is secure from public access, except
as permitted for educational activities overseen by the Boone County Conservation District.
A minimum of 7-foot tall fencing and signage shall be installed around the perimeter of the
landfill.

9. The existing underground power lines shall be utilized unless reasonable proof can be
submitted showing they are inadequate.

10. All vegetation shall be approved by the Environmental Protection Agency and the Boone
County Conservation District. Pollinator friendly vegetation shall be used.

11. A decommissioning plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City of Belvidere and
the Boone County Conservation District prior to the commencement of the development.

12. A surety, covering the complete execution of the decommissioning plan for when the project
ends shall be posted.



Findings of Fact 2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road

Motion to approve case 2018-15; TerraNavigator, LLC, 825 N. Appleton Road as
presented by staff carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



ORDINANCE NO. 417H

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
TO ALLOW INDOOR COMMERCIAL ENTERTAINMENT
(BAR/TAVERN WITH VIDEO GAMING)
WITHIN THE GB, GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
(1776 Logan Avenue)

WHEREAS, The City of Belvidere has adopted Chapter 150, Zoning Ordinance
in accordance with the provisions of lllinois Compiled Statutes to regulate the use
of land and to specify the minimum requirements for improvements on land in the
City of Belvidere; and

WHEREAS, Special Uses are certain municipal or private uses that due to their
physical or operational characteristics may pose a threat to the value, use and
enjoyment of adjoining property; are reviewed on a case by case basis; and are
permitted only by permission of the Belvidere City Council; and,

WHEREAS, The applicant, John C. Griffin, 9145 Meadowsweet Drive, Belvidere,
IL 61008, on behalf of the property owner, Griffin-Williamson Co., 1132 Harrison
Avenue, Rockford, IL 61104 has petitioned the City for a Special Use to permit
indoor commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with video gaming); and

WHEREAS, after due notice by publication pursuant to the lllinois State Statutes,
the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on
August 14, 2018 concerning the proposed Special Use; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission having
examined the application and having considered the evidence, both oral and
documentary and being fully advised about the premises did make findings of
fact and a recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the City considered the findings of fact
and concur with the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF BELVIDERE, BOONE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference.
Section 2. That a Special Use in the GB, General Business District for indoor

commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with video gaming) on the property
depicted in Attachment A and legally described as:



Ordinance No. 417H
Page 2 of 5

Lot One (1) as designated upon the Plat of Hillside, being part of the
Northwest Quarter of Section 31, Township 44 North, Range 4 East of
the Third Principal Meridian, according to the Plat thereof recorded May
18, 1994 as Document Number 94-4084; situated in the County of Boone
and the State of lllinois. PIN: 06-31-101-003.

is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:
1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

2. Alcohol consumption is only permitted within the video gaming area
(Attachment B).

3. The video gaming area must be enclosed and only accessible through a
designated entrance.

4. Substantial compliance with the site plan submitted.

Section 3. That the premises shall be used in accordance with and subject to
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belvidere and
shall not be used except as may otherwise be expressly authorized by the
applicable law and the special use.

Section 4. That acceptance of any of the benefits of this Special Use shall be
deemed acceptance of all the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 6. If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision
of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder
thereof, which remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Belvidere this day of :
2018.
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Belvidere this day of :

2018.



Ordinance No. 417H
Page 30of 5

Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk

Ayes: Nays: Absent:

City Council Members Voting Aye:

City Council Members Voting Nay:

Date Published: Sponsor:




Ordinance No. 417H

Page 4 of 5
1001 \
1008
1800 045
0.59
1818
[ case201816 |
Kelley Williamsen Company
i~ -| 1776 Logan Avenue |
ey | SuU ‘
h |.
S
S
eS|
x j.'
. 296
>
>
2.04
/
— 9 i
3
&
S
“‘@E
J s
1inch = 70 feet




Ordinance No. 417H

Page 50f 5

ATTACHMENT B

AR

ONINVY D o
saimuaA (el f@.. oxANY

R N - B 1
= -l =L -l =7 .rﬂ-‘.ﬁ
T RPN i “ T Y
4 = ThiE =

S ¥ T _ Tl T i
; o i 77 | v, | _ N I

R 7~ :..o_ | _[q_;ﬂua_L

Ry _ I _ | | o=

| Sisod 1nnow
HOOTS OF QIANADW
ATvm st SSvos

ealy aweo Yyum 1noAeq 19)eN s,Aa)|9)



DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Case: 2018-16, Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Ave.

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant John C. Griffin, 9145 Meadowsweet Drive, Belvidere, IL 61008 on behalf
of the property owner, Griffin-Williamson Co., 1132 Harrison Avenue, Rockford, IL
61104 is requesting a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar
with video gaming at 1776 Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District
(Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial
Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
subject property is irregular in shape, approximately two-acres in size (PIN: 06-31-101-
003) and developed with a Kelley’s Market Mobil Gas Station and parking area.

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning and zoning commission recommended the approval of case number
2018-16 for a special use to permit indoor commercial entertainment (a bar/tavern with
video gaming) at 1776 Logan Avenue subject to the following conditions:

1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

2. Alcohol consumption is only permitted within the video gaming area.

3. The video gaming area must be enclosed and only accessible through a designated
entrance.

4. Substantial compliance with the site plan submitted.
Motion to approve case 2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue subject

to the condition as presented failed with a (2-2) roll call vote. Andy Racz and Bob
Cantrell voted no.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



CITY OF BELVIDERE

%ammwn&'t @;(Ael@ ment
7 4

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLANNING DEPARTMENT

401 WHITNEY BLVD, SUITE 300 BELVIDERE, IL 61008 * PIH (815)547-7177 FAX (815)547-0789

August 1, 2018
Amended August 7, 2018

ADVISORY REPORT

CASE NO: 2018-16 APPLICANT: Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant John C. Griffin, 9145 Meadowsweet Drive, Belvidere, IL 61008 on behalf of the
property owner, Griffin-Williamson Co., 1132 Harrison Avenue, Rockford, IL 61104 is requesting
a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar with video gaming at 1776
Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections
150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and
Approval Procedures). The subject property is irregular in shape, approximately two-acres in
size (PIN: 06-31-101-003) and developed with a Kelley's Market Mobil Gas Station and parking
area.

EXISTING LAND USE:

Subject property: Kelley’'s Market Mobil Gas Station
North: Javurek Chiropractic and Lifeline Ambulance
South: Multi-tenant Building

East: Vacant/Row Crop Production (County)

West: Multi-tenant Building

CURRENT ZONING:

Subject property: GB, General Business District

North: GB, General Business District

South: PB, Planned Business District

East: B2, General Business District (County)

West: GB, General Business District and MR-8S, Multi-family Residential- 8 Small District

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Subject property: General Business
North, South and East: General Business
West: General Business and Single Family

BACKGROUND:
The property was annexed into the City of Belvidere in 1993. The Hillside Subdivision was
approved in 1994 and building permits for the gas station were issued in 1996. The property



2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

acts as the sole entrance for the chiropractor's office and a secondary entrance to the
paramedic’s station located to the north.

The gas station currently has 33 parking spaces (2 are handicapped accessible) although less
than 10 are required. There is adequate parking to accommodate the five video gaming
machines being requested. The video gaming machines and bar area will be to the east (right)
of the entrance doors. Existing shelving and additional barricades will be used to section off the
150 square-foot area from the rest of the gas station, while leaving a clear line of sight from
cashier's counter. Although the gas station is open 24/7, gaming machines will only be
operational Monday thru Saturday from 6am to 2am and Sunday from 11am to 2am when liquor
is allowed to be sold.

The Speedway Gas Station on Crystal Parkway is the only other gas station with video gaming.
The Speedway Gas Station qualified as a truck stop so they were able to have video gaming
without having to allow alcohol consumption onsite. Since the Kelley's Market Mobil Gas
Station is not operating under a truck stop license, open alcohol and alcohol consumption must
be permitted in order to have video gaming. Alcohol will only be permitted in the gaming area
and the applicant intends on selling it above market price in order to deter to the consumption
on-site.

TREND OF DEVELOPMENT:

The subject property is located at the intersection of Logan Avenue and Belvidere Road. The
area is a mixture of commercial and office uses located along Logan Avenue and Belvidere
Road with residential uses behind the commercial development.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The subject property is designated as “General Business” by the City of Belvidere
Comprehensive Plan, adopted July 15, 1999. The General Business map category encourages
indoor commergial, office, institutional, and controlled outdoor display land uses, with moderate

landscaping and signage.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will
not be unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals,
comfort or general welfare.

The existing video gaming machines in Belvidere have not been shown to be
unreasonably detrimental. Alcohol consumption at gas stations has not occurred before
in Belvidere. However, patrons drive to and from bars just like they drive to and from
gas stations; the subject property has adequate parking for the secondary land use and
a very small portion of the store will be dedicated to indoor commercial entertainment.
Due to the size and location of the special use, staff does not anticipate a danger to the
public health or general welfare.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its
location and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals,
objectives, policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan,
this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.



2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as General Business; the
current zoning is General Business. A variety of land uses are encouraged in general
business, such as gas stations and indoor commercial (retail). Bars and video gaming
are a type of indoor commercial land use.

Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or
as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public
Hearing by the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
development.

The indoor commercial land use will not be noticeable from the outside except for
potential signage. There are three special uses for indoor commercial entertainment
approved across the street (south of Logan Avenue) in the Logan Square Subdivision.

The property has adequate parking and ingress/egress off of Logan Avenue. The
additional traffic from the special use is not anticipated to negatively impact the
accessibility of the two properties to the north.

Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

The planning staff is not aware of any business that chose not to locate or expand due to
video gaming. The northeast corner of Logan Avenue and Belvidere Road is developed
with a gas station, chiropractic office, paramedic station, Wycliffe Estate's residential
subdivision and a three-acre vacant field. Across Jamestown Avenue is Marv's Towing
and Repair. The planning staff does not anticipate that this special use will deter
development on the vacant field when previous businesses have not.

Findings: The proposed special use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement
facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject
property.

The subject property is already developed with a gas station that is served with
municipal utilities.

Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any
and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’'s proposal and any requirements recommended by
the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.



2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

There do not appear to be any public benefits or adverse impacts related to the special
use request. The neighborhood already has bars and video gaming; it is not a unique
business, however, staff is not aware of any negative impacts the other bars and video
gaming have created.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS:

The existing video gaming machines in Belvidere have not been shown to be unreasonably
detrimental. Alcohol consumption at gas station has not occurred before in Belvidere.
However, patrons drive to and from bars just like they drive to and from gas stations. The
subject property has adequate parking for the secondary land use and a very small portion of
the store will be dedicated to indoor commercial entertainment. The additional traffic from the
special use is not anticipated to negatively impact the accessibility of the two praperties to the
north. Due to the size and location of the special use, staff does not anticipate a danger to the
public health or general welfare.

The indoor commercial land use will not be noticeable from the outside except for potential
signage. There are three special uses for indoor commercial entertainment approved across
the street (south of Logan Avenue) in the Logan Square Subdivision. The planning staff is not
aware of any business that chose not to locate or expand due to video gaming. The northeast
corner of Logan Avenue and Belvidere Road is developed with a gas station, chiropractic office,
paramedic station, Wycliffe Estate's residential subdivision and a three-acre vacant field.
Across Jamestown Avenue is Marv's Towing and Repair. The planning staff does not anticipate
that this special use will deter development on the vacant field when previous businesses have
not.

There do not appear to be any public benefits or adverse impacts related to the special use
request. The neighborhood already has bars and video gaming; it is not a unique business,
however, staff is not aware of any negative impacts the other bars and video gaming have
created.

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning staff recommends the approval of case number 2018-16 for a special use at 1776
Logan Avenue subject to the following conditions:

1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

2. Alcohol consumption is only permitted within the video gaming area.

3. The video gaming area must be enclosed and only accessible through a designated
entrance.

4. Substantial compliance with the site plan submitted.

Submitted by:

( ) “‘»s \\ o ‘ (/L."'(f /L’T\J{k
Gind,DelRose N
Community Development Planner




2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

Review and Recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Planning and
Zoning Commission shall review the application, adopt findings of fact, and make a
recommendation to the City Council.

Review and Action by the City Council. The City Council shall consider the Planning and
Zoning Commission's recommendation regarding the proposed special use. The City Council
may approve or deny the special use as originally proposed, may approve the proposed special
use with modifications or may remand the matter back to the Planning and Zoning Commission
for further discussion or hearing. The City Council's approval of the requested special use shall
be considered the approval of a unique request, and shall not be construed as precedent for
any other proposed special use.



2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

ATTACHMENTS

Location Map by Planning Staff.
Aerial Photo with by Planning Staff.
Narrative submitted by Applicant.
Site plan submitted by Applicant.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Health Department, Amanda Mehl, July
23, 2018.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Soil and Water Conservation District,
Jennifer Becker, July 6, 2018.

Information packet provided by the applicant.



1004 102-005
0.3

Kelley Williamson Company

921
1001
o g
o
wn
101.001 .
1800 0.45 CASE 2018-16
1776 Logan Avenue
18 =l
=
%
S
=
o)
=
v
=
~
[=]
3
101-003
2.04
~—]
'COG
AN 41
1275~
<8 §
A
| S
3
\ RJ
N Q
W ‘OE
S
1 inch = 93 feet

1001 492010
0.23

102.011
1005 0.23

\

100-036
2,95




4 {
g

[

=

.
Lz
il

etnil ]l e |k

-
N
&

CASE 2018-16
Kelley Williamson Company

1776 Logan Avenue

q
1 ek — AT fant

"

P L 2




Mamn Office

1132 HARRISON AVENLE
ROCIKEFORD, [LLINOIS 615104-7290

313,497-0410 FAX 315/397-9070

Webhsite, www kw-atl.com

Kelley Williamson Company-Logan Ave Mobil (Kelley’s Market)
Narrative

Kelley Williamson Company requests that their location at 1776 Logan Avenue be
approved for a Special Use Permit for Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Video
Gaming) that would allow for on premise alcohol consumnption in addition to their
existing packaged liquor sales. The on premise consumption would only be allowed in
the designated video gaming area. Kelley Williamson would like to have 5 video gaming
terminals placed in this designated video gaming area of the store by J&J Ventures
Gaming , an Illinois Licensed Terminal Operator. The addition of an on premise
consumption license would allow Kelley Williamson Company to apply for an Illinois
state gaming license. An Ilinois Gaming Agent will perform a final inspection of
proposed gaming area to confirm it meets all requirements under the Video Gaming Act.

Kelley Williamson Company will provide a separate game area, with one inside entrance,
that will be monitored by a constant direct line of site by location staff. The proposed
gaming area will be approximately a 10 X 15 enclosed area using existing shelving for
walls and an addition of a closed one way entrance monitored by staff. They propose
selling beer at a retail of $9 (above regular retail) for consumption only in the game area.
The beer will be stored separately in a small fridge behind the cashier counter.

The location has been selling tobacco products, lottery, as well as packaged alcohol, and
is currently trained to card customers for underage. The location will card 100% for game
room alcohol sales at the cashier counter. After age verification has been confirmed, the
customer will be instructed to return inside the gaming area where a staff member will
serve the beer. The beer will not be allowed out of the gaming area. The video games
will only be in operation during the hours the liquor license allows for alcohol, which is
currently 6am-2am Monday- Saturday and 11am-2am on Sunday.

Additionally, this site has 3,031 Sq ft for the entire store. The backroom storage area is
432 Sq ft, and the gaming area will be approximately 150 Sq ft. This makes the total
gross square footage 2,449. The location currently has 31 parking spaces and an
additional 2 for handicap. The existing parking more than qualifies them for the
requirement of 1 parking space for every 300 gross Sq ft with an additional 5 parking
spots for the proposed video gaming.



—— T == =\ A — = =\
e e e LOGAN AVENUE MOBIL Store -
R PR o oo e KELLEY WILLIAMSON e
o Lac] ':' R et A 1:;: 1776 LOGAN AVE SYSTEMS 'm[mrﬁia
= - Le EMCE SYORE ORS8N i
e e

................................
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN S Cevia tcrenn. (P

[ili HEN




07/25/2018 0S:45Administrative bwe (FaX) P.00Bs013

Boone County
Health Department

1204 Logan Avenue, Belvidere, Illinois 61008
Main Office 815.544.2951 Clinic 815.544.9730 Fax 815.544.2050
Pravont. Fromors, Protect. www.boonehealth.org

The mission of the Boons County Health Department is to aerve our community by
preventing the spread of disease, promoting optimal wellnoss & protecting the public’s health.

July 23, 2018

Gina Del Rose FAX 815-547-0789
City of Belvidere Community Development

401 Whitney Blvd,, Suite 300

Belvidere, IL 61008

Re: Case: 2018-16, Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

Dear Gina,

We are in receipt of the special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar with
video gaming request for the above referenced case. Our office has no objections or comments
on this request. However, prior to operation of the ¢enter a to scale plan (of the layout of the
store) and a food application must be submitted to the health department for review. The plan
review fee would be determined when menu information is submitted. Below is the county code
explaining this further.

Sec. 30-35. Submission and review of plans; permits.

(@) Generally, whenever a food service establishment ot retail food store is constructed or
extensively remodeled and whenever an existing structure is converted to use as a
food service establishment, properly prepared plans and specifications for such
construction, remodeling, or conversion shall be submitted to the regulatory authority
for review and approval before construction, remodeling, or conversion is begun. The
plans and specifications shall indicate the proposed layout, arrangement, mechanical
plans, construction materials of work areas, and the type and model of proposed fixed
equipment and facilities.

(b) Permit required. Any business or organization desiring to operate as a food service
establishment or retail food establishment must have a current food service permit.

(¢) Plans, inspection and approval. Before issuing a food service permit to a new
establishment, plans must be submitted to and approved by the health authority. Plans
submitted for review must be accompanied by the appropriate plan review fee as listed in
section 38-31,



07/25/2013 09:45 Administrative biw (FAX; P, 009s013

RE: Case: 2018-16, Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue
Date: 7/23/18
Page 20f2

Food establishment classifications. All food service establishments or retail food establishments
shall be categorized according to their type of operation, size of operation, and risk category of
the food prepared and/or served and shall obtain a permit for the class of operation as hereinafter
defined. The listing of various types of opetation is not intended to be all inclusive, but typical
and not limited to those mentioned. If a food establishment is not specifically listed, it shall be
classified according to the class to which it most closely resembles.

(1) Category I High Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a high relative risk
of causing foodborne illness based on the large number of food handling operations
typically implicated in foodborne outbreaks and/or type of population served by the
facility. The following criteria shall be used to classify facilities as Category I High
Risk facilities:

a. whenever cooling of potentially hazardous foods occurs as part of the food
handling operations at the facility,

b. when potentially hazardous foods are prepared hot or cold and held hot or cold
for more than 12 hours before serving:

¢, if potentially hazardous foods which have been previously cooked and cooled
must be reheated;

d. when potentially hazardous foods are prepared for off-premises service for
which time-temperature requirements during transportation, holding and service
are relevant;

e. whepever complex preparation of foods, or extensive handling of raw
ingredients with hand contact for ready to eat foods, occurs as a part of the food
handling operations at the facility;

£ if vacuum packaging and/or other forms of reduced oxygen packaging are
performed at the retail level; or

g. whenever setving immunocompromised individuals, where these individuals
compromise the majority of the consuming population.

(2) Category I High Risk Multi-Department Facility. is a food establishment that presents a
high relative risk of causing foodborne illness based on the large number of food
handling operations typically implicated in foodbomne outbreaks. These facilities have
the same ecriteria as Category 1 High Risk facilities, and have 3 or more departments
within their facilities which need inspection inctuding but not limited to main grocery,
bakery, deli, meat and seafood departments.



07/25/2018  09:45Administrative biw (FAX) P.013/013

RE: Case: 2018-16, Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue
Date: 7/23/18
Page 30of3

(3)  Category Il Medium Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a medium risk of
causing foodborne illness based upon a few food handling operations typically implicated in
foodborne illness outbreaks. The following criteria shall be used to classify facilities as
Category II Medium Risk facilities:

a. if hot or cold foods ate not maintained at that temperature for more than 12
hours and are restricted to same day setvice;

b. if preparing foods for service from raw ingredients uses only minimal
assembly; and

¢. foods served at an establishment that requite complex preparation (whether
canned, frozen, or fresh prepared) are obtained from an approved food processing
plants, (high risk) food service establishments or retail food stores.

(4) Category IIl Low Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a low relative risk
of causing foodborne illness based on few or no food handling operations typically
implicated in foodborne illness outbreaks. The following criteria shall be used to
classify facilities as Category III Low Risk facilities:

a. only prepackaged foods are available or served in the facility, and any
potentially hazardous foods available are commercially pre-packaged in an
approved food processing plant;

b. only limited preparation of non-potentially hazardous foods and beverages,
such as snack foods and carbonated beverages occurs at the facility; or

c. only beverages (alcoholic and non-alcoholic) are served at the facility.
Please let us know if you have any questions or concertis

Thank you,

(it

Amanda Mehl
Public Health Administrator
skm



: m;;‘_iggleoone County
~ Soil & Water

4 Y Conservation District

6 July 2018

SWCD NRI #: 1586

Belvidere Planning Department
401 Whitney Blvd: - -

Belvidere, IL 61008

Dear Sir/Madam,

211 N. Appleton Road
Belvidare, IL 61008
815-544-2677 ext. 3

A request for a Natural Resource Ihfokhﬁation Report was submitted for the propert\? listed in
this letter for front setback variance. We will supply a written reply to you offic as indicated

below:
__X__ Our review does not apply in this instance.

——

———Other (see attached) .
Location of Site: 1776 Logan Ave. Belvide’re, tlinois 61008

PIN(S): 06-31-101-003

Belvidere, IL 61008

815-397-9410
_iohng@low-oil.com

Belvidere, IL 61008
815-397-9410
| johng@kw-oil.com

| Contact | petitioner
John Griffin John Griffin
9145 Meadowsweet Dr. .9145 Meadowsweet Dr.,

| Rocklord, IL. 61104

Gn‘iﬁin:_VVilliamson E(;mpany )
1132 Harrison Ave.

[owner T ]

- - ]

Request: special use for commercial entertainment-video gaming

Sincerely,

s of
P é/l;td’;&(rf’ 74,:‘/{ (_l/i/_};.-é
‘jémiferpﬂécke —
Boone County Soil & Water
Coriservation District

Re: John Griffin




6998-/58-60¢
wod digosnd@ayiAsio)|

dnoJo oin)
9YiAsio4 1107

uoISSNasIq
guiweo 0apIA
9J9pIA|2g JO Al




SSINJUSA

.w-:._...“.-uma.!)..d.‘ c-w_—.wclujﬂuw\.\ L

BV rw . 3




SRNIKWITD o= o
sainjuoA [F=)e .,@gw oA

9NU3A3J JO 32JN0S |euonippe pue MaN =
dulwes oapIA 01 AJ9110| WoJ) Suluollisuel)y SIBWO0ISN) «
SJ9WO01SNI MIN =

:W0J} 11JaUd(
$9101S 9IUBIUDAUOY) Ul pade|d sjeulwaa] Suiwes 0apIA

'SI0Ul||| Ul SUOI1BIO| |[EUOIYIPEI] UON pUE
$9J401S 3IUIUDAUOD) PISUDI| ST JOA0 MOU ale 313y

Ajunlioddo mapn



sSoinjuaA (&) e

[

r;
r!'q
[ -

%00T SPJeJ Uuoi1ed07

‘98eJapun Joj S1awolsnd
pJed 0} pauiley Ajjualund pue joyoo|je agexded pue
‘AJa110] ‘7onpoud 022eq0] SUl||9S U33(Q dABY SUOI}EIOT =

38p14} e Ul J2JUN0D 3Y] pulyag 1day aq ||IM 193g =

‘eaJe awes ay3 ul Ajuo uondwnsuod
10} (]1e334 Je|N8aJ an0ge) 6S JO [1ela) B 1B 193 IPINOId s

'}J4B1S UoI1eJ0| JO 3}IS JO aul| 32341p Aq paJonuow 34
1M 1eY] 19)Je[A S,A3||9) 1k eale swes ajesedas e p|ing =

jesodoid



DMNMIWMYD oy T
senwengfy] Q) OUMY

|OLODJR SWNSUOD URD SIJRIDOSSR AJNp Uo o

210]S 3} IALI| UBD SIDUIRIUOD USdo ON

uonRdwnsuos

104 PJOS 3q ||IM J33UNCO 3 pulyaq J99g pszuoyine AjuQ

“eade

Buiwueb pajeubisap ay Ul 122q By} 2AISS ISNLI IJRIPDOSSE Y|
‘pouad unoy-4,z e

ul uosiad 13d WNWIXYIN nod 139q-(2) OML @ S! 213y "uosiad
12d ‘aui) e e 433q auo ‘dnd Jeap e ul painod 3q |Im 133g yoe]
SASIWRIA U0 132G DWNSUOD ISNLU pUe SIUIYOR |

buiwes) Y3 Jo esue psjeubisep syg ul Jeeg dee) Isnw Jewogsn)
saulyse buiwes ayy buiie|d sswoysny

33 03 Jaag ||2s 03 AAnp uo 3q O3 TZ 24 ISNW FIDOSSY

al

AITVA YV LNOHLIM Q10S 38 T1IM TOHODTV ON

sa|es |oyoodje 10} Adijod inod
asiwald uQ -Auedwo) uoswel|jim Asjo)



Kelley’s Market Current Floor Layout

WD - FEIET K, Al 2T D, GIBADT KN, CFP LA




SN IW Y s
Semonleile ()

u_. o &5
...»f./ LO—, L Y S G _ .
..Y/,//?‘ , " .ﬁ J ., * -
< /
.d.// = | £ :
7 T e = E —
. - A 1 M : v
> 5 o INTHITI | _ _
” o iAW AG A _ _ _r
. -
- e = [— | p ~— _ =3 !
- _ _ ' . ﬂ@-
7%
’ 2N
ﬂ<?
1 = g 4
(v}
‘.-.. i +
) S1SOd LNMOW
.FI - HOOTYS 01 dIANNOW
NN TTVM W SSwYD \A

e3aJy aweo Yim noAe 1aue s,Aa||9)




ONIWY-O o

2ouUeud
auo Ajuo 3uipinoid eause Suiwes
9S0|JUd pue 3sIpueydsdu 31e20|3Yy

uollels 131ysed woudj ease Suiwed
pasodoud 312dwod JO M3IA 103l1Q

800T9 11 J3PIA|g dNUBAY ues07 9/ /T 19)4elN S,A9)|a)



OMIWY ® o0 -
SIJNJUSIaIA W.u Miﬁ _

pasodo.id ealy aweo sejiwis jo ajdwexy



SSANJUSA

.mm.

81015-0 Bulpuad puepo) BE I GBYEL| 94015-Q uoswelIpn Adjjey [Blualod
810Z/0T/E| @1015-) Buipusy syeqiig 7y sulbbiHy 3 141 e jIqopy susqy9
1102/v2/8 $31015-D sieq 3 5/ @IN0Y ) +05 Ve poo § SBO aueT ssalixg

1102/9L/11 $2J01S-D YNEUVOWOS 1S JeyEW 1S3 (51 06D 5png
81L0C/6/¢ $84015-D| ejjmsiejusdie) P Asjluny 0E£OL 171 5% Ve SE
2L0Z/9LiLL $21015-D WemaN| | Aoy s els 1se3 £0g| dg yeman
1102/9T/L saiig0|  epuodnem| 5 wun 15 Aueqry A 0za Auued 1aui0)
1V 02/CTR S21015-0 yompueg PY Y1052 3 TFLF aneg p doig
51 0Z/92/E $3J015-D e)ew 3 8¢ |0y LT 3I01S SN s A
¥102/T/9 S31015-D| Ad|leA UBWNG| PROY YaroS00Y ISET LLL uoyierep Asfiep Uew|ING
110272212 saing-g| sjmsigwadied PY IEpURY LEVE U} Z# POOMISET
LL0Z/ETIE 210150 Bingsuyor Py IITH 12deY) 519¢ {961-199) doys D Bingsuyor
8 LOZIBIEC $3J015-D PIop 20y 1S 18IS M 006V po04 puy SEH nUNY Ley
JLOZ/FE/8 SISO RS 0y 1S 8%E] 009L 2D R I1Rg Sy
1102/9Z71 $8101S5-0 ||IAHI0 A wang 8bpug "N 20wl dg 9||1y10 4
110279811 Se)015-D YUOMSPEM Ly AMH SO N 067LY | 2U] Ju3 POO4 § SED) UEIUSWY
11029271 se;01S-O 9mssswadie)|  peoy uobuiseg ge9| (051199} dg s||nsieuadie)
L 0Z/6E/S $81015-D) PIOP 20y 1eang sIeIS "M ZLLP poo puy ses) [eAed
5L0T/8E/S s21015 O YUOMSPEM pY Aeg ueai9 ZSviy HEp 198pulay S,04s0y
ajeq smeis| sadAj] uonedro L) SSaIppy uonedo’

(s3I 06 3uipuno.ing) yax)ie Juiwen ealy 13PIARg

566°C1$  :007/91ey uny pazijenuuy ‘aieys Ayjjediiunpy
00S'TS :Jauow/aieys Anjedidiunyy 28esaAy ‘91015-)
T66°'6TS 11N 98esaAy ‘21015-D

‘|eijuajog awooduj Ajjeddiunpy

"BVUBUIONR 2J03§-) 3AY ‘2A17 Uo paseg |B13U330g WODU| 2I9PIAjag

sisAjeuy 19)4e|Al |_IIUR10d 343PIAIDg




DHNIWNY D
mm..:EmS@@.@_

ésdals 1xoN




MEMO

DATE: August 14, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Findings of Fact for Case: 2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Ave.

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant John C. Griffin, 9145 Meadowsweet Drive, Belvidere, IL 61008 on behalf
of the property owner, Griffin-Wiliamson Co., 1132 Harrison Avenue, Rockford, IL
61104 is requesting a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar
with video gaming at 1776 Logan Avenue within the GB, General Business District
(Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial
Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
subject property is irregular in shape, approximately two-acres in size (PIN: 06-31-101-
003) and developed with a Kelley’s Market Mobil Gas Station and parking area.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for
granting a Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use
will not be unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health,
safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

The existing video gaming machines in Belvidere have not been shown to be
unreasonably detrimental. Alcohol consumption at gas stations has not occurred
before in Belvidere. However, patrons drive to and from bars just like they drive
to and from gas stations; the subject property has adequate parking for the
secondary land use and a very small portion of the store will be dedicated to
indoor commercial entertainment. Due to the size and location of the special
use, staff does not anticipate a danger to the public health or general welfare.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of
its location and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the
purposes, goals, objectives, policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere
Comprehensive Plan, this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public
Hearing by the City.

The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as General Business;
the current zoning is General Business. A variety of land uses are encouraged in



Findings of Fact 2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

general business, such as gas stations and indoor commercial (retail). Bars and
video gaming are a type of indoor commercial land use.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted
on the required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact
on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental
factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or
general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this
Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map, or
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public
Hearing by the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
development.

The indoor commercial land use will not be noticeable from the outside except for
potential signage. There are three special uses for indoor commercial
entertainment approved across the street (south of Logan Avenue) in the Logan
Square Subdivision.

The property has adequate parking and ingress/egress off of Logan Avenue.
The additional traffic from the special use is not anticipated to negatively impact
the accessibility of the two properties to the north.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and
maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property.

The planning staff is not aware of any business that chose not to locate or
expand due to video gaming. The northeast corner of Logan Avenue and
Belvidere Road is developed with a gas station, chiropractic office, paramedic
station, Wycliffe Estate’s residential subdivision and a three-acre vacant field.
Across Jamestown Avenue is Marv's Towing and Repair. The planning staff
does not anticipate that this special use will deter development on the vacant
field when previous businesses have not.

E. Findings: The proposed special use is located in an area that will be
adequately served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the
improvement facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies
servicing the subject property.

The subject property is already developed with a gas station that is served with
municipal utilities.



Findings of Fact 2018-16; Kelley Williamson, 1776 Logan Avenue

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use
outweigh any and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use
after taking into consideration the Applicant’'s proposal and any
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

There do not appear to be any public benefits or adverse impacts related to the
special use request. The neighborhood already has bars and video gaming; it is
not a unique business, however, staff is not aware of any negative impacts the
other bars and video gaming have created.

The motion to adopt the Findings of Fact as presented by staff for case 2018-16
for a special use to permit indoor commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with
video gaming) at 1776 Logan Avenue carried with a (3-1) roll call vote. Andy Racz
voted no.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



ORDINANCE NO. 418H

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
TO ALLOW INDOOR COMMERCIAL ENTERTAINMENT
(BAR/TAVERN WITH VIDEO GAMING)
WITHIN THE CB, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
(522 South State Street)

WHEREAS, The City of Belvidere has adopted Chapter 150, Zoning Ordinance
in accordance with the provisions of lllinois Compiled Statutes to regulate the use
of land and to specify the minimum requirements for improvements on land in the
City of Belvidere; and

WHEREAS, Special Uses are certain municipal or private uses that due to their
physical or operational characteristics may pose a threat to the value, use and
enjoyment of adjoining property; are reviewed on a case by case basis; and are
permitted only by permission of the Belvidere City Council; and,

WHEREAS, The applicant and property owner, Jenaro Hernandez, 7818 IL
Route 173, Poplar Grove, IL 61065 has petitioned the City for a Special Use to
permit indoor commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with video gaming); and

WHEREAS, after due notice by publication pursuant to the lllinois State Statutes,
the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on
August 14, 2018 concerning the proposed Special Use; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission having
examined the application and having considered the evidence, both oral and
documentary and being fully advised about the premises did make findings of
fact and a recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the City considered the findings of fact
and concur with the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF BELVIDERE, BOONE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference.
Section 2. That a Special Use in the CB, Central Business District for indoor

commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with video gaming) on the property
depicted in Attachment A and legally described as:



Ordinance No. 418H
Page 2 of 4

Part of Lots Seven (7) and Nineteen (19) and all of Lots Thirteen (13)
and Fourteen (14) as designated upon the Plat of Assessor’'s Survey of
Block Seven (7) in Aaron Whitney’s Addition to Belvidere, the Plat of
which survey is recorded in Book 28 of Deeds on page 420 in the
Recorder’'s Office of Boone County, lllinois bounded and described as
follows, to-wit: Beginning at the most Southwesterly corner of said Lot
Thirteen (13); thence North 34 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West,
along the Southwesterly line of said Lot Thirteen (13) and Lot Fourteen
(14) a distance of 38.20 feet to the Northwesterly line of said Lot
Fourteen (14) ; thence, North 56 degrees 02 minutes 32 seconds East,
along the Northwesterly line of said Lot Fourteen (14) and the
Northeasterly extension thereof, 125.00 feet to the Northeasterly line of
said Lot Nineteen (19); thence North 34 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds
West, along the Northeasterly line of said Lot Nineteen (19) a distance of
1.80 feet to a point which is 40.00 feet from the most Southwesterly
corner of said Lot Seven (7); thence North 56 degrees 02 minutes 32
seconds East, parallel with the Southeasterly line of said Lot Seven (7) a
distance of 128.00 feet to the Northeasterly line of said Lot Seven (7);
thence South 34 degrees 35 minutes 04 seconds East, along the
Northeasterly line of said Lot Seven (7), 40.00 feet to the Southeasterly
line of Lot Seven (7); thence South 56 degrees 02 minutes 32 seconds
West, along the Southeasterly line of Lot Seven (7) and along the
Southeasterly line of said Lot Thirteen (13) and the Northeasterly
extension thereof, 253.41 feet to the point of beginning; situated in the
County of Boone and the State of Illinois. PIN: 05-25-360-007

is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:
1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

Section 3. That the premises shall be used in accordance with and subject to
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belvidere and
shall not be used except as may otherwise be expressly authorized by the
applicable law and the special use.

Section 4. That acceptance of any of the benefits of this Special Use shall be
deemed acceptance of all the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.



Ordinance No. 418H
Page 30of 4

Section 6. If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision
of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder
thereof, which remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Belvidere this day of :
2018.
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Belvidere this day of )
2018.

Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk

Ayes: Nays: Absent:

City Council Members Voting Aye:

City Council Members Voting Nay:

Date Published: Sponsor:




Ordinance No. 418H
Page 4 of 4

ATTACHMENT A

103

522

= = =
CASE 2018-17 :
Jenaro Hernandez

530

LOGAN AVE




DATE: August 14, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Case: 2018-17, Hernandez, 522 South State Street

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and owner, Jenaro Hernandez, 7818 IL Route 173, Poplar Grove, IL
61065 is requesting a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a
bar/tavern with pool tables, arcade machines and video gaming at 522 South State
Street within the CB, Central Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections
150.105(C)(6)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use
Review and Approval Procedures). The subject property is approximately 3,681 square
feet (PIN: 05-25-360-007) and develop with a mixed-use building.

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning and zoning commission recommended the approval of case number
2018-17 for a special use to permit indoor commercial entertainment (a bar/tavern with
video gaming) at 522 South State Street subject to the following condition:

1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

Motion to approve case 2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street subject to the
condition as presented carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



CITY OF BELVIDERE

C(%(//mma/néé/}// Qﬂ(;ﬂﬂ/@/bme/né

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLANNING DEPARTMENT

401 WHI'TNEY BLVD. SUI'TE 300 BELVIDERE, IT, 61008 * PH (815)547-7177 I'AX (815)547-078Y

July 31, 2018
ADVISORY REPORT

CASE NO: 2018-17 APPLICANT: Hernandez, 522 South State Street

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and owner, Jenaro Hernandez, 7818 IL Route 173, Poplar Grove, IL 61065 is
requesting a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar/tavern with pool
tables, arcade machines and video gaming at 522 South State Street within the CB, Central
Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(6)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial
Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The subject
property is approximately 3,681 square feet (PIN: 05-25-360-007) and develop with a mixed-
use building.

EXISTING LAND USE:

Subject property: Mixed-Use building (formerly housed Vintage 815)
North: Moscato's Pizza and ltalian Bakery

South: Professional offices

East: Parking lot

West: Mixed-Use buildings

CURRENT ZONING:
Subject property: CB, Central Business District
North, South East, West: CB, Central Business District

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Subject property: Central Business
North, South, East, West: Central Business

BACKGROUND:

The property is located in the downtown commercial district, along South State Street. The
property has housed various retail establishments in the past, the upstairs residential apartment
has been occupied.

The special use is to allow a new bar with five video gaming machines, pool tables, foosball
tables and arcade games to operate on the subject property. Snacks will also be served. The
business is anticipated to have-a relaxing atmosphere where people are encouraged to relax
and play games. The anticipated hours of operation are Monday-Saturday from 11am to 11pm
and closed on Sunday.



2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

The property is served by a private parking lot; however, due to existing lot sizes, age and
layout of the existing buildings as well as the intention to be pedestrian friendly, on-site parking
is not required in the Central Business District.

TREND OF DEVELOPMENT:
The subject property is located downtown in an area of established central business commercial
and institutional uses.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The subject property is designated as “Central Mixed Use” by the City of Belvidere
Comprehensive Plan, adopted July 15, 1999. The Central Mixed-Use map category
encourages pedestrian-arientated indoor-commercial, office, institutional and residential uses
with street-scaping and low-key signage. All surrounding properties are also designated
“Central Mixed-Use” by the Comprehensive Plan

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A, Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will
not be unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals,
comfort or general welfare.

The requested special use is for indoor commercial entertainment allowing a bar/tavern
with pool tables, arcade machines and video gaming to operate on the property. The
property is located in the Central Business District where such land uses are common.
Entertainment based businesses are often encouraged in downtown districts.

The building is located adjacent to a privately owned parking lot (owned by the applicant)
which is unique in the downtown area, where most of the parking is provided on-street or
by municipal parking lots. The property is currently surrounded by eateries, offices,
apartments, retail and bars. The opening of a new bar and arcade will not negatively
impact these land uses. Operating businesses, instead of vacant store fronts is
beneficial to all adjacent properties.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its
location and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals,
objectives, policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan,
this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as Central Business,; the
current zoning is Central Business. The entire downtown area is designated as Central
Business. The downtown area should be a mix of retail, services, residential, recreation
and entertainment that operate during the day and night and that are compatible uses.
Bars and arcades are included in the encouraged mix of land uses.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,



2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or
as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public
Hearing by the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
development.

The property is served by on-street parking along South State Street and a private
parking lot to the rear of the building. The property has had several retail businesses
over the past years; staff is not aware of any traffic nuisances created by them.

The property is within the Downtown Overlay District which regulates exterior features of
buildings such as signage, windows, doors, etc. The regulations of the Downtown
Overlay District ensure that changes made to the building will be kept in line with the
character of the neighborhood.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

The planning staff is not aware of any business that chose not to locate or expand in the
downtown area due to the other bars and similar establishments. The planning staff
does not anticipate that this special use will deter development when previous
businesses have not.

E. Findings: The proposed special use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement
facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject
property.

The subject property is already developed with a mixed-use building that is served with
municipal utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any
and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by
the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

Although the applicant is requesting a special use to operate a business that is similar to
others in the downtown area, he intends to create a different atmosphere to set his
business apart from the others by having arcade games and pool tables as well. This
could allow a wider demographic of people to be served in the downtown area. The
neighborhood is a mix of residential, commercial, office and entertainment so the special
use should not alter the neighborhood or create an undue burden.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS:

The requested special use is for indoor commercial entertainment allowing a bar/tavern with
pool tables, arcade machines and video gaming to operate on the property. The property is
located in the Central Business District where such land uses are common. Entertainment



2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

based businesses are often encouraged in downtown districts. The property is currently
surrounded by eateries, offices, apartments, retail and bars. The opening of a new bar and
arcade will not negatively impact these land uses.

The building is located adjacent to a privately owned parking lot (owned by the applicant) which
is unique in the downtown area, where most of the parking is provided on-street or by municipal
parking lots. The property has had several retail businesses over the past years; staff is not
aware of any traffic nuisances created by them.

The planning staff is not aware of any business that chose not to locate or expand in the
downtown area due to the other bars and similar establishments. The planning staff does not
anticipate that this special use will deter development when previous businesses have not. The
property is within the Downtown Overlay District which regulates exterior features of buildings
such as signage, windows, doors, etc. The regulations of the Downtown Overlay District ensure
that changes made to the building will be kept in line with the character of the neighborhood.

Although the applicant is requesting a special use to operate a business that is similar to others
in the downtown area, he intends to create a different atmosphere to set his business apart from
the others by having arcade games and pool tables as well. This could allow a wider
demographic of people to be served in the downtown area.

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning staff recommends the approval of case number 2018-17 for a special use at 522
South State Street subject to the following condition:

1. Open alcohol is prohibited outside the premises unless otherwise permitted.

Submitted by:

Cone A oy
\Giny DelRose '
Community Development Planner

Review and Recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Planning and
Zoning Commission shall review the application, adopt findings of fact, and make a
recommendation to the City Council.

Review and Action by the City Council. The City Council shall consider the Planning and
Zoning Commission’s recommendation regarding the proposed special use. The City Council
may approve or deny the special use as originally proposed, may approve the proposed special
use with modifications or may remand the matter back to the Planning and Zoning Commission
for further discussion or hearing. The City Council's approval of the requested special use shall
be considered the approval of a unique request, and shall not be construed as precedent for
any other proposed special use.



2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

ATTACHMENTS

Location Map by Planning Staff.
Aerial Photo with by Planning Staff.
Narrative submitted by Applicant.
Site plan submitted by Applicant.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Health Department, Amanda Mehl, July
23, 2018.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Soil and Water Conservation District,
Jennifer Becker, July 26, 2018.



103

5§12

514

CASE 2018-17 |
Jenaro Hernandez |

SuU

\ 2
\0 £

=]
=\
e
s

N
' E
e

522 South State Street ' y

514

520

522

530

LOGAN AVE




. £y
CASE 2018-17 %
Jenaro Hernandez ||

522 South State Street -

1 ineh = 15 faet




——

he  plan [ Ntk we will give pesiccts

(lnde {)O@&o(h\xomc\laﬁé ;Sf(/\acks

H‘Lw = Mm‘h“}g‘ Loaducad

—  Closea w%’

“ UM 1P



Beeke Doo

7
o3
o

2

é}‘
e
N

4

PQJLLC(\QG Lo'\’
<= B> tred

+oRHS 2iS

o1 o
u oo\ Yalles | ool oles _
%.err\ ;‘ P T
2 S
II.W J @.& G_.Ml.mih ..\_Wm::m
b Fuzz oall € HE...R.: ame
&g U]
s I T 1Y
ey o 01l
T,_w
™| — y
g L[ 3
(.\503?16@ noﬁ
. . o
| qﬂéﬁu _.%EQH ,&38_ | \wnﬁw Wud 3

888D

—olal Squase Lootng.




07/25/2018  09:45 Administrative bw (FAX) F.011/013

Boone County
Health Department

1204 Logan Avenue, Belvidere, Illinois 61008
Main Office 815.544.2951 Clinic 815.544.9730 Fax 815.544.2050
Provent, Promots, Protest, www.boonehealth.org

The mission of the Boone County Health Department is to serve our community by

preventing the spreud of discase, promoting optimal wellness & protsciing the public’s health,

July 23,2018

Gina Del Rose FAX 815-547-0789
City of Belvidere Community Development

401 Whitney Blvd., Suite 300

Belvidere, IL 61008

Re: Case: 2018-17, Hernandez, 522 South State Street

Dear Gina,

We are in receipt of the special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar/tavern
with pool tables, arcade machines and video gaming request for the above referenced case. Our
office has no objections or comments on this request. However, prior to operation of the center a
to scale plan (of the layout of the store) and a food application must be submitted to the health
department for review. The plan review fee would be determined when menu information is
submitted. Below is the county code explaining this further,

Sec. 30-35. Submission and review of plans; permits.

(8) Generally, whenever a food service establishment or retail food store is constructed or
extensively remodeled and whenever an existing structure is converted to use as a
food service establishment, ptoperly prepared plans and specifications for such
construction, remodeling, ot convetsion shall be submitted to the regulatory authority
for review and approval before construction, remodeling, or conversion is begun. The
plans and specifications shall indicate the proposed layout, arrangement, mechanical
plans, construction materials of work areas, and the type and madel of propased fixed
equipment and facilities.

(b) Permit required, Any business or organization desiring to operate as a food service
establishment or retail food establishment must have a current food service permit.

(c) Plans, inspection and approval. Before issuing a food service permit to a new
establishment, plans must be submitted to and approved by the health authority. Plans
submitted for review must be accompanied by the appropriate plan review fee as listed in
section 38-31.



07/25/2018 09:45Adninistrative biw {FAX) P.012/013

RE: Case: 2018-17, Hernandez, 522 South State Street
Date: 7/23/2018
Page 20f2

Food establishment classifications. All food service establishments or retail food establishments
shall be categorized according to their type of operation, size of operation, and risk category of
the food prepared and/or served and shall obtain a permit for the class of operation as hereinafter
defined. The listing of various types of operation is not intended to be all inclusive, but typical
and not limited to those mentioned. If a food establishment is not specifically listed, it shall be
classified according to the class to which it most closely resembles.

(1) Category I High Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a high relative risk
of causing foodborne illness based on the large number of food handling operations
typically implicated in foodborne outbreaks and/or type of population served by the
facility. The following criteria shall be used to classify facilities as Category I High
Risk facilities:

a. whenever cooling of potentially hazardous foods occurs as part of the food
handling operations at the facility;

b. when potentially hazardous foods are prepared hot or cold and held hot or cold
for more than 12 hours before serving:

c. if potentially hazardous foods which have been previously cooked and cooled
must be reheated;

d. when potentially hazardous foods are prepared for off-premises service for
which time-temperature requirements during transportation, holding and service
are relevant;

e. whenever complex preparation of foods, or extensive handling of raw
ingredients with hand contact for ready to eat foods, occurs as a part of the food
handling operations at the facility;

. if vacuum packaging and/or other forms of reduced oxygen packaging are
performed at the retail level; or

g. whenever serving immunocompromised individuals, where these individuals
compromise the majority of the consuming population.

(2) Category I High Risk Multi-Department Facility: is a food establishment that presents a
high relative risk of causing foodborne illness based on the large number of food
handling operations typically implicated in foodbome outbreaks. These facilities have
the same criteria as Category I High Risk facilities, and have 3 or more departments
within their facilities which need inspection including but not limited to main grocery,
bakery, deli, meat and seafood departments.



D7/25/2018 09:48 Administrative b\w (FAX) P.013/013

RE: Case: 2018-17, Hernandez, 522 South State Street
Date: 7/23/18
Page 30of3

(3)  Category II Medium Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a medium risk of
causing foodborne illness based upon a few food handling operations typically implicated in
foodborne iliness outbreaks. The following criteria shall be used to classify facilities as

Category Il Medium Risk facilities:

a. if hot or cold foods are not maintained at that temperature for more than 12
hours and are restricted to same day service;

b. if preparing foods for service from raw ingredients uses only minimal
assembly; and

¢. foods served at an establishment that require complex preparation (whether
canned, frozen, or fresh prepared) are obtained from an approved food processing
plants, (high risk) food service establishments or retail food stores.

(4) Category III Low Risk Facility: is a food establishment that presents a low relative risk
of causing foodborne illness based on few or no food handling operations typically
implicated in foodbome illness outbreaks, The following criteria shall be used to
classify facilities as Category IIT Low Risk facilities:

a. only prepackaged foods are available or served in the facility, and any
potentially hazardous foods available are commercially pre-packaged in an
approved food processing plant;

b. only limited preparation of non-potentially hazardous foods and beverages,
such as snack foods and carbonated beverages accurs at the facility; or

¢. only beverages (alcoholic and non-alcoholic) are served at the facility.

Please let us know if you have any questions or concems

Thank you,

(it

Amanda Mehl
Public Health Administrator
skm



/' Boone County

SOll & wa.tel‘ | 211 N. Appleton Road

e Belvidere, IL 61008
!Conservation District e o

, 26 July 2018
SWCD NRI #: 1593

‘Belvidere Planning Department
401 Whitney Blvd.,, Suite 300
Belvidere, iL 61008

Dear Sir/Madam,

A request for a Natural Resource lnformatlon Report was subrmtted We will supply a written.
reply to you office as indicated below:

~__X_. Ourreview does'not apply in this instance.
—— DOther (see attached)

Location of Site:r 522 S. Main Street Belvndere, IL 61008
PIN(S): 05- 25-360-007

Contact l Petitioner Owner
L [ .

Jenaro Hernandez - same same
7818 Route 173
Poplar Grove, IL 61065

815-509-7135

Request: special use for indoor commercial gaming

Sincerely,
erortlen /j(//e/u
,/é‘mn‘ev ecker i

Boone County 'Soil & Water
Conservation District




MEMO

DATE: August 14, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Findings of Fact for Case: 2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and owner, Jenaro Hernandez, 7818 IL Route 173, Poplar Grove, IL 61065 is
requesting a special use for indoor commercial entertainment to operate a bar/tavern with pool
tables, arcade machines and video gaming at 522 South State Street within the CB, Central
Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(6)(B)(2) Indoor Commercial
Entertainment and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The subject
property is approximately 3,681 square feet (PIN: 05-25-360-007) and develop with a mixed-
use building.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will
not be unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals,
comfort or general welfare.

The requested special use is for indoor commercial entertainment allowing a bar/tavern
with pool tables, arcade machines and video gaming to operate on the property. The
property is located in the Central Business District where such land uses are common.
Entertainment based businesses are often encouraged in downtown districts.

The building is located adjacent to a privately owned parking lot (owned by the applicant)
which is unique in the downtown area, where most of the parking is provided on-street or
by municipal parking lots. The property is currently surrounded by eateries, offices,
apartments, retail and bars. The opening of a new bar and arcade will not negatively
impact these land uses. Operating businesses, instead of vacant store fronts is
beneficial to all adjacent properties.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its
location and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals,
objectives, policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan,
this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as Central Business; the
current zoning is Central Business. The entire downtown area is designated as Central
Business. The downtown area should be a mix of retail, services, residential, recreation



Findings of Fact 2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

and entertainment that operate during the day and night and that are compatible uses.
Bars and arcades are included in the encouraged mix of land uses.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or
as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public
Hearing by the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
development.

The property is served by on-street parking along South State Street and a private
parking lot to the rear of the building. The property has had several retail businesses
over the past years; staff is not aware of any traffic nuisances created by them.

The property is within the Downtown Overlay District which regulates exterior features of
buildings such as signage, windows, doors, etc. The regulations of the Downtown
Overlay District ensure that changes made to the building will be kept in line with the
character of the neighborhood.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

The planning staff is not aware of any business that chose not to locate or expand in the
downtown area due to the other bars and similar establishments. The planning staff
does not anticipate that this special use will deter development when previous
businesses have not.

E. Findings: The proposed special use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement
facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject
property.

The subject property is already developed with a mixed-use building that is served with
municipal utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any
and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by
the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

Although the applicant is requesting a special use to operate a business that is similar to
others in the downtown area, he intends to create a different atmosphere to set his
business apart from the others by having arcade games and pool tables as well. This
could allow a wider demographic of people to be served in the downtown area. The



Findings of Fact 2018-17; Hernandez, 522 South State Street

neighborhood is a mix of residential, commercial, office and entertainment so the special
use should not alter the neighborhood or create an undue burden.

The motion to adopt the Findings of Fact as presented by staff for case 2018-17 for a
special use to permit indoor commercial entertainment (bar/tavern with video gaming) at
522 South State Street carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



ORDINANCE NO. 419H

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
TO PERMIT IN-VEHICLE SALES OR SERVICE
WITHIN THE GB, GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
(925 Logan Avenue)

WHEREAS, The City of Belvidere has adopted Chapter 150, Zoning Ordinance
in accordance with the provisions of lllinois Compiled Statutes to regulate the use
of land and to specify the minimum requirements for improvements on land in the
City of Belvidere; and

WHEREAS, Special Uses are certain municipal or private uses that due to their
physical or operational characteristics may pose a threat to the value, use and
enjoyment of adjoining property; are reviewed on a case by case basis; and are
permitted only by permission of the Belvidere City Council; and,

WHEREAS, The applicant and property owner, Daniel L. Simpson (D Bar S
Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl Street Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 has petitioned the
City for a Special Use to permit in-vehicle sales and service (car wash); and

WHEREAS, after due notice by publication pursuant to the lllinois State Statutes,
the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on
August 14, 2018 concerning the proposed Special Use; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission having
examined the application and having considered the evidence, both oral and
documentary and being fully advised about the premises did make findings of
fact and a recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the City considered the findings of fact
and concur with the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF BELVIDERE, BOONE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. That a Special Use in the GB, General Business District for a car
wash on the property depicted in Attachment A and legally described as:

Part of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of Section 36, Township 44 North,
Range 3 East of the Third Principal Meridian, bounded and described as



Ordinance No. 419H
Page 2 of 5

follows, to-wit: Beginning at a point on the Southerly Line of Logan
Avenue, 13 chains and 3 % links (860.31 feet) South, 75 %2 ‘ East of the
intersection of said South Line of Logan Avenue with the West line of
said Quarter (1/4) Section, which point is the Northwesterly Corner of
lands formerly owned by John Hannah; thence Southeasterly, along the
Southerly line of Logan Avenue, a distance of 198.00 feet; thence
Southwesterly, parallel with the Westerly line of lands formerly owned by
John Hannah, a distance of 180.00 feet; thence Northwesterly, parallel
with the Southerly line of Logan Avenue, a distance of 198.00 feet to the
Westerly line of lands formerly owned by John Hannah; thence
Northeasterly along the last described line, a distance of 180.00 feet to
the place of beginning, subject to an easement for ingress and egress
over the Westerly 23.00 feet in width thereof; situated in the County of
Boone and the State of lllinois. PIN: 05-36-206-046

is hereby approved, subject to the following condition:

1. Upon relocation of the driveway (Attachment B), the original driveway
entrance shall be closed and the pavement shall be removed between the
sidewalk and the street and replaced with a grass terrace.

2. The existing depressed curb and gutter across the driveway opening shall be
replaced with full-section curb and gutter.

Section 3. That the premises shall be used in accordance with and subject to
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belvidere and
shall not be used except as may otherwise be expressly authorized by the
applicable law and the special use.

Section 4. That acceptance of any of the benefits of this Special Use shall be
deemed acceptance of all the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 6. If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision
of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder
thereof, which remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.



Ordinance No. 419H

Page 3 of 5
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Belvidere this day of
2018.
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Belvidere this day of
2018.
Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk

Ayes: Nays: Absent:

City Council Members Voting Aye:

City Council Members Voting Nay:

Date Published: Sponsor:




Ordinance No. 419H
Page 4 of 5

ATTACHMENT A

i J\_‘-H‘-h i‘ “ f'/
— The—
g’: / R . “L_"‘-\____‘ - T [ ""-*L.qq_’ !J' ;'.
J‘z /?\‘-_..___H _ 6‘.4‘\.,4 T H“‘k\/
l s —
/ / y

/ 925 | [ o
s I { -
e / :
A “;ra_:-:?[‘*'-x l / ¥ ; 939 / \/i\ i
| —l j ;
/ :;" THHL{TH L / | —_—
/ 918 ‘}"’ f / T :““L'*x._h /
924 T
'““‘-v-{.h__. f ! 0 !’! 936 / f/ }T‘Kh—‘? “‘*»».’::H‘ T
~L_ / / 942 e

923 /f = /f 953 /’ /\

. ] ;
f / 1 J /
—— | / {
CASE 2018-18 / ~—_
D Bar S Enterprises, Inc. / 1007 &
R ™

ANDREWS DR

ANDREWS DR

426

436

151

/ 925 Logan Avenus / y / o /: o
/ su / 8
3 /'!HHJ’-?T%___ / l/ / 815
/ ]-Hﬂ"“«_ﬁ_\h_“_ / / / / H"‘HE_H
- / / ~ HJ / / s ]
e [T~ |~
" 916 s 1 it _ —~
1inch = 93feet i/ f / N / 2 / 1014 0 .
.‘r ! i -~




Ordinance No. 419H
Page 5 of 5

ATTACHMENT B

SIS TLn ¢ S

IR e F =

. . R o)
re siardl T FHUBRIO ML W,

3//22/3

.okl v

P |
T

—_

Y

\ y: _ \ s stng ST
Y - LN 2
Zomusxz 1z G L s - %
, f
|
|
_ &Y
N LM ‘ , _ \\ /\N\
< | i
.L,l. _ ~
I~ _ J &
<
\% < |
- s |
. o |
& |
Mg
m s 42t N
oSS
P
W
<.e...‘.
—— 4
= A
= ,
\ ]



CITY OF BELVIDERE

Cenme nity @2&6/&% ment

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PLANNING DEPARTMENT

401 WHI'TNEY BLVD. SUI''E 300 BELVIDERE, II. 61008 * PH (815)547-7177 I'AX (815)547-0789

August 2, 2018

ADVISORY REPORT

CASE NO: 2018-18 APPLICANT: D Bar S Enterprises, 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and property owner, Daniel L. Simpson (D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl
Street Road, Belvidere, IL 81008 is requesting a special use to permit in-vehicle sales or service
(car wash) in order to bring the existing car wash into compliance at 925 Logan Avenue within
the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) in-
vehicle sales or services and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
property is just under an acre (PIN: 05-36-206-048), rectangular in shape and developed with a
car wash.

EXISTING LAND USE ON SUBJECT PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTY:
Subject property: Personal Pride Car Wash

Adjacent property:

North: Residential and Commercial

South: Vacant

West: Multi-tenant Commercial

East: Residential

ZONING ON SUBJECT PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTY:
Subject property: GB, General Business District

Adjacent property:
North: NB, Neighborhood Business District

South, East and West: GB, General Business District

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Subject property: Neighborhood Business
All Adjacent properties: Neighborhood Business

BACKGROUND:

The Zoning Ordinance requires properties that are zoned General Business to be a minimum of
20,000 square feet and a lot width of 100 feet at the building line. The subject property, which is
not part of a platted subdivision, is 35,640 square feet and has a lot width of 198 feet.



2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

The car wash has been in operation since 1974. The applicant purchased the property in 2004
and made improvements which included adding automatic bays to the west side of the building
in 2016. The Personal Pride Car Wash has a total of eight bays and a vacuum island. Vehicles
cannot access the rear of the property without driving through the car wash. There is an exit
only on the east side of the property for those vehicles leaving after utilizing the car wash.
There is an entrance/exit driveway on the west side of the property for those accessing the car
wash and those wishing to exit the property after using the vacuum island or purchasing coins
and other vending machine items.

With the pending variance request to relocate the driveway to better accommodate traffic levels,
the applicant is requesting a special use to bring the car wash into compliance with the current
Zoning Ordinance.

TREND OF DEVELOPMENT:

The property is located along Logan Avenue, a major thoroughfare that travels east-west and
connects to US Highway 20. This portion of Logan Avenue is developed with a mix of
residential, office and commercial uses; some of the older residences are converting to small
businesses.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The subject property is designated as “Neighborhood Business” by the City of Belvidere
Comprehensive Plan, adopted July 15, 1999. The Neighborhood Business map category
encourages residential, office, and neighborhood supporting institutional and commercial uses
that preserve the residential character through building scale, building appearance, landscaping
and signage.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use are as follows:

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare.

Other than the recent traffic concerns that are being rectified with the relocation of the
driveway (variance pending), staff is not aware of any negative impacts the car wash has
made on the community or neighborhood. By bringing the car wash into compliance with
the Zoning Ordinance, improvements can continue to be made to the property.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its location
and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives,
policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan, Section 150.904
of the Belvidere Zoning Ordinance and any other plan, program, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

The Comprehensive Plan shows the property and the surrounding areas as Neighborhood
Business. The neighborhood business category calls for commercial uses that support the



2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

neighborhood and buildings that are designed to match the nearby residential character.
Although the building does nat fit the residential character (sloped roof, materials, entrance
way, etc.), the business has been part of the neighborhood since 1974 and is designed in
accordance with the building trends of that decade.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map,
or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by
the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development.

The car wash has become part of the character of the neighborhood. The popularity of the
automatic wash bays has created a negative impact by causing traffic to back up onto
Logan Avenue. The applicant is requesting a variance to move the driveway in order to
alleviate the congestion. Once the driveway is relocated, the applicant will be required to
restore the public right-of-way.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

Since the car wash's inception in 1974, Logan Avenue has continued to develop with
commercial land uses. The residences along Logan Avenue have slowly transitioned into
commercial properties; properties such as Ultrasound of Belvidere and Boone County have
made significant investments.

E. Findings: The proposed Special Use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement facilities,
utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject property.

The subject property is already developed with a car wash that is served with municipal
utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any and
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’'s proposal and any requirements recommended by the
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

The use of the property is not changing. The special use will allow the existing land use to
be in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. Car washes cater to the entire community and
provide a service which is used by many.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS:
Other than the recent traffic concerns that are being rectified with the relocation of the driveway
(variance pending), staff is not aware of any negative impacts the car wash has made on the



2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

community or neighborhood. By bringing the car wash into compliance with the Zoning
Ordinance, improvements can continue to be made to the property.

The car wash has become part of the character of the neighborhood. The popularity of the
automatic wash bays has created a negative impact by causing traffic to back up onto Logan
Avenue. The applicant is requesting a variance to move driveway in order to alleviate the
congestion. Once the driveway is relocated, the applicant will be required to restore the public
right-of-way.

Since the car wash's inception in 1974, Logan Avenue has continued to develop with
commercial land uses. The residences along Logan Avenue have slowly transition into
commercial properties and properties such as Ultrasound of Belvidere and Boone County have
made significant investments.

RECOMMENDATION:
Planning staff recommends the approval of case number 2018-18 subject to the following
conditions:

1. Upon relocation of the driveway, the original driveway entrance shall be closed and the
pavement shall be removed between the sidewalk and the street and replaced with a grass
terrace.

2. The existing depressed curb and gutter across the driveway opening shall be replaced with
full-section curb and gutter.

Submitted by:

R Aty

Gind DelRose,
Community Development Planner

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION/CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall make and forward findings of fact as to the
compliance of the proposed planned development with the standards and make a
recommendation to the City Council. The City Council shall review the findings and
recommendation and may accept or reject the findings and recommendation of the Planning
and Zoning Commission in whole or in part; or the City Council may refer the matter back to the
Planning and Zoning Commission for further consideration. Any approval shall be considered
the approval of a unique request and not be construed as precedent for any other proposed
planned development.



2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

ATTACHMENTS:

Location Map by Planning Staff.

Aerial Photo by Planning Staff.
Narrative as Submitted by the Applicant.
Site Plan Submitted by the Applicant.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Soil and Water
Conservation District, Jennifer Becker, July 10, 2018.

Letter submitted by the Boone County Health Department,
Amanda Mehl, July 23, 2018.

Memo submitted by the Belvidere Public Works Department, Brent
Anderson, July 23, 2018.



CASE 2018-18
D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.
925 Logan Avenue
Su

824

N
/

) 916
7
S

1 inch = 93 feet

426

ANDREWS DR
436

ANDREWS DR

1053

815

817

819

1151




1
"‘“‘"\, o !-

CASE 2018-18 . -
D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.
925 Logan Avenue
SuU




D Bar S Enterprises, Inc

dba Personal Pride Carwash
3733 Pearl Street Rd
Belvidere, IL 61008

May 10, 2018

Gina DelRose

Community Development Planner
City of Belvidere

401 Whitney Blvd Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

Dear Gina,

The following is our narrative for the special use permit and variance applications for the
property located at 925 Logan Ave. The property and carwash was purchased on May 20™,
2004. The carwash has been in operation since 1974 when it was originally built and operated
by National Pride Equipment. [n September of 2016, an improvement project was begun which
included the installation of an in-bay touchless automatic. The automatic has now been in
operation for over a year and we would like to improve traffic flow into the carwash by moving
the entrance east of the current location and closing off the current entrance. We have noticed
that on busy days, traffic can back up an Logan Ave and by moving the entrance location, cars
will be able to move more quickly off the street and onto the carwash property. Thank you for
your time and consideration of these requests.

Sincerely,
.’f/"
/

(

Daniel Simpson, President



SIS TS L >y

Po siarls T FANIC 7L

SR AN P A
L ]
ﬁ..uv /s u.)uq\\a,\.\ FoF Z

Yo Lt

i,
as !
Vanlsi _
[ PR
VI L
r £F= ! -
TV Ppen

L

Aowpsnz 25 AT D e 7
/ Qi.@q g7 . |
— \M
|||14/. /~.. -~ 3 \\\J
- < /
N
I~ _ il
b
/ x|
v N
] Yo
] G ﬂ. |
.
g G b T e
\NQ\\ WJ.\ EAPYPRE S Wc\
N A
T ‘ -
] A
*l\.f,\. fi\ 1 \J\«
¢ ‘(/‘u\,
-7 MV\/... = \.v_ e
< &
: 36 —

s H«.,.\\.Ul/&
‘. «

~

VAT |

ISINE
WSy Tl

f

PLANTER



10 July 2018

SWCD NRi #: 1588

Belvidere‘PIanning Department

401 Whitney Bivd., Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

"Dear Sir/Madam,

211 M. Appleton Road
Belvidere, IL 61008
815-544-2577 axt. 3

A request for'a Natural Resource Information Report was submitted for the property listed in
this letter for front setback varlance We w1|l supply a written reply to you office as indicated

below:

_ X . Ourreview does not apply in th|s instance.

__Other (see attached) -

Location of Site: 925 Logan Ave,, Belwdere, IIImous 61008

PIN(S): 05-36-206-046

Contact’

Petitioner

Owner

Daniel ‘Simpson
3733 Pearl Str'ee_t Road
Belvidere, IL 61008

Daniel Simpson
3733 Pearl Street Road
Belyidere, IL 61008

D Bar S Enterprises [nc
925 Logan Ave.
Belvidere, IL 61008

815-243-8414
Dbars1@t6b.com

815-243-8414
Dbars @t6b.com

Request: Variance for driveway and special use for car wash drive thru

Sincerely,

J-/.—"-_'_"'\ . ki i
nnifer Betker

Boone County Soil & Water
Conservation District

Re: Daniel Simpson




07/25/2018 09:44 Administrative b\w (FAX) p. 0057013

Boone County
Health Department

1204 Logan Avenue, Belvidere, lllinois 61008
Public H Main Office 815.544,2951 Clinic 815.544.9730 Fax 815.544.2050
Provent. Promale, Pratoal. www,boonehealth.org

The mission of the Boone County Health Department is Lo serve our contmunity by
preventing the spread of dlsease, promoting optimal wellness & protecting the publio’s health,

July 23, 2018
FAX: 815-547-0789

Gina DelRose

Community Development Planer
401 Whitney Blvd Suite 300
Belvidere, IL 61008

Re: Case; 2018-18 and 2019; Special Use and Variance for 925 Logan Avenue

Dear Gina,

We are in receipt of the application for a special use to permit in-vehicle sales or service (car
wash) and a variance to reduce the required twenty-five-foot separation between driveway to
cight feet in order to relocate existing entrance.

The Boone County Health Department has no comments,

Thank you,

(e bk

Amanda Mehi
Administrator
gskm



401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 200

Belvidere, lllinols 61008 i )
815-544-9256 Fax: 815-544-4255 Belvidere Public Works

Memo

To: Gina DelRose, Community Development Planner
From: Brent Anderson, Director of Public Works

Date: 7/23/2018

Re: Case #2018-18 & 19: Logan Avenue Car Wash

Having reviewed the above referenced case, | would offer the following:

1. The driveway entrance to be ciosed shall have the pavement removed between the sidewalk and
street and replaced with a grass terrace. The existing depressed curb and gutter across the driveway
opening shall be replaced with full-section curb and gutter.

2. A permit will be required from this office for the construction of the new driveway entrance.



MEMO

DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Case: 2018-18; 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and property owner, Daniel L. Simpson (D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl
Street Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting a special use to permit in-vehicle sales or service
(car wash) in order to bring the existing car wash into compliance at 925 Logan Avenue within
the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) in-
vehicle sales or services and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
property is just under an acre (PIN: 05-36-206-046), rectangular in shape and developed with a
car wash.

RECOMMENDATION:

The planning and zoning commission recommended the approval of case number 2018-18 for
a special use to permit in-vehicles sales or service at 925 Logan Avenue subject to the following
conditions:

1. Upon relocation of the driveway, the original driveway entrance shall be closed and the
pavement shall be removed between the sidewalk and the street and replaced with a grass
terrace.

2. The existing depressed curb and gutter across the driveway opening shall be replaced with
full-section curb and gutter.

Motion to approve case 2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, Inc., 925 Logan Avenue subject to
the conditions as presented by staff carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission



MEMO

DATE: August 15, 2018
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: City of Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission

SUBJECT: Findings of Fact for Case: 2018-18; 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

REQUEST AND LOCATION:

The applicant and property owner, Daniel L. Simpson (D Bar S Enterprises, Inc.), 3733 Pearl
Street Road, Belvidere, IL 61008 is requesting a special use to permit in-vehicle sales or service
(car wash) in order to bring the existing car wash into compliance at 925 Logan Avenue within
the GB, General Business District (Belvidere Zoning Ordinance Sections 150.105(C)(5)(B)(2) in-
vehicle sales or services and 150.904 Special Use Review and Approval Procedures). The
property is just under an acre (PIN: 05-36-206-046), rectangular in shape and developed with a
car wash.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Per Section 150.904 (G) of the City of Belvidere Zoning Ordinance, the criteria for granting a
Special Use Permit are as follows:

A. Findings: The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be
unreasonably detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or
general welfare.

Other than the recent traffic concerns that are being rectified with the relocation of the
driveway (variance pending), staff is not aware of any negative impacts the car wash has
made on the community or neighborhood. By bringing the car wash into compliance with
the Zoning Ordinance, improvements can continue to be made to the property.

B. Findings: The proposed special use, both its general use independent of its location
and in its specific location, will be in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives,
policies, and standards of the City of Belvidere Comprehensive Plan, Section 150.904
of the Belvidere Zoning Ordinance and any other plan, program, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by the City.

The Comprehensive Plan shows the property and the surrounding areas as Neighborhood
Business. The neighborhood business category calls for commercial uses that support the
neighborhood and buildings that are designed to match the nearby residential character.
Although the building does not fit the residential character (sloped roof, materials, entrance
way, etc.), the business has been part of the neighborhood since 1974 and is designed in
accordance with the building trends of that decade.

C. Findings: The special use will not in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan, result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby
property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors,
parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters



Findings of Fact 2018-18; D Bar S Enterprises, Inc., 925 Logan Avenue (SU)

affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map,
or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to Notice of Public Hearing by
the City or governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development.

The car wash has become part of the character of the neighborhood. The popularity of the
automatic wash bays has created a negative impact by causing traffic to back up onto
Logan Avenue. The applicant is requesting a variance to move the driveway in order to
alleviate the congestion. Once the driveway is relocated, the applicant will be required to
restore the public right-of-way.

D. Findings: The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property, and maintains the
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as
related to the environs of the subject property.

Since the car wash’s inception in 1974, Logan Avenue has continued to develop with
commercial land uses. The residences along Logan Avenue have slowly transitioned into
commercial properties; properties such as Ultrasound of Belvidere and Boone County have
made significant investments.

E. Findings: The proposed Special Use is located in an area that will be adequately
served by, and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvement facilities,
utilities or services provided by public agencies servicing the subject property.

The subject property is already developed with a car wash that is served with municipal
utilities.

F. Findings: The potential public benefits of the proposed special use outweigh any and
all potential adverse impacts of the proposed special use after taking into
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts.

The use of the property is not changing. The special use will allow the existing land use to
be in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. Car washes cater to the entire community and
provide a service which is used by many.

The motion to adopt the Findings of Fact as presented by staff for case 2018-18 for a
special use permit for in-vehicle sales or service (existing car wash) at 925 Logan
Avenue carried with a (4-0) roll call vote.

Alissa Maher, Chairman
Belvidere Planning and Zoning Commission





